
ESS 
Electronic Services System – Coordinating Committee Meeting 

Agenda 
8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2, Johnston, IA 50131 

November 10, 2022 
9:00 A.M. to 2:00 P.M. 

ESS Coordinating Committee Agenda – Updated November 3, 2022 

 Welcome and Introductions

 August 9, 2022 – ESS Coordinating Committee Meeting Summary – Approval

 2023 ESS Meeting Schedule – Approval

 Financial Reports – Approval
o BOA/BT 3rd Quarter Reports
o Fund 255 FY 2023 1st Quarter Reports
o 2023 BT Banking Resolution – Discussion

 BT Reserve Fund Allocations – Approval

 ESS Financial & Strategic Review – Discussion
o Revenue/Expense Trends

 Insurance – Steve Schmidt

 ILR Budget Review and Action
o CY 2022 Final Budget Amendment – Approval
o CY 2023 Budget – Approval

 ESS Employment Authorization – Approval
o ESS/ILR Communications and Marketing Director

 Treasury Management Update – Discussion

 AOS/TOS Outreach – Discussion

Break

 Contracts and Agreements
o Local Service Provider FY 2023 COLA – Discussion
o Bergan KDV CY 2023 Engagement – Approval
o Rafferty Group CY 2023 Engagement – Approval
o Brick Gentry CY 2023 Engagement – Approval
o ESS Operations – Transition Update - Discussion
o Enterprise Iowa CY 2023 Extension – Approval
o ESS/Enterprise Iowa MOU Amendment – Approval
o ILR Staff Compensation Adjustments – Approval
o Lean Techniques Work Authorization 2.1 and 2.2 – Approval
o ESS/ICRA MOU Update – Discussion

 Recorders Manual
 Directory and Map
 Trade Names
 Legislative Engagement

o Linn County Registration Renewal Project – ESS Payment Integration
o Backfile Scanning Contract Management

ESS Page 1



ESS 
Electronic Services System – Coordinating Committee Meeting 

Agenda cont. 
PAGE 2 

ESS Coordinating Committee Agenda – Updated November 3, 2022 

Lunch 

 Policies and Procedures – Approval
o Technical Updates –1.6(5); 1.10; 3.2(2); 3.6(3); 5.4(1)f, h, k, n; 5.4(2); 5.5(2-4)
o Compensation of Members – 1.6(10)
o Bill of Sale-Bargain and Sale – 3.5, 3.6

 Governance – Discussion
o Groundwater Hazard Process Implementation
o Stakeholder Communications

 Terms of Use Legislative Proposal
 API Legislative Proposal

o Smart Contracts
o ESS Nominations

 Communications Subcommittee Update
o Deputies Conference

 PRIA Communications
o Policy Request Status and Operating Rules

Break 

 Standards Subcommittee Update – Discussion
o Processes for refunding transfer tax paid in error – 4.7
o New Section 1.14 – User Authentication Policy
o Document Formatting & ESUB Processing Working Group

• Minor Variation Clarification
• New Section - Recording Stamp Area 3.3(13)
• New Definition & Practices – Standard Index Legend 3.1, 3.3(11), 5.1, 5.4(1)c,
• New Subsection – Preparer and Return Information – 5.4(1)t
• New Section - Cover Page Policies 3.1, 3.15(1), 3.15(2)
• Procedures for Consistent Document Processing

o ILR Search Services and Data Improvements
• Associated References – 3.9
• Parcel Identification Numbers – 3.10
• Easement Images

o Temporary Document Restriction – 6.9
o County First Page Concept

 Adjourn - Next Regular Meeting – February 16, 2023

ESS Page 2



ESS Coordinating Committee  

Meeting Summary  

August 9, 2022 

Participants  

Nancy Booten, Lee County Recorder    David Erickson, Dentons Davis Brown        

Haggerty, Polk County Recorder  Natalie Steffener, Des Moines County Recorder 

Eric Sloan, ICIT  Denise Baker, Wright County Recorder  

Jolynn Goodchild, Plymouth County Recorder     Melissa Bahnsen, Cedar County Recorder

Lindsay Laufersweiler, Webster County Recorder  Jamie Stargell, Adams County Recorder Julie  

Other Participants 

Sheri Jones, Jones County Recorder Robert Endriss, Denman & Company LLC 
Lisa Long, Iowa Land Records  Kati Ross, Iowa Land Records 
Phil Dunshee, Iowa Land Records   Kati New, CPA         

Welcome  

A meeting of the ESS Coordinating Committee was held in person and via web conference. The meeting 

was called to order by Chair Nancy Booten and introductions were made.  

Meeting Summary 

The May 10, 2022, meeting summary was reviewed. Denise Baker made a motion to approve the 

meeting summary as presented. Lindsay Laufersweiler seconded, and the motion was approved.  

Financial Reports  

2nd Quarter 2022 Financial Reports  

The Iowa Land Records team provided the Subcommittee with the second quarter financial reports for 

2022. Jolyn Goodchild made a motion to approve the financial reports. Julie Haggerty seconded, and the 

motion was approved.  

CY 2021 Audit 
 Denman & Company, LLP presented the annual independent audit report, conducted under 
Government Auditing Standards. The audit report did not identify any significant issues, recording fee 
income increased by 50.6% on 2020 and 29% in 2021. Julie Haggerty made a motion to approve the CY 
2021 audit report. Lindsay Laufersweiler seconded the motion, and it was approved. 

Treasury Management Account and 990 Return Status 
The Project Manager provided an update on treasury management services. The process of transitioning 

accounts from Bank of America to Bankers Trust is proceeding successfully. The Bankers Trust account 

for the Electronic Services System was set up by following the final adoption of the 28E agreement 

amendment. $100,000 has been initially deposited into the new Bankers Trust, and a total of $450,000 

will be transferred before E‐Submission activities are transitioned. All E‐Submission fees and other 

income will be deposited into the Bankers Trust account thereafter. The Bank of America account will 

then be closed by the end of the calendar year. 

ESS Page 3



A status update was provided on the 990 tax return. Katie New (CPA) provided a draft of the 990 tax 

return to the Committee. The team will now proceed will filing the return following the release of the 

audit report. This is a return for the 2021 tax period and, the aim is to conclude this process in once the 

treasury management transition is completed.  

ILR Budget Review and Action  

Revenue/Expenses Trends  

The Project Manager reviewed the e‐submission trends chart, which is consistent with previous 

patterns, but overall activity has declined. It was noted that changes in the marketplace have led to 

changes in overall recording and electronic recording. It is predicted that we will continue to see a lower 

level of activity given current economic conditions (high inflation, higher interest rates, and a lower level 

of refinancing). 

BOA CY 2022 Budget Amendment  
The Project Manager presented the Committee with a proposed amendment to the calendar year 2022 
budget. Notable changes include increased insurance premiums for cybersecurity and health care 
benefits, and increased expenses for system equipment and office technology. However, overall 
expenses are projected to be $32,212.47 lower and net income is projected to be $47,368.50 higher 
than was estimated in May. Julie Haggerty made a motion to approve the recommended budget 
amendment for CY 2022. Jolynn Goodchild seconded the motion, and it was approved. 

BOA Reserve Fund Allocations 

During the May meeting, approval was given for expenditure of up to $350,000 in reserve funds for a 

series of one‐time software development and equipment maintenance reserve projects. The funds have 

not yet been used, but will be allocated to developments associated with the Iowa Land Records search 

application. 

Contracts & Agreements 

Iowa Department of Revenue (IDR) E‐Submission Contract 

The Project Manager informed the Committee that the contract with the Iowa Department of Revenue 

was ready for renewal. The project manager had proposed a 28E agreement, but the Department 

preferred to create a new 3‐year contract.  The new contract, with provisions very similar to the 

previous agreement, was presented to the Committee. A confidentiality agreement with the 

Department will need to be signed by ESS employees. Liens and Lien Releases are considered to be 

confidential information until they are recorded. Lindsay Laufersweiler moved to approve the new 

agreement with the Department as presented. Julie Haggerty seconded. The motion was approved. 

ESS – ICRA Memorandum of Understanding 
The Project Manager presented a proposed Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between ESS and 

the Iowa County Recorders Association. ESS and ICRA are separate organizations with different sources 

of funding and different obligations and responsibilities. However, their mission and purposes are 

compatible, and there are substantial opportunities for collaboration between the organizations. It was 

suggested that to provide for the necessary accounting of sources and uses of funding for any activity, it 

is prudent and necessary to set out a description of the respective duties and responsibilities of each 

organization. The agreement details the scope of activity, provides for the tracking of time, and for 

ESS Page 4



invoicing the Association for the value of any service provided by ESS personnel. The estimated budget 

for this MOU is $30,375.00 per year. The arrangement could be terminated by either party for any 

reason. Lindsay Laufersweiler motioned to approve the new MOU between ESS and ICRA as presented, 

Denise Baker seconded. The motion was approved. The Chair will communicate with ICRA leadership 

about next steps. 

Office Operations 
The Project Manager presented possible changes in office operations that would facilitate the transition 

of ESS activities to a new location at the appropriate time. Generally, the changes would provide the 

necessary business infrastructure to operate independently with respect to IT support, 

telecommunications and printing/copying. Recommended changes are described as follows. 

ESS – Multi‐function Printer Lease Authorization.   The current lease for the Konica Minolta printer will 
expire in December 2022. The project Manager presented a new lease agreement with a cost of $335 
per month all inclusive for ESS purposes. The fee included unlimited printing (excluding paper), ink 
supply and maintenance services. The monthly amount is less than the cost of the current lease, based 
on a 48‐month term. 

ESS Phone Service Authorization A proposal for a new phone service was presented. The current phone 
system is more than 10 years old, and does not effectively support remote work, and is inadequate for 
multiple support team members. As a part of the new phone service, employees will have access to 
portable VOIP equipment and work phone numbers that can be used in conjunction with mobile 
devices. The system includes voicemail that can be converted to e‐mails. The projected budget would be 
$193.76 per month. Corresponding changes in Internet services would result in a combined reduced cost 
for Internet and phone services.  

ESS – Office 365 Tenant Migration 
The Project Manager provided a scope of work from the current IT service provider (Konica Minolta) ESS 
email and shared files to a cloud service (Microsoft Office 365). This change would eliminate the need 
for a new server which is nearing end of life, and would better support mobile work and team 
collaboration. The budget amendment included resources to facilitate this transition. The process would 
also result in ESS have full and independent control of email and file management.  

Lindsay Laufersweiler moved to authorize the three recommended changes as presented (multi‐function 
printer, phone service and O365 tenant migration). Julie Haggerty seconded and the motion was 
approved. 

Governance Update 

Annual Report to Supervisors  

Marketing & Communications Director Kati Ross provided an overview of the Annual report that was 

presented to the Boards of Supervisors. As part of 28E amendment, ISAC staff suggested than an annual 

report be provided to supervisors. The report highlighted the work conducted by ESS in 2021 and 2022. 

The 28E agreement stipulates that the report be presented by July 1. The submission of an annual report 

is just one way that ESS conducts its business in an open and transparent way. Supervisors and citizens 

ESS Page 5



can stay up to date on the activities of ESS and Iowa Land Records by visiting the iowalandrecords.org 

website, and more specifically the Accountability in Reporting page. 

Stakeholders Meeting Update 

Policy Coordinator, Census Lo‐liyong, provided a summary of the portal enhancement discussions. The 

report included summaries from two stakeholder meetings and five focus group discussions. The 

stakeholder meetings were held on July 20 and 28,2022. The focus group meetings were held on July 26, 

27 and 28, 2022. The focus groups were divided into the following industry groups: Bankers/Mortgage 

Companies and Credit Unions; Real Estate Attorneys & Paralegals; Land Title Professionals; Surveyors, 

and Realtors. The stakeholder and focus group user engagement processes were successful and 

provided valuable feedback that will be included in the portal enhancement planning. It was noted that 

a survey for both portal users and E‐submitters to acquire general feedback was underway. The results 

will be available in the next few months. 

Policies and Procedures 

ESS Employee Handbook  

The Project Manager provided the Committee with several recommended updates to the ESS Employee 

Handbook. The Handbook was last updated in 2017. The main updates to the Handbook related to ESS 

operating as a public entity, expectations and requirements relating to remote work, time reporting, 

expense reimbursement, holiday procedures and other operational practices. Denise Baker moved to 

approve the amendments to the ESS Employee Handbook as presented. Julie Haggerty seconded. The 

motion was approved. 

Policies and Procedures Update – Chapter 8 

Policy Coordinator, Census Lo‐liyong, presented a proposed technical amendment to Chapter 8 of the 
ESS Policies and Procedures. The amendment updates Chapter 8 of the Policies and Procedures to clarify 
that the ESS Coordinating Committee is the governing body, which is responsible for the Electronic 
Services System, and is the body which would take any action required. This simply reflects the change 
in the ESS governance structure with the adoption of the amendment to the 28E agreement as filed with 
the Iowa Secretary of State on December 16, 2021 (Filing Number M514302). Lindsay Laufersweiler 
moved to approve the Chapter 8 amendment. Julie Haggerty seconded. The motion was approved.  

Processes for Documents Filed in Multiple Counties 
Lisa Long, Account Manager, presented information about a 110‐page document that was electronically 
submitted to 79 counties. The document was submitted by an out of state bank, and it was declined by 
some counties but recorded by others. The Committee discussed the need for consistent action among 
all counties when processing identical documents. One of the challenges in this case is that there was no 
prior communication about a document being submitted to multiple counties. The ILR team will explore 
options for securing more advanced notice in these situations.  

Communications Update  

Marketing & Communications Director, Kati Ross, provided an update to the Committee regarding 

recent topics covered with the Communications Subcommittee including the Recorders directory and 

the ICRA brochure. The agenda for the Deputies Conference is up on the website and registration is 

underway. The Committee was informed on the progress of the Recorders Directory and Map, 

ESS Page 6



Recorders are welcome to update their headshots before its finalized. The Committee also discussed a 

notification process for system outages. During a system outage, ESS will inform Recorders about the 

disruption in service, including any expected timeframe for resolution. The committee reported that 

they would prefer an overview report rather than a detailed explanation. 

The Communications Subcommittee will be working to update the Recorder’s manual annually after the 

legislative sessions unless urgent policy changes arise. The Policy Coordinator, Census Lo‐liyong will 

commence webinars with the district members according to designated chapters. The Committee 

welcomed the new suggestions and the updates.  

Software Development Update  
Groundwater Hazard Update 
The Project Manager provided an update regarding the implementation of new GWH statement 
processes. An updated Groundwater Hazard form is awaiting the adoption of new rules by the 
Department of Natural Resources. This is expected to be completed in December, 2022. In the 
meantime, the current form is working and the process has been simplified for many property sellers. 

Recorder Decline Action Workflow Changes 
The Project Manager demonstrated a planned new E‐submission process for declining records. The 
software development team has now added the decline reason workflow to the staging environment. 
The new Decline tab gives Recorders a selection of 7 choices (in line with PRIA best practices) for 
declining a submission. The system will automatically e‐mail the selected reason(s) to the E‐Submitter. A 
suggestion was made to show the text entered in the comments box to display at the top of the history 
section and possibly in a different color than the decline reasons listed.  

Support Backlog 
Prior to the start of development of the new portal application the Iowa Land Records development 
team will be taking some time to focus on the backlog of support related issues for counties.  

PRIA Policy Discussion Update  

The Project Manager presented the Committee with a packet of PRIA materials. This included a memo 
from ESS to the PRIA Board of Directors and PRIA members. The memo was a response to PRIA, 
requesting that PRIA develop and adopt a policy to preserve and improve the public land registry. 
Discussions are ongoing, and PRIA has invited the Project Manager to participate in a conversation 
about the topic in conjunction with August Board Meeting and the upcoming PRIA Conference. 

The meeting was adjourned at 2 PM. The next meeting will be November 10, 2022. 

ESS Page 7



Proposed Dates for ESS Committee Meetings 

ESS Coordinating Committee  

Thursday, February 16th  

Tuesday, May 9th 

Tuesday, August 8th  

Thursday, November 9th  

Tentative dates for Subcommittee Meetings 

Finance Subcommittee 

Thursday, January 5th 

Tuesday, February 14th 

Thursday, March 14th 

Thursday, April 6th  

Thursday, May 4th  

Thursday, June 8th 

Thursday, July 6th  

Thursday, August 3rd 

Thursday, September 7th 

Thursday, October 5th  

Tuesday, November 7th 

Thursday, December 7th  

ESS Communications & Marketing Subcommittee 

Thursday, January 26th  

Thursday, April 27th  

Thursday, July 27th  

Thursday, October 26th  

ESS Page 8



ESS Standards Subcommittee (Quarterly) 

Tuesday, January 17th  

Tuesday, April 18th  

Tuesday, July 18th  

Tuesday, October 17th  

Local Service Provider Calls (Quarterly) 

Thursday, February 16 – 2:00 PM 

Thursday, May 11 – 2:00 PM 

Thursday, August 17 – 2:00 PM 

Thursday, November 16 – 2:00 PM 

ICRA Conference 

June 14-16 

ILR Deputies Conference 

September 21 

ICRA District Meetings 

Dates and Locations reported by District Officers 

ISAC 

New County Officers School January 18-19 

Statewide Supervisors Meeting – February 2 

ISAC Spring Conference – March 9-10 

ISAC Annual Conference – August 23-25 

ESS Page 9



 

PRIA 

Winter Symposium (Phoenix) – February 21 - 23 

Annual Conference (Ft. Lauderdale) – August 29 to September 1 

 

 

MISMO 

Winter Summit (Palm Beach, FL) January 9 - 13 

Spring Summit (Portland) June 5-9 

Fall Summit (Washington, DC) 18 - 21 September 

  

ESS Page 10



Customer service information

Customer service: 1.888.852.5000

bankofamerica.com

Bank of America, N.A.
P.O. Box 25118
Tampa, FL 33622-5118

IOWA COUNTY RECORDERS ASSOCIATION INC
8711 WINDSOR PKWY STE 2
JOHNSTON, IA  50131-2296

P.O. Box 15284
Wilmington, DE 19850

 PULL: E   CYCLE: 55   SPEC: E   DELIVERY: E   TYPE:    IMAGE: I   BC: IA Page 1 of 24

Your Full Analysis Business Checking 
Preferred Rewards for Bus Platinum Honors
for September 1, 2022 to September 30, 2022 Account number: 

IOWA COUNTY RECORDERS ASSOCIATION INC          

Account summary
Beginning balance on September 1, 2022 $1,222,265.76

Deposits and other credits 3,203,804.44

Withdrawals and other debits -3,071,232.17

Checks -20,803.41

Service fees -1,356.95

Ending balance on September 30, 2022 $1,332,677.67

# of deposits/credits: 109

# of withdrawals/debits: 173

# of days in cycle: 30

Average ledger balance: $1,236,599.19

ESS Page 11



Last statement: August 31, 2022 Page 1 of 3
This statement: September 30, 2022
Total days in statement period: 30 (0) {0}

Direct inquiries to:
ELECTRONIC SERVICES SYSTEM 515-245-2863
8711 WINDSOR PKWY SUITE 2
JOHNSTON IA 50131-2296 Bankers Trust Company

453 7TH Street
Des Moines, IA  50309

 Commercial Checking-Analysis

Account number Beginning balance $448,980.57
Total additions .00
Total subtractions 105.30
Ending balance $448,875.27

DEBITS
Date Description Subtractions
09-20 ' Analysis Service Fee 105.30

NET ACCOUNT ANALYSIS FOR 08/22

DAILY BALANCES
Date Amount Date Amount Date Amount
08-31 448,980.57 09-20 448,875.27

       Thank you for banking with Bankers Trust Company

ESS Page 12



Jan - Mar 22 Apr - Jun 22 Jul - Sep 22 TOTAL

Income

BudgetedIncome

41000 · Event Income

41100 · ILR Conference Registration 0.00 400.00 5,100.00 5,500.00

41200 · Sponsorship 0.00 0.00 200.00 200.00

Total 41000 · Event Income 0.00 400.00 5,300.00 5,700.00

42000 · POSSERVICEFEE 30,928.94 50,830.77 38,718.82 120,478.53

43000 · SERVICEFEE

43100 · ACH 236,163.00 266,769.00 238,917.00 741,849.00

43200 · CC 23,890.79 25,545.30 23,949.51 73,385.60

43300 · DRAWDOWN 15,147.00 17,418.00 15,783.00 48,348.00

43000 · SERVICEFEE - Other -3.00 0.00 0.00 -3.00

Total 43000 · SERVICEFEE 275,197.79 309,732.30 278,649.51 863,579.60

47000 · Fund 255 Reimbursement 275,342.97 245,323.84 161,617.51 682,284.32

48200 · Local Serv. Prov. Maint. Acct.

48100 · Cost Sharing Credit 0.00 -160,453.01 0.00 -160,453.01

48200 · Local Serv. Prov. Maint. Acct. - Other 0.00 293,283.64 0.00 293,283.64

Total 48200 · Local Serv. Prov. Maint. Acct. 0.00 132,830.63 0.00 132,830.63

Total BudgetedIncome 581,469.70 739,117.54 484,285.84 1,804,873.08

Total Income 581,469.70 739,117.54 484,285.84 1,804,873.08

Gross Profit 581,469.70 739,117.54 484,285.84 1,804,873.08

Expense

Budgeted Expenses

60000 · Administration

60100 · Annual Audit 0.00 4,000.00 3,950.00 7,950.00

60200 · Accounting Software-Services 4,478.61 443.64 443.64 5,365.89

60300 · Bookkeeping-CPA-990 14,450.00 14,700.00 14,700.00 43,850.00

60400 · Project Manager 35,700.00 35,700.00 35,700.00 107,100.00

60500 · Professional Fees

60510 · Legal 6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 18,000.00

60520 · Government Relations 3,000.00 6,000.00 4,000.00 13,000.00

60530 · Human Resources-Oasis 2,917.80 2,274.00 3,209.05 8,400.85

Total 60500 · Professional Fees 11,917.80 14,274.00 13,209.05 39,400.85

60600 · Insurance Expense 0.00 3,269.00 63,407.91 66,676.91

60700 · Ess Meetings 663.46 1,303.52 580.48 2,547.46

60800 · Office Operations

60810 · Office Space Lease 8,650.00 8,850.00 8,850.00 26,350.00

60830 · Offical Publication Expense 75.00 26.80 119.24 221.04

60850 · Teleconference 296.90 67.39 182.01 546.30

60860 · Telephone/Internet 1,950.00 2,100.00 2,100.00 6,150.00

60870 · Office Tech Support 3,360.00 3,360.00 3,360.00 10,080.00

60880 · Printing and Copying (Color-BW) 950.00 1,050.00 1,050.00 3,050.00

60890 · Miscellaneous 64.20 0.00 68.50 132.70

Total 60800 · Office Operations 15,346.10 15,454.19 15,729.75 46,530.04

Total 60000 · Administration 82,555.97 89,144.35 147,720.83 319,421.15

61000 · Marketing-Communications

61100 · Marketing Director 26,263.23 20,506.62 19,903.40 66,673.25

61200 · Administrative/Marketing Coord 22,637.13 15,359.58 -141.03 37,855.68

61300 · Education and Outreach

61310 · ILR Annual Conference 0.00 230.00 1,176.57 1,406.57

61320 · Tradeshows/Exhibits/Sponsorship 1,000.00 215.00 600.00 1,815.00

61330 · Seminars & Workshops 75.66 -56.25 74.66 94.07

61340 · Memberships 1,000.00 0.00 7,000.00 8,000.00

61350 · Conferences & Meetings 1,945.22 1,355.52 5,452.40 8,753.14

61360 · Campaigns 27.25 0.00 1,531.16 1,558.41

61370 · Software & Hosted Services 2,349.88 1,681.10 1,850.78 5,881.76

61390 · Promotional Expenses 0.00 2,184.92 150.84 2,335.76

Total 61300 · Education and Outreach 6,398.01 5,610.29 17,836.41 29,844.71

Total 61000 · Marketing-Communications 55,298.37 41,476.49 37,598.78 134,373.64

10:30 AM Electronic Services System

10/25/22 Profit & Loss- Budgeted Only
Accrual Basis January through September 2022

Page 1

ESS Page 13



Jan - Mar 22 Apr - Jun 22 Jul - Sep 22 TOTAL

62000 · Customer Support

62100 · Account Manager 23,209.64 22,770.49 22,203.20 68,183.33

Total 62000 · Customer Support 23,209.64 22,770.49 22,203.20 68,183.33

64000 · ILR System Operations

64100 · Development Team

64110 · Technical Lead 35,985.35 34,765.20 37,374.88 108,125.43

64120 · Senior Developer 32,813.15 32,235.54 33,613.48 98,662.17

64130 · Technical Support & Development 26,422.19 25,945.52 25,890.73 78,258.44

Total 64100 · Development Team 95,220.69 92,946.26 96,879.09 285,046.04

64200 · External Development & Services

64210 · FF Redaction Services 19,012.93 19,667.81 20,589.00 59,269.74

64211 · BF Redaction Services 1,492.98 3,708.48 4,679.95 9,881.41

64240 · Data Center & Hosting Services 9,158.70 9,158.70 9,158.70 27,476.10

Total 64200 · External Development & Services 29,664.61 32,534.99 34,427.65 96,627.25

64300 · Software License-Maintenance

64305 · Jetbrains 1,556.00 0.00 0.00 1,556.00

64300 · Software License-Maintenance - Other 0.00 0.00 562.38 562.38

Total 64300 · Software License-Maintenance 1,556.00 0.00 562.38 2,118.38

64500 · Computing & Equip (CAP)

64520 · System Equipment 0.00 1,504.15 1,847.11 3,351.26

Total 64500 · Computing & Equip (CAP) 0.00 1,504.15 1,847.11 3,351.26

Total 64000 · ILR System Operations 126,441.30 126,985.40 133,716.23 387,142.93

64400 · POS Credit Card Setup-Support

64410 · Local Credit Card Equipment 0.00 0.00 598.00 598.00

Total 64400 · POS Credit Card Setup-Support 0.00 0.00 598.00 598.00

65000 · Local Maint. Expense 24.99 0.00 290,334.57 290,359.56

66000 · Payment Expenses

66100 · Bank Account Analysis Fee 2,746.03 2,917.40 4,452.37 10,115.80

66200 · Bank Service Charges 0.00 0.00 90.00 90.00

66300 · Gateway Transaction Fees

66310 · Vericheck OnlineTransactionFees 7,931.49 8,536.84 8,796.24 25,264.57

66320 · POSTransactionsFees 20,922.17 35,147.63 27,617.36 83,687.16

Total 66300 · Gateway Transaction Fees 28,853.66 43,684.47 36,413.60 108,951.73

Total 66000 · Payment Expenses 31,599.69 46,601.87 40,955.97 119,157.53

Total Budgeted Expenses 319,129.96 326,978.60 673,127.58 1,319,236.14

Total Expense 319,129.96 326,978.60 673,127.58 1,319,236.14

Net Income 262,339.74 412,138.94 -188,841.74 485,636.94

10:30 AM Electronic Services System

10/25/22 Profit & Loss- Budgeted Only
Accrual Basis January through September 2022

Page 2

ESS Page 14



Sep 30, 22

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
107000 · BT-Settlement 448,875.27

10800 · BOA-Settlement
108100 · Unrestricted Reserve Account 38,399.40

108200 · Software Dev & Equip Maint Rsrv 807,941.48

108300 · Redaction Reserve 31,397.94

108400 · Restricted Operating Reserve 100,000.00

10800 · BOA-Settlement - Other 708,734.56

Total 10800 · BOA-Settlement 1,686,473.38

Total Checking/Savings 2,135,348.65

Accounts Receivable
12000 · Accounts Receivable 1,312.45

Total Accounts Receivable 1,312.45

Other Current Assets
13000 · Due from State 103,446.16

14000 · Prepaid Expenses 155,817.97

Total Other Current Assets 259,264.13

Total Current Assets 2,395,925.23

Fixed Assets
17000 · Computer Equipment 718,246.95

17001 · Developed Software 633,302.00

17900 · Asset in Process 200,910.01

18000 · Accumulated Depreciation -1,025,876.20

Total Fixed Assets 526,582.76

TOTAL ASSETS 2,922,507.99

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

20000 · Accounts Payable 28,777.80

Total Accounts Payable 28,777.80

Credit Cards
21000 · Corp-BOA Visa 2026 8,005.36

Total Credit Cards 8,005.36

Other Current Liabilities
22000 · Accrued Compensation 35,257.21

22500 · Deferred Revenues 138,702.28

24000 · DRAWDOWN 78,975.80

Total Other Current Liabilities 252,935.29

Total Current Liabilities 289,718.45

Total Liabilities 289,718.45

Equity
30000 · Retained Earnings 2,537,238.81

Net Income 95,550.73

Total Equity 2,632,789.54

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 2,922,507.99

10:23 AM Electronic Services System

10/25/22 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of September 30, 2022

Page 1
ESS Page 15



Report ID: FR008B STATE OF IOWA Page: 1 of 1

Source: I/3 Finance OLLD BALANCE SHEET SUMMARY Run Date: 10/07/2022

Date: 7/1/22 - 9/30/22 Run Time: 11:57:13 AM

Fund: 0255

BS Account: 1101

Doc CD Posting Code Cycle Date Debit Amount Credit Amount Balance

Beginning Balance 230,255.81

EFT A001 7/8/22 50,372.28 179,883.53

JV1 A001 7/20/22 144.92 180,028.45

CDR A001 7/29/22 55,264.53 235,292.98

EFT A001 8/9/22 57,543.59 177,749.39

CDR A001 8/17/22 59,568.36 237,317.75

JV1 A001 8/18/22 151.83 237,469.58

EFT A001 9/12/22 53,701.64 183,767.94

CDR A001 9/14/22 46,129.36 229,897.30

JV1 A001 9/23/22 105.48 230,002.78

ESS Page 16



Sep 30, 22

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
State Treasurer 230,002.78

Total Checking/Savings 230,002.78

Total Current Assets 230,002.78

TOTAL ASSETS 230,002.78

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Equity

Retained Earnings 230,255.81

Net Income -253.03

Total Equity 230,002.78

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 230,002.78

8:31 AM Iowa Land Records - Fund 255

10/25/22 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of September 30, 2022

Page 1
ESS Page 17



ESS/Iowa Land Records 
8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2 

Johnston, Iowa  50131 

November 8, 2022 

To: ESS Coordinating Committee 
 ESS Finance Subcommittee 

From: Phil Dunshee, ILR Project Manager 

Re: Reserve Fund Allocation 

The Electronic Services System has a checking (cash) account for the purpose of operations, cash flow 
management, and reserve funds for special purpose activities. The operating and reserve accounts are 
as follows. 

 BOA – Settlement Account – operations including both revolving and budgeted transactions
 Software Development and Equipment Maintenance Reserve
 Redaction Reserve
 Restricted Operating Reserve
 Unrestricted Reserve

Anything not allocated to one of the reserve accounts is included in the Settlement accounts (operating 
accounts).  As of September 30, 2022, the operating account had a reconciled balance of $1,157,609.83 
(Bankers Trust $448,875.27 and Bank of America $708,734.56). The Unrestricted Reserve had a balance 
of $38,399.40, the Software Development and Equipment Maintenance Reserve had a balance of 
$807,941.48, the Restricted Operating Reserve had a balance of $100,000.00, and the Redaction 
Reserve had a balance of $31,397.94. 

Anything not allocated to one of the reserve accounts is included in the BOA Settlement account 
(operating account).  As of March 31, 2022, the operating account had a reconciled balance of 
$985,068.51. The Unrestricted Reserve had a balance of $38,399.40, the Software Development and 
Equipment Maintenance Reserve had a balance of $857,474.72, the Restricted Operating Reserve had a 
balance of $100,000.00, and the Redaction Reserve had a balance of $40,000.00. 

Project budgeted income continued to be positive in the second and third quarter. This is the result of 
sustained usage of the E-Submission service. Budgeted income from the E-Submission service fee 
exceeded projections in the two quarters by $78,381.81. 

It is recommended that these funds be allocated as follows. 
 $78,381.81 to the Software Development and Equipment Maintenance Reserve

The allocation of funds to these reserve funds will not hinder operating cash flow, nor will it cause any 
shortfall in the ordinary course of operations. 

Through the end of calendar year 2022, the remaining assets in the Bank of America account will be 
transferred to the new account with Bankers Trust. It is anticipated that the Bankers Trust Settlement 
account and the reserve funds will be reviewed and rebalanced at the February 2023 ESS Coordinating 
Committee.  In the meantime, it is recommended that the balances in the reserve funds in the Bank of 
America account be transferred to corresponding reserve funds within the Bankers Trust account as the 
assets are being transferred during this period. 

Actions Requested: Authorize staff to allocate the recommended funds ($78,381.81) to the specified 
reserve account, effective September 30, 2022. 

Authorize staff to assign assets in corresponding reserve funds in the Bankers Trust account as they are 
moved from the Bank of America account to the Bankers Trust account. 

ESS Page 18



 

ESS Page 19



ESS/Iowa Land Records 
8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2 

Johnston, Iowa  50131 

November 3, 2022 

To: ESS Coordinating Committee 
ESS Finance Subcommittee 

From: Phil Dunshee 

Re: CY 2022 Final Budget Amendment 
CY 2023 Budget Recommendations 

Preparations for a final budget amendment for CY 2022 and a new budget for CY 2023 are nearly 
complete. We wish to provide you with background information about how the 2022 amendment and the 
2023 budget has been constructed. 

In the first half of calendar year 2022, overall recording and E-Submission activity was robust. The 
average monthly service fee income was over $97,000.00. However, the third quarter monthly average 
declined to about $93,000.00 and it is expected to continue to be lower in the fourth quarter. Point-of-Sale 
activity has also been strong, with a monthly average income of more than $13,000.00. We had 
conservatively budgeted for monthly income of $85,000.00 and $7,500.00, respectively. Overall, net 
budgeted income for CY 2022 will be strong, buoyed in part by the transfer of Funds from Fund 255 and 
the allocation of funds to the ESS reserve accounts. 

Beginning in March 2022 the Federal Reserve began raising the Federal Funds interest rate. The Federal 
Funds rate is projected to be as much as 4.5% by the end of 2022. As of September 2022, the rate of 
inflation was estimated to be 8.2%, and the average mortgage interest rate for a 30-year fixed loan was 
more than 7% for the first time since April 2002. 

This information is intended to describe the current general economic climate and is not intended to be an 
economic forecast. But it seems reasonable to conclude that these circumstances may affect project 
income in CY 2023. For the first time in CY 2022, income for Fund 255 (a measure of overall recording 
activity) dropped below $50,000.00 in September. October E-Submission activity also dropped below the 
level recorded in 2019. 

All of this suggests that we exercise caution in constructing the 2023 budget. At the same time, we have a 
system to operate, and we will do what it takes to succeed. The future is bright. More E-Submitters will 
join, and the markets will bounce back. The search engine will be better than ever too. 

CY 2023 Budget Overview – Income Projections 

POS Income – As noted previously, in the first three quarters of 2022, monthly revenue from the 
Point-of-Sale System averaged more than $13,000.00 compared with budgeted income of 
$7,500.00. The estimated monthly POS income for CY 2023 is estimated to be $8,000.00. 

E-Submission Income – In 2022 we budgeted for $85,000.00 in monthly income from E-
Submission service fees. The actual income was much higher. We propose to stay with the
$85,000.00 monthly income estimate for CY 2023. We believe this is a reasonable estimate, and
we will be prepared to mitigate shortfalls with expenditure constraints.

MOU Income – For the first time, under the recently adopted Memorandum of Understanding, 
income for services to the Iowa County Recorders Association will be recognized in the ESS 
budget. Estimated income, consistent with the MOU budget estimate, is projected to be $37,550 
in CY 2023. 

ESS Page 20



Fund 255 – Monthly income from Fund 255 is projected to be $51,000.00. Again, we believe this 
is a reasonable estimate for 2023, and expenditure adjustments can be made through the year as 
necessary. 

CY 2023 Budget Overview – Expense Projections 

Inflation – Wherever known or anticipated, inflationary adjustments have been incorporated. 
Some inflationary adjustments, e.g., insurance, have already been absorbed in the CY 2022 
budget, while others have been incorporated into the proposed budget for CY 2023, but at a 
lower level (3.5%) wherever possible. 

Cost reductions – Changes in service have been made in several areas to reduce expenses 
including phones, Internet, Printing and Copying. 

Deferred Expenditure Decisions – Several planned activities have not been included in the 
budget and decisions to proceed will be dependent upon the availability of resources. For 
example, it is hoped that we will be able to host a fall seminar series featuring the updated search 
engine. The estimated cost of travel and expenses is $15,000.00.  It has been incorporated into 
our planning process, but no budget is included. That decision will be made later in the year. 

Reserve Funds Utilization – ESS and ILR have purposefully set aside funds in the Software 
Development and Equipment Maintenance Reserve fund for the purposes of developing updated 
ILR systems - including a new search engine and interface – and for covering technology 
expenses when necessary. The reserve is intended to be used in periods when economic change 
affects operational resources.  It is proposed that several bigger ticket technology expenditures 
be paid for in this cycle with these reserve funds. Specifically, it is proposed that the following 
items be paid through the Software Development and Equipment Maintenance Reserve. 

Support for the ILR Data Storage Devices $12,100.00 
Accusoft PRIZM Licenses $20,000.00 
DB2 License (database software) $9,500.00 
Cisco Malware Software $15,000.00 
Support for the ILR Servers $5,000.00 
Support for the ILR firewall devices $6,500.00 

Total $68,100.00

Should sufficient income be available, some items may be paid from the operating budget - 
subject to approved budget amendments - and resources drawn from the reserve may be repaid 
to the reserve account. 

Backfile Redaction – While we have had a reserve fund for the redaction of backfile documents, 
in recent years that has been funded through the regular budget.  It is proposed that the reserve 
be use for these expenditures in CY 2023.  Again, should sufficient income be available, 
resources drawn from the reserve may be repaid to the reserve account 

Professional Staff – The core of Iowa Land Records is the team that keeps everything running. 
This includes the website, E-Submission, land record search services, customer service, 
accounting and payments, training and communications, policies, procedures, standards, and 
best practices. We have three talented professional software developers, a knowledgeable and 
experienced customer support team, and a policy coordinator. We currently have a vacancy in 
our communications and marketing area. Maintaining a strong team is vital to the success of Iowa 
Land Records. It is a competitive market, and the forces of wage inflation are at work. The 
proposed budget provides for necessary but not extravagant compensation adjustments for key 
members of our team. 

Action Requested. We seek your approval of the proposed budget actions. 

ESS Page 21



BUDGETED INCOME AND EXPENSES

CY 2022

Proposed Amendment

January February March April May June July August September October November December Actual

Adopted - 
August 
Amendment Difference

Income 

BudgetedIncome

Bad Payment Fee 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Misc. Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 0.00

Event Income ILR Conferences Registration 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 400.00 1000.00 1300.00 2800.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 5700.00 6400.00 ‐700.00

Sponsorships 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 0.00 200.00

POSSERVICEFEE 10032.42 8279.90 12616.62 16221.99 18867.83 15740.95 11673.56 17064.66 9980.60 7500.00 7500.00 7500.00 142978.53 127267.42 15711.11

ERECORDING SERVICEFEE

ACH

CC

DRAWDOWN

Total SERVICEFEE 91949.17 79748.66 103499.96 98861.26 102246.90 108624.14 93177.63 98441.39 87030.49 85000.00 85000.00 85000.00 1118579.60 1096738.09 21841.51

MOU Services

Policy 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2581.08 2500.00 2500.00 7581.08 0.00 7581.08

Communications 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 313.04 0.00 0.00 313.04 0.00 313.04

Events 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 362.86 0.00 0.00 362.86 0.00 362.86

Expense Reimbursement ‐ 255 103446.16 80863.17 91033.64 110939.17 83232.90 51151.77 50372.28 57543.59 53701.64 54794.88 50174.20 55000.00 842253.40 846039.09 ‐3785.69

Local Service Provider Maint. Cost Sharing Credit 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 ‐160453.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 ‐160453.01 ‐160453.01 0.00

Local Maintenance Share 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 293283.64 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 293283.64 293283.64 0.00

Total BudgetedIncome 205427.75 168891.73 207150.22 226022.42 337178.26 175916.86 156223.47 174349.64 153712.73 150751.86 145174.20 150200.00 2250999.14 2209475.23 41523.91

Expense

Budgeted Expenses

Administration

Annual Audits 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4000.00 0.00 850.00 3100.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7950.00 8350.00 ‐400.00

Accounting Software‐Services 4182.85 147.88 147.88 147.88 147.88 147.88 147.88 147.88 147.88 147.88 150.00 150.00 5813.77 5822.25 ‐8.48

Bookkeeping‐CPA‐990 4650.00 4900.00 4900.00 4900.00 4900.00 4900.00 4900.00 4900.00 4900.00 4900.00 4900.00 4900.00 58550.00 58550.00 0.00

Professional Fees

Legal Fees 2000.00 2000.00 2000.00 2000.00 2000.00 2000.00 2000.00 2000.00 2000.00 2000.00 2000.00 2000.00 24000.00 24000.00 0.00

Government Relations 1000.00 0.00 2000.00 2000.00 2000.00 2000.00 3000.00 0.00 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00 3000.00 18000.00 18000.00 0.00

Human Resources‐Oasis 1280.00 780.00 857.80 758.40 757.80 757.80 1199.85 1125.09 884.11 851.85 980.00 1470.00 11702.70 11781.65 ‐78.95

Project Manager 11900.00 11900.00 11900.00 11900.00 11900.00 11900.00 11900.00 11900.00 11900.00 11900.00 11900.00 11900.00 142800.00 142800.00 0.00

Insurance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3269.00 27704.41 35,703.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 66676.91 65937.02 739.89

ESS Meetings 0.00 263.44 400.02 522.03 380.64 400.85 9.16 571.32 142.95 548.14 0.00 1400.00 4638.55 4776.14 ‐137.59

Office Operations

Office Space Lease 2750.00 2950.00 2950.00 2950.00 2950.00 2950.00 2950.00 2950.00 2950.00 2950.00 2950.00 2950.00 35200.00 35200.00 0.00

Office Supplies 0.00 250.97 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 76.24 89.99 97.34 0.00 0.00 75.00 589.54 477.21 112.33

Official Publication Expense 16.30 38.20 20.50 0.00 26.80 0.00 15.16 45.52 58.56 14.40 45.00 45.00 325.44 371.80 ‐46.36

Postage 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 58.00 58.00 116.00 ‐58.00

Teleconference 126.59 119.05 51.26 67.39 0.00 0.00 149.76 32.25 0.00 21.87 250.00 250.00 1068.17 1888.51 ‐820.34

Telephone/Internet 550.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 8250.00 8250.00 0.00

Split in 2023

Office Tech Support 1120.00 1120.00 1120.00 1120.00 1120.00 1120.00 1120.00 1120.00 1120.00 1120.00 1120.00 1120.00 13440.00 13440.00 0.00

Printing and Copying (Color‐BW) 250.00 350.00 350.00 350.00 350.00 350.00 350.00 350.00 350.00 350.00 350.00 350.00 4100.00 4100.00 0.00

Miscellaneous Expenses 64.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 68.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 175.00 307.70 307.70 0.00

Total Administration

Marketing‐Communications

Marketing Director 12576.79 6850.86 6835.58 6835.47 6835.57 6835.58 7009.80 6446.80 6446.80 7125.85 7211.32 12816.98 93827.40 95441.91 ‐1614.51

Administrative/Marketing Support 10749.89 5888.22 5999.02 5838.01 4844.29 4677.28 ‐141.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 37855.68 37855.68 0.00

Computing Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2661.07 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2661.07 3061.07 ‐400.00

Education & Outreach

ILR Conferences 0.00 0.00 0.00 230.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5235.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 5465.82 6430.00 ‐964.18

Tradeshows/Exhibits/Sponsorship 0.00 1000.00 0.00 215.00 0.00 0.00 600.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1815.00 2065.00 ‐250.00

Seminars & Workshops 45.66 0.00 30.00 0.00 0.00 ‐56.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 19.41 2419.41 ‐2400.00

Memberships 0.00 800.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 625.00 6375.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 8500.00 5625.00 2875.00

Conferences and Meetings 596.40 0.00 1348.82 422.52 399.00 534.00 300.00 1160.19 1290.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 6050.94 10715.74 ‐4664.80

Campaigns 0.00 0.00 27.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 31.16 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 58.41 2177.25 ‐2118.84

Software, Equipment and Hosted 638.35 559.66 1151.87 559.66 559.66 561.78 569.72 719.28 561.78 4161.78 3700.00 4520.00 18263.54 14046.32 4217.22

Marketing Supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 74.66 0.00 0.00 0.00 50.00 124.66 174.66 ‐50.00

Promotional Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2184.92 150.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2500.00 4835.76 3847.82 987.94

Total Marketing‐Communications

Proposed ‐ November 10, 2022 Page 1

DRAFT

ESS Page 22



BUDGETED INCOME AND EXPENSES

CY 2022

Proposed Amendment

January February March April May June July August September October November December Actual

Adopted - 
August 
Amendment Difference

Customer Support Account Manager 7508.30 7976.32 7725.02 7477.68 7648.90 7643.91 7772.40 7215.40 7215.40 7718.56 7718.56 11338.06 94958.51 99450.19 ‐4491.69

Coordinator 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1464.69 2511.51 3571.14 2810.75 2955.68 4109.76 17423.53 17720.93 ‐297.40

Computing Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5322.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5322.00 6122.00 ‐800.00

Professional Development 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Customer Support

Policy Coordination

Policy Coordinator 6.37 413.63 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4129.22 6258.61 6292.22 6266.00 6400.00 9383.70 39149.75 51180.07 ‐12030.32

Computing Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2661.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2661.00 3061.00 ‐400.00

Professional Development 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Policy Coordination

ILR System Operations

Development Team

Technical Lead 12021.89 11979.88 11983.58 11687.92 11538.64 11538.64 14297.60 11538.64 11538.64 11926.66 12111.71 18177.63 150341.43 155494.99 ‐5153.56

Senior Developer 10938.49 10935.48 10939.18 10939.66 10730.70 10565.18 12483.13 10565.18 10565.17 11055.62 10790.51 16385.09 136893.39 140680.04 ‐3786.65

Technical Support & Developmen 8832.78 8793.55 8795.86 8795.76 8795.87 8353.89 9327.93 8281.40 8281.40 2518.91 9105.47 13244.04 103126.86 115289.75 ‐12162.89

Developer 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Professional Development 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3300.00 0.00 3300.00 3300.00 0.00

External Development & Services

FF Redaction Services 7957.05 5919.33 5136.55 6727.88 6370.83 6569.10 7148.25 7092.30 6348.45 5345.90 9000.00 9000.00 82615.64 90828.99 ‐8213.35

BF Redaction Services 1492.98 0.00 0.00 2624.05 634.80 449.63 2601.40 799.20 1279.35 770.48 1000.00 1000.00 12651.89 12802.86 ‐150.97

Software Development Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Technical Consulting 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6000.00 7400.00 13400.00 13400.00 0.00

Data Center & Hosting Services 3052.90 3052.90 3052.90 3052.90 3052.90 3052.90 3052.90 3052.90 3052.90 3052.90 3100.00 3100.00 36729.00 36870.30 ‐141.30

Domain Registration 0.00 0.00 30.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 29.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 60.06 60.06 0.00

Software‐License‐Maintenance

Accusoft‐PRIZM 0.00 0.00 9901.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9901.00 1556.00 8345.00

AWS 626.98 606.50 620.30 585.69 598.57 607.40 597.79 608.25 667.35 687.57 1000.00 1000.00 8206.40 372.36 7834.04

Browser Stack 372.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 372.36 19802.00 ‐19429.64

Certificates ‐ Digicert 0.00 198.00 4248.40 ‐2848.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5000.00 0.00 6598.20 8622.24 ‐2024.04

Cisco URL/Malware 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 16033.98 ‐16033.98

City‐State‐Zip 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 214.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 214.00 3200.00 ‐2986.00

DB2 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8622.24 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8622.24 7598.20 1024.04

Duo‐Security 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 0.00

FTP  195.94 97.97 97.97 97.97 97.97 97.97 1106.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1792.75 305.28 1487.47

GEO‐IP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 305.28 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 305.28 214.00 91.28

JetBrains 0.00 0.00 1556.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1556.00 5000.00 ‐3444.00

JIRA 46.55 43.34 40.13 40.13 40.13 40.13 40.13 37.45 37.45 37.45 41.00 41.00 484.89 0.00 484.89

Nessus 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3413.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 3413.30 0.00 3413.30

Security Monitoring (Alien Vault) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5000.00 5000.00 1792.75 3207.25

Server Support 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 495.54 ‐495.54

Slack 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 22.04 540.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 562.38 8851.48 ‐8289.10

SmartNet ‐ firewall 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6375.00 6375.00 0.00 6375.00

SUSE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

VMWare 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 16033.98 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 16033.98 662.04 15371.94

VPN (Anyconnect) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4000.00 ‐4000.00

Zoom 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 84.53 84.53 84.53 0.00 0.00 0.00 1500.00 1753.59 1669.06 84.53

Computing and Equipment (Cap.)

Developer Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 0.00

System Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00 1504.15 0.00 0.00 1847.11 0.00 0.00 4727.06 0.00 10000.00 18078.32 14351.26 3727.06

Local CC Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 598.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 598.00 0.00 598.00

Total ILR System Operations

Proposed ‐ November 10, 2022 Page 2

DRAFT

ESS Page 23



BUDGETED INCOME AND EXPENSES

CY 2022

Proposed Amendment

January February March April May June July August September October November December Actual

Adopted - 
August 
Amendment Difference

Local Maint. Expense 0.00 24.99 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 290334.57 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 290359.56 290359.56 0.00

Payment Expenses

Bank Account Analysis Fee 895.82 922.22 927.99 948.57 929.74 1039.09 1402.21 1587.91 1462.25 1238.54 1000.00 1000.00 13354.34 11663.43 1690.91

Bank Service Charges 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 90.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 90.00 90.00 0.00

Gateway Transaction Fees

OnlineTransactionFees ‐ PS 10566.11 3922.86 3467.17 5936.81 4723.12 5134.81 4844.18 5232.35 4107.40 4947.72 5500.00 5500.00 63882.53 66750.96 ‐2868.43

OnlineTransactionFees ‐ Verichec 2950.03 2554.46 2427.00 2868.07 2780.61 2888.16 3038.18 2744.44 3013.62 2778.98 2850.00 2850.00 33743.55 33568.33 175.22

POSTransactionsFees 7137.60 7431.59 6352.98 9698.10 12034.10 13415.43 11078.38 8639.27 7899.71 7649.08 9400.00 9400.00 110136.24 112469.80 ‐2333.56

Total Gateway Transaction Fees

Total Payment Expenses

Total Budgeted Expenses 129099.18 105491.30 120292.33 111653.50 134504.74 121232.89 452127.72 148930.32 128096.00 111323.95 133529.25 187734.26 1884015.44 1944717.60 ‐60702.15

Net Budgeted Income 76328.57 63400.43 86857.89 114368.92 202673.52 54683.97 ‐295904.25 25419.32 25616.73 39427.91 11644.95 ‐37534.26 366983.70 264757.63 102226.06

1

Proposed ‐ November 10, 2022 Page 3

DRAFT

ESS Page 24



BUDGETED INCOME AND EXPENSES

CY 2023

Proposed

2023 January February March April May June July August September October November December 2023 Proposed

Proposed 
November -  
Amendment Difference

Income 

BudgetedIncome

Bad Payment Fee 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Misc. Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 0.00

Event Income ILR Conferences Registration 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7000.00 5700.00 1300.00

Sponsorships 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 ‐200.00

POSSERVICEFEE 8000.00 8000.00 8000.00 8000.00 8000.00 8000.00 8000.00 8000.00 8000.00 8000.00 8000.00 8000.00 96000.00 142978.53 ‐46978.53

ERECORDING SERVICEFEE

ACH

CC

DRAWDOWN

Total SERVICEFEE 85000.00 85000.00 85000.00 85000.00 85000.00 85000.00 85000.00 85000.00 85000.00 85000.00 85000.00 85000.00 1020000.00 1118579.60 ‐98579.60

MOU Services

Policy 3250.00 3250.00 3250.00 3250.00 3250.00 3250.00 1675.00 1675.00 1675.00 1675.00 1675.00 1675.00 7581.08

Communications 0.00 0.00 1000.00 0.00 0.00 1000.00 0.00 0.00 1000.00 0.00 0.00 1000.00 313.04

Events 0.00 0.00 1000.00 0.00 0.00 1000.00 0.00 0.00 1000.00 0.00 0.00 1000.00 362.86

Expense Reimbursement ‐ 255 51000.00 51000.00 51000.00 51000.00 51000.00 51000.00 51000.00 51000.00 51000.00 51000.00 51000.00 51000.00 612000.00 842253.40 ‐230253.40

Local Service Provider Maint. Cost Sharing Credit 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 ‐170775.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 ‐170775.00 ‐160453.01 ‐10321.99

Local Maintenance Share 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 304000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 304000.00 293283.64 10716.36

Total BudgetedIncome 147250.00 147250.00 149250.00 147250.00 280475.00 149250.00 145675.00 145675.00 154675.00 145675.00 145675.00 147875.00 1868425.00 2250999.14 ‐382574.14

Expense

Budgeted Expenses

Administration

Annual Audits 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4200.00 0.00 850.00 3300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8350.00 7950.00 400.00

Accounting Software‐Services 4555.00 155.00 155.00 155.00 155.00 155.00 155.00 155.00 155.00 155.00 155.00 155.00 6260.00 5813.77 446.23

Bookkeeping‐CPA‐990 4900.00 5400.00 5400.00 5400.00 5400.00 5400.00 5400.00 5400.00 5400.00 5400.00 5400.00 5400.00 64300.00 58550.00 5750.00

Professional Fees

Legal Fees 2250.00 2250.00 2250.00 2250.00 2250.00 2250.00 2250.00 2250.00 2250.00 2250.00 2250.00 2250.00 27000.00 24000.00 3000.00

Government Relations 2000.00 2000.00 2000.00 2000.00 2000.00 2000.00 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00 18000.00 18000.00 0.00

Human Resources‐Oasis 980.00 980.00 980.00 980.00 980.00 1470.00 980.00 980.00 980.00 980.00 980.00 1470.00 12740.00 11702.70 1037.30

Project Manager 12400.00 12400.00 12400.00 12400.00 12400.00 12400.00 12400.00 12400.00 12400.00 12400.00 12400.00 12400.00 148800.00 142800.00 6000.00

Insurance 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3500.00 29100.00 37,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 70100.00 66676.91 3423.09

ESS Meetings 0.00 0.00 750.00 0.00 0.00 750.00 0.00 0.00 750.00 0.00 0.00 750.00 3000.00 4638.55 ‐1638.55

Office Operations

Office Space Lease 2950.00 3050.00 3050.00 3050.00 3050.00 3050.00 3050.00 3050.00 3050.00 3050.00 3050.00 3050.00 36500.00 35200.00 1300.00

Office Supplies 0.00 0.00 75.00 0.00 0.00 75.00 0.00 0.00 75.00 0.00 0.00 75.00 300.00 589.54 ‐289.54

Official Publication Expense 45.00 45.00 45.00 45.00 45.00 45.00 45.00 45.00 45.00 45.00 45.00 45.00 540.00 325.44 214.56

Postage 0.00 0.00 63.00 0.00 0.00 63.00 0.00 0.00 63.00 0.00 0.00 63.00 252.00 58.00 194.00

Teleconference 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 1800.00 1068.17 731.83

Telephone 225.00 225.00 225.00 225.00 225.00 225.00 225.00 225.00 225.00 225.00 225.00 225.00 2700.00 8250.00 ‐5550.00

Internet 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 2400.00 2400.00

Office Tech Support 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00 12000.00 13440.00 ‐1440.00

Printing and Copying (Color‐BW) 340.00 340.00 340.00 340.00 340.00 340.00 340.00 340.00 340.00 340.00 340.00 340.00 4080.00 4100.00 ‐20.00

Miscellaneous Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 300.00 300.00 307.70 ‐7.70

Total Administration

Marketing‐Communications

Marketing Director 7718.56 7718.56 7718.56 7718.56 7718.56 10798.15 7718.56 7718.56 7718.56 7718.56 7718.56 11176.09 99159.84 93827.40 5332.44

Administrative/Marketing Support 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 37855.68 ‐37855.68

Computing Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2661.07 ‐2661.07

Education & Outreach

ILR Conferences 0.00 0.00 0.00 230.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7000.00 0.00 0.00 7230.00 5465.82 1764.18

Tradeshows/Exhibits/Sponsorship 0.00 450.00 1500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 800.00 300.00 0.00 0.00 3050.00 1815.00 1235.00

Seminars & Workshops 0.00 275.00 30.00 275.00 0.00 0.00 275.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 275.00 1130.00 19.41 1110.59

Memberships 0.00 800.00 250.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2050.00 8500.00 ‐6450.00

Conferences and Meetings 500.00 0.00 2850.00 0.00 500.00 1350.00 0.00 400.00 5000.00 300.00 1350.00 0.00 12250.00 6050.94 6199.06

Campaigns 250.00 0.00 0.00 250.00 0.00 200.00 250.00 0.00 250.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 1400.00 58.41 1341.59

Software, Equipment and Hosted 590.00 590.00 1190.00 590.00 590.00 590.00 590.00 590.00 590.00 590.00 5140.00 3590.00 15230.00 18263.54 ‐3033.54

Marketing Supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 124.66 ‐124.66

Promotional Expenses 0.00 2500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2500.00 4835.76 ‐2335.76

Total Marketing‐Communications

Proposed ‐ November 10, 2022 Page 1
ESS Page 25



BUDGETED INCOME AND EXPENSES

CY 2023

Proposed

2023 January February March April May June July August September October November December 2023 Proposed

Proposed 
November -  
Amendment Difference

Customer Support Account Manager 8104.49 8104.49 8104.49 8104.49 8104.49 11338.06 8104.49 8104.49 8104.49 8104.49 8104.49 11737.89 104120.83 94958.51 9162.32

Coordinator 2800.00 2800.00 2800.00 2800.00 2800.00 4109.76 2876.83 2876.83 2876.83 2876.83 2876.83 4315.25 36809.17 17423.53 19385.64

Computing Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5322.00 ‐5322.00

Professional Development 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Customer Support

Policy Coordination

Policy Coordinator 6400.00 6400.00 6400.00 6400.00 6400.00 6400.00 6400.00 6625.00 6625.00 6625.00 6625.00 6625.00 77925.00 39149.75 38775.25

Computing Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2661.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2661.00 2661.00 0.00

Professional Development 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Policy Coordination

ILR System Operations

Development Team

Technical Lead 12642.26 12642.26 12642.26 12642.26 12642.26 18177.63 12523.00 12523.00 12523.00 12523.00 12523.00 18813.85 162817.75 150341.43 12476.32

Senior Developer 11717.73 11717.73 11717.73 11717.73 11717.73 16385.09 11717.73 11717.73 11717.73 11717.73 11717.73 16958.57 150520.96 136893.39 13627.56

Technical Support & Developmen 9188.25 9188.25 9188.25 9188.25 9188.25 13244.99 9188.25 9188.25 9188.25 9188.25 9188.25 13708.56 118836.05 103126.86 15709.19

Developer 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Professional Development 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3300.00 0.00 3300.00 3300.00 0.00

External Development & Services

FF Redaction Services 7000.00 7000.00 7000.00 7000.00 7000.00 7000.00 7000.00 7000.00 7000.00 7000.00 7000.00 7000.00 84000.00 82615.64 1384.36

BF Redaction Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12651.89 ‐12651.89

Software Development Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Technical Consulting 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13400.00 ‐13400.00

Data Center & Hosting Services 3100.00 3100.00 3100.00 3100.00 3100.00 3100.00 3100.00 3100.00 3100.00 3100.00 3100.00 3100.00 37200.00 36729.00 471.00

Domain Registration 0.00 0.00 30.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 40.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 70.30 60.06 10.24

Software‐License‐Maintenance

Accusoft‐PRIZM 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9901.00 ‐9901.00

AWS 750.00 750.00 750.00 750.00 750.00 750.00 750.00 750.00 750.00 750.00 750.00 750.00 9000.00 8206.40 793.60

Browser Stack 400.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 400.00 372.36 27.64

Certificates ‐ Digicert 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5000.00 0.00 5000.00 6598.20 ‐1598.20

Cisco URL/Malware 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

City‐State‐Zip 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 250.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 250.00 214.00 36.00

DB2 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8622.24 ‐8622.24

Duo‐Security 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 0.00

FTP  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1200.00 1792.75 ‐592.75

GEO‐IP 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 350.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 350.00 305.28 44.72

JetBrains 0.00 0.00 1900.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1900.00 1556.00 344.00

JIRA 41.00 41.00 41.00 41.00 41.00 41.00 41.00 41.00 41.00 41.00 41.00 41.00 492.00 484.89 7.11

Nessus 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3600.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 3600.00 3413.30 186.70

Security Monitoring (formerly Ali 0.00 0.00 0.00 5000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5000.00 5000.00 0.00

Server Support 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Slack 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 800.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 800.00 562.38 237.62

SmartNet ‐ firewall 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6375.00 ‐6375.00

SUSE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

VMWare 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 16033.98 ‐16033.98

VPN (Anyconnect) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Zoom 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1500.00 1753.59

Computing and Equipment (Cap.)

Developer Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 0.00

System Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 18078.32 ‐18078.32

Local CC Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2000.00 2000.00 598.00 1402.00

Total ILR System Operations

Proposed ‐ November 10, 2022 Page 2
ESS Page 26



BUDGETED INCOME AND EXPENSES

CY 2023

Proposed

2023 January February March April May June July August September October November December 2023 Proposed

Proposed 
November -  
Amendment Difference

Local Maint. Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 304000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 304000.00 290359.56 13640.44

Payment Expenses

Bank Account Analysis Fee 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00 12000.00 13354.34 ‐1354.34

Bank Service Charges 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 90.00 ‐90.00

Gateway Transaction Fees

OnlineTransactionFees ‐ PS 4900.00 4900.00 4900.00 4900.00 4900.00 4900.00 4900.00 4900.00 4900.00 4900.00 4900.00 4900.00 58800.00 63882.53 ‐5082.53

OnlineTransactionFees ‐ Verichec 2600.00 2600.00 2600.00 2600.00 2600.00 2600.00 2600.00 2600.00 2600.00 2600.00 2600.00 2600.00 31200.00 33743.55 ‐2543.55

POSTransactionsFees 5500.00 5500.00 5500.00 5500.00 5500.00 5500.00 5500.00 5500.00 5500.00 5500.00 5500.00 5500.00 66000.00 110136.24 ‐44136.24

Total Gateway Transaction Fees

Total Payment Expenses

Total Budgeted Expenses 117197.29 116272.29 120295.59 118002.29 112747.29 145357.68 448730.86 151979.86 125267.86 119029.86 125629.86 145664.20 1844674.90 1884015.44 ‐39340.55

Net Budgeted Income 30052.71 30977.71 28954.41 29247.71 167727.71 3892.32 ‐303055.86 ‐6304.86 29407.14 26645.14 20045.14 2210.80 23750.10 366983.70 ‐343233.59

Proposed ‐ November 10, 2022 Page 3
ESS Page 27



The Communications and Marketing Director is a full-time position in service to the Electronic Services 
System doing business as Iowa Land Records. 
 
Reports To: Iowa Land Records Project Manager 
Term: Permanent, Full-Time 
Classification: Professional, technical 
Hours: Flexible Between 8:00 AM and 5:00 PM; coordinated with other 
 team member schedules 
Travel Involved: Occasional regional or state-level meetings; 
Location: Johnston, IA; remote hybrid work options 
 
Position Description:  The system provides an easy-to-use online search and electronic submission 
service which enables real estate professionals and citizens to search and submit real estate documents 
in all of Iowa’s 99 counties. The Marketing & Communications Director implements all Iowa Land Records 
marketing, communications, and event planning efforts in service to our customers, users, and internal 
team. The position reports to the Iowa Land Records Project Manager and will work in collaboration with 
the administrative team (account and customer service team, and the ESS policy coordinator), and 
engage with the software development team as needed. 
 
Iowa Land Records is seeking a tech savvy individual who enjoys implementing marketing and 
communications projects from strategy to implementation. A qualified candidate should have the ability to 
manage multiple projects at one time, meet deadlines regularly and collaborate with other team members 
effectively. 
 
Background Requirements:  

BA Degree in Communication, Marketing, or a related field 
3 years of marketing and communications related experience 
Experience with the execution of events, meetings, and conferences 
Excellent verbal and written communication skills 
Excellent soft skills and a professional demeanor and presence 
Commitment to excellent service for customers and key stakeholders 

 
Proficiency with the following tools is required for the Communications and Marketing Director position: 

• Office 365 (Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Outlook, Teams, SharePoint/One Drive) 
• Software used in the office environment for reporting and issue tracking including JIRA, 

Confluence, Slack and other applications such as Monday.com 
• Adobe Creative Cloud (Primarily Acrobat, InDesign and Premier Pro or Rush, and to some extent 

Illustrator, Photoshop and other CC tools) 
• Adobe Technical Communications Suite (Primarily Adobe Captivate, and to some extent other 

Technical Communications Suite applications) 
• Virtual Meeting and Webinar Tools (Primarily Zoom and Microsoft Teams, and to some extent 

Adobe Connect) 
• Salesforce Marketing Cloud 
• Website content management systems (Primarily WordPress) 
• Bulk e-mail systems such as Mailchimp (including recipient management) 
• Survey Monkey or similar tools 
• Social media (Primarily Twitter and LinkedIn) 
• Proficiency in searching for information via the Internet through Google or other systems 

 
 
The following skills are desired for the Communications and Marketing Director position but not required: 

• Experience with the public land registry, recording, electronic recording, online records 
management or research, or other public facing online services 

• Experience using the Iowa Land Records website and applications 
• Experience with basic statistical reporting and the use of cross-tabs and pivot table tools 
• Capacity to provide customer support with a courteous and professional manner 

ESS Page 28



 
Compensation 
Compensation in the range of $60,000.00 to $80,000.00 annually based on background, demonstrated 
proficiencies, and experience. 
 
Application Submission 
Individuals who are interested in the position should submit a cover letter and resume to Phil Dunshee at 
Electronic Services System, 8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2, Johnston, IA  50131.  Applicants may also 
submit information via email to phil@clris.com.  Selected applicants may be asked to submit a portfolio as 
a part of an evaluation process. 
 
 
 

ESS Page 29

mailto:phil@clris.com


Last statement: September 30, 2022 Page 1 of 3
This statement: October 31, 2022 XXXXXX3596
Total days in statement period: 31 (0) {0}

Direct inquiries to:
ELECTRONIC SERVICES SYSTEM 515-245-2863
8711 WINDSOR PKWY SUITE 2
JOHNSTON IA 50131-2296 Bankers Trust Company

453 7TH Street
Des Moines, IA  50309

 Commercial Checking-Analysis

Account number XXXXXX3596 Beginning balance $448,875.27
Total additions 100,100.00
Total subtractions 146.69
Ending balance $548,828.58

DEBITS
Date Description Subtractions
10-04 ' ACH Debit 100.00

ESS RECORDING FUNDS DISB CCD ESS RECORDING
10-18 ' Analysis Service Fee 46.69

NET ACCOUNT ANALYSIS FOR 09/22

CREDITS
Date Description Additions
10-06 ' ACH Cr Return Item 100.00
10-07 Deposit 50,000.00
10-14 Deposit 50,000.00

DAILY BALANCES
Date Amount Date Amount Date Amount
09-30 448,875.27 10-06 448,875.27 10-14 548,875.27
10-04 448,775.27 10-07 498,875.27 10-18 548,828.58

       Thank you for banking with Bankers Trust Company

ESS Page 30



BREAK

ESS Page 31



 

Section 4.  Compensation.   
 
In consideration of Service Provider providing ESS and Service Provider Counties with 
the Deliverables, Developments, Service Provider ESS API Developments and 
Documentation as specified in Exhibits A, B and C, subject to all terms and conditions, 
Service Provider shall be entitled to receive fees as stated herein. It is expressly 
understood and agreed that in no event will the standard fees or compensation to be 
paid hereunder exceed the annual sum of $2768.46 per Service Provider County. 
 
The Service Provider Counties shall be jointly identified by ESS and the Service Provider 
for each fiscal year beginning July 1. The identification of Service Provider Counties shall 
be completed as soon as practicable, not later than first business day each June prior to 
the beginning of a new fiscal year on July 1.   
 
If the Term of the Agreement is extended as provided in Section 5, the annual 
compensation per Service Provider County in the subsequent fiscal year shall be 
adjusted by the cost of living adjustment (COLA) published during the contract year by 
the Social Security Administration, not to exceed 3.5 percent. See: 
https://www.ssa.gov/oact/cola/colasummary.html 
 
Except as otherwise amended by the Association through approved change vehicles, the 
Association shall not be required to pay any additional fees, expenses, costs, charges or 
other amounts in connection with the Deliverables, Developments, Service Provider ESS 
API Developments, and Documentation to be provided hereunder other than as 
expressly stated herein. 
 

Section 5.  Term 
 
The initial term of this agreement is one year; July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020. The 
term of this Agreement shall be automatically extended for subsequent one‐year 
periods unless Service Provider or ESS is provided with a notice of intent by the other 
party to not extend the Agreement. Such notice shall be provided no less than ninety 
(90) days prior to the expiration of each one‐year term. 
 
 
 
 
 

ESS Page 32

pdunshee
Highlight



ESS Page 33

pdunshee
Highlight

pdunshee
Highlight

pdunshee
Highlight

pdunshee
Highlight



ESS Page 34

pdunshee
Highlight



PLACEHOLDER -
BERGAN KDV

ESS Page 35



 

   
  

  

 

3 4 0 8  W OO D L AN D  AV .   S UI T E 2 1 0     WES T D ES  MOI N ES  I O WA  5 0 2 6 6       P H:   5 1 5 .3 1 4 .9 4 6 2  

THE RAFFERTY GROUP 

 

 

 

     September 20, 2022 

 

 

VIA E-MAIL:   

 

Mr. Phil Dunshee 

Electronic Services System 

8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2 

Johnston, Iowa 50131 

 

Re: 2023 Legislative Engagement – Electronic Services System 

 

Dear Phil, 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide a proposal for government relation services 

for Iowa Land Records, the Electronic Services System, for the 2023 calendar year.  This 

letter outlines the scope, compensation, and other terms of the proposal.    

 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The engagement will consist of representing the Electronic Services System (“ESS”) 

before the executive and legislative branches of Iowa state government for the 2023 

calendar year. The Rafferty Group team supporting ESS will consist of Bob Rafferty and 

Nick Laning.  The engagement will consist of the following: 
 

• Monitor all bills, study bills, amendments and other legislative activities relating to 

or having a potential impact on Iowa Land Records, in particular real estate 

transactions and the recording of such transactions.  

• Facilitate ongoing communications and strengthen relationships with policymakers 

concerning Iowa Land Records and the Electronic Services System. 

• Assist with facilitating communications and strengthen relationships with various 

stakeholders and associations, as well as executive or judicial branch offices as 

appropriate. 

• Promote legislative initiatives as established by the governing board of ESS. 

• Set up and participate in briefings with key legislators and legislative leaders. 

• Actively communicate and coordinate with legislative liaisons for the Iowa County 

Recorders Association during the legislative session.  

 

ESS Page 36



 

 

Regular communication, as deemed appropriate, will occur to keep the project manager 

for ESS informed on the above scope of work.    

 

COMPENSATION 

The cost for support during the 2023 calendar years shall be $19,000 plus expenses not 

to exceed $500 per year.  The amount will be invoiced monthly at $2,000 a month from 

January through July, and $1000 per month from August through December, to be 

invoiced by the 10th of the following month. Expenses will also be billed monthly.   

 

If the foregoing terms and conditions of our representation meet the Electronic Service 

System’s needs and expectations, please indicate your acceptance by executing this letter 

in the space provided below and return it to our office. 

 

Please let us know if you have any questions, need additional information, or if we need to 

modify the proposal. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 
      Robert L. Rafferty 

 
 

 

Read and agreed to this ____ day of _________________, 2022. 

      ELECTRONIC SERVICES SYSTEM 

 

      _____________________________ 

      By:  Phil Dunshee,  

      Its: Project Manager 

      

  

ESS Page 37



 
Brick, Gentry, Bowers, Swartz & Levis, P.C. 

6701 Westown Parkway, Suite 100  West Des Moines, Iowa 50266  T: 515-274-1450  F: 515-274-1488  www.brickgentrylaw.com 

 
                            ATTORNEYS & COUNSELORS at LAW 

  PAUL A. DREY 

ATTORNEY 

 

TELEPHONE: 515-271-1765 

FACSIMILE: 515-271-1766 

E-MAIL:  paul.drey@brickgentrylaw.com 

October 26, 2022 

VIA E-MAIL 

phil@clris.com 

 

Electronic Services System 

Phil Dunshee, PMP, MPA, Project Manager 

Iowa Land Records 

8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2 

Johnston, IA 50131 

 

Re: Representation of Electronic Services System (“ESS”) 

 

Dear Phil: 

 

The purpose of this letter is to confirm the terms and conditions for our legal representation of ESS.  

The term of this arrangement will commence January 1, 2023 and run through December 31, 2023.  As a 

part of our representation over the past years, we have helped clarify the governing structure of ESS and its 

relationship to the Iowa County Recorders Association as well as assisted in structuring and strategically 

planning for certain legislative and procedural changes.   

 

Our fees will be invoiced pursuant to a retainer basis for general practice and issues representation 

in the amount of $2,250.00 per month.  Any expenses, disbursements, and client advances will not be 

included in this retainer, and will be billed separately.  This arrangement will be deemed effective January 

1, 2023 and run through December 31, 2023, at which time the parties will review this arrangement and 

make an amendment, if necessary.   Litigation, lobbying, intellectual property, and any other substantial 

project outside of the normal course of business will be excluded from this arrangement.  For these types of 

legal matters, our fees will be based on the hourly billing rates charged by each lawyer in the firm who 

performs work on this matter.  Partners bill at a rate of $275 per hour, Associates at a rate of $175 per hour, 

and paralegals and law clerks at a rate of $100 per hour or less. 

 

Enclosed with this letter is a statement entitled “General Provisions” setting forth additional terms 

and conditions, all of which are incorporated herein by reference and shall apply to our representation to 

the extent not expressly modified in this letter.   

 

If the foregoing correctly reflects your understanding of the terms and conditions of our 

representation, please indicate your acceptance by executing a copy of this letter in the space provided 

below and return it to our office.  We are pleased to have this opportunity to continue to represent 

Electronic Services System and thank you for this opportunity. 

 

Very truly yours, 

 
Paul A. Drey 

PAD:pm 

ESS Page 38

http://www.brickgentrylaw.com/
mailto:paul.drey@brickgentrylaw.com
mailto:phil@clris.com


 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF ENGAGEMENT TERMS 

 

 I, Phil Dunshee, on behalf of Electronic Services System, have read the foregoing engagement letter 

and general provisions of legal representation, and hereby agree to be jointly and severally bound by all terms 

outlined.  By signing this acceptance letter, I hereby agree to the terms of legal representation outlined in this 

engagement letter on this the ____ day of ___________________, 2022. 

 

ELECTRONIC SERVICES SYSTEM 

 

 

        

By:  Phil Dunshee, Project Manager 

 

ESS Page 39



 

 

GENERAL PROVISIONS – LEGAL REPRESENTATION 

 

The following provisions will apply to the relationship between Brick Gentry P.C. and you, 

the client: 

 

1. Fees for services rendered will be based on the reasonable value of those services as 

determined in accordance with the American Bar Association and Iowa Rules of Professional 

Conduct.  Such fees will be based primarily on the agreed upon retainer amount.  Billing differs, 

depending generally on the attorney's experience and years of practice, and the firm adjusts these 

billings from time to time.  The time for which a client will be charged will include, but will not be 

limited to, telephone and office conferences with a client and counsel, consultants and others; 

conferences among our legal personnel; factual investigation; legal research; responding to clients' 

requests for us to provide information to their auditors in connection with reviews or audits of 

financial statements; drafting of letters and other documents; travel time; and time in a general 

advisory role.  In an effort to reduce legal fees, we use paralegal personnel and student law clerks.  

Time devoted by paralegals and law clerks to client matters included in the retainer amount.  Law 

clerk and paralegal billings are specifically listed on our statements.  Other factors may be taken into 

consideration in determining our fees, including the responsibility assumed, the novelty and 

difficulty of the legal problem involved, the benefit resulting to the client and any unforeseen 

circumstances arising in the course of our representation. 

 

2. In addition to our fees, we will be entitled to payment or reimbursement for costs and 

expenses incurred in performing services such as photocopying, messenger and delivery service, 

computerized research, travel (including mileage, parking, airfare, lodging, meals and ground 

transportation), long-distance telephone, telecopying, word processing, court costs and filing fees.  

Certain of such items may be charged at more than our direct cost to cover our overhead.  Unless 

special arrangements are made at the outset, fees and expenses of others will not be paid by us and 

will be the responsibility of, and billed directly to, the client. 

 

3. Although we may from time to time for a client's convenience furnish estimates of 

fees or costs that we anticipate will be incurred, these estimates are subject to unforeseen 

circumstances and are by their nature inexact. 

 

4. Fees and expenses will be billed monthly and are payable upon presentation.  We 

expect prompt payment.  We reserve the right to postpone or defer providing additional services or to 

discontinue our representation if billed amounts are not paid when due. 

 

5. A client shall have the right at any time to terminate our services and representation 

upon written notice to the firm.  Such termination shall not, however, relieve the client of the 

obligation to pay for all services rendered and costs or expenses paid or incurred on behalf of the 

client prior to the date of such termination. 

 

6. We reserve the right to withdraw from our representation if, among other things, the 

client fails to honor the terms of the engagement letter, the client fails to cooperate or follow our 

advice on a material matter, or any fact or circumstance that would, in our view, render our 

continuing representation unlawful or unethical.  If we elect to withdraw, the client will take all steps 

necessary to free us of any obligation to perform further, including the execution of any documents 

necessary to complete our withdrawal, and we will be entitled to be paid for all services rendered and 

costs and expenses paid or incurred on behalf of the client to the date of withdrawal. 

ESS Page 40



 
 

 

 

7. We make no guarantee as to the outcome of the case.  Nothing in this agreement and 

no statement to you, the client, will be construed as a promise or guarantee about the outcome. 

 

8. If any claim or action is brought against us or any personnel of the firm and such 

claim arises from the client's negligence or misconduct, the client will hold us harmless and 

indemnify us for all damages incurred. 

ESS Page 41



Contract Terms and Conditions 

Amendment Number 1 

This 1st amendment to the Agreement for Consulting Services (Agreement) made and effective 
as of January 1, 2022 by and between the Electronic Services System (ESS) and Enterprise Iowa, 
Inc., a company organized under the laws of the State of Iowa (Service Provider).  The parties 
agree to amend the agreement as provided in Section 2 to adjust the maximum compensation 
amount and to modify the terms for reimbursable expenses to reflect changes in operational 
practices and changes in the project budget. 

1. Compensation.  For the period of January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023, Section 3.1 is
amended as follows:

Section 3.  Compensation and Additional Rights and Remedies.  

3.1 Compensation.   In consideration of Service Provider providing the Electronic Services 
System with the deliverables in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, 
Service Provider shall be entitled to receive the fees associated with such deliverables as specified 
in Schedule A, subject to all terms and conditions of this Agreement, including, without 
limitation Section 3.2 (Invoices). 

It is expressly understood and agreed that in no event will the total fees or compensation for 
Project Management activities to be paid hereunder exceed the sum of $142,800.00 $148,800.00 
per fiscal year, as it pertains to Schedule A included with this document or unless otherwise 
amended by ESS through approved change vehicles. 

Notwithstanding the compensation limits specified herein, the maximum fees for Project 
Management activities to be paid may be adjusted annually for inflation subject to the availability 
of resources and the approval of the ESS Coordinating Committee. 

Except as otherwise amended by ESS through approved change vehicles, ESS shall not be 
required to pay any additional fees, expenses, costs, charges or other amounts in connection with 
the deliverables to be provided hereunder other than as expressly stated herein.  Service Provider 
is not entitled to payment for any deliverables provided under this Agreement if ESS reasonably 
determines that any deliverables or services have not been satisfactorily or completely delivered 
or performed, or that any deliverable fails to meet any applicable specification. No payment, 
including final payment, shall be construed as acceptance of defective deliverables or incomplete 
work, and Service Provider shall remain responsible for full performance in strict compliance 
with this Agreement.  No advance payments shall be made for any deliverables provided by 
Service Provider pursuant to this Agreement. 

2. Erroneous Payments and Credits.  Section 3.3 is amended to correct a typographical error.
The Section is amended as follows:

3.3 Erroneous Payments and Credits.  Service Provider shall promptly pay or refund to ESS 
the full amount of any overpayment or erroneous payment within 30 business days after either 
discovery by the Service Provider or notification by ESS of the overpayment or erroneous 
payment.  ESS may, in its sole discretion, elect to have Service Provider apply any amounts due 
to ESS under this Section 5.4 3.4 against any amounts payable by ESS under this Agreement. 

DRAFT

ESS Page 42



 

 2

 
2.  Reimbursable Expenses.  Section 3.4 is amended to modify the terms for reimbursable 
expenses to reflect changes in operational practices and changes in the project budget.  The 
Section is amended as follows: 
 
3.4   Reimbursable Expenses.  The Service Provider may be reimbursed for other expenses 
including but not limited to travel, mileage, meals and lodging expenses, external consulting, and 
operational expenses such as telecommunications, postage, printing and publication, office 
facilities, computer equipment and software, exhibit and educational expenses, banking service 
fees, domain registration and other project-related expenses. Reimbursement is subject to the 
approval of the ESS Coordinating Committee. 
 
In fulfillment of the Service Provider responsibilities to “Manage and direct the work of all 
employees and staff assigned to the Project” and to “Provide necessary office facilities for 
members of the ILR project team who are employees of the Electronic Services System as 
provided in Schedule A – Statement of Work, the Service Provider is expected to provide 
necessary office facilities for members of the ILR project team who are employees of the 
Electronic Services System during the Term of this Agreement.  Therefore, the Service Provider 
may be reimbursed for expenses associated with office facilities as specified herein. 
 

 Four office units or cubicles at $737.50 $762.50 per month. (Excludes computers 
and phone service) 

 The proportionate share of telephone, fax and internet service for each office unit 
based on the total number of desk units in the office facility – not to exceed $175.00 
$62.50 per each office unit per month 

 For multifunction copy and print services the actual per unit costs for color and 
black and white pages - $350.00 per month plus reimbursement for paper expenses 

 For the management and support of computer devices and local area network 
services, the proportionate share of the monthly expense based on the number of 
devices covered under a managed technical support agreement consistent with the 
Memorandum of Understanding executed between ESS and Enterprise Iowa on 
February 1, 2017, and as amended on July 1, 2019. The reimbursement rate shall be 
an amount not to exceed $1120.00 per month 

 For each Office 365 Business Premium license assigned to ESS personnel, the actual 
monthly cost of the license 

 
3.  Notices.  Section 6 is amended to modify information concerning Notices under this 
Agreement.  The Section is amended as follows: 
 
Section 6.  Notices. Notices under this Agreement shall be in writing and delivered to the 
representative of the party to receive notice (identified below) at the address of the party to 
receive notice as it appears below or as otherwise provided for by proper notice here under.  The 
effective date for any notice under this Agreement shall be the date of delivery of such notice (not 
the date of mailing) which may be effected by certified U.S. Mail return receipt requested with 
postage prepaid thereon or by recognized overnight delivery service, such as Federal Express or 
UPS: 
   

If to ESS: 
 
Deb Kupka 
Chair 
ESS Coordinating Committee 
104 W State St, PO Box 82 
Toledo, IA 52342 

DRAFT

ESS Page 43



 

 3

dkupka@tamacounty.org 
(641) 484-3320 
 
Nancy Booten 
Chair 
ESS Coordinating Committee 
933 Avenue H, PO Box 190 
Fort Madison, IA 52627 
nbooten@leecounty.org 
(319) 376-1070 
  
If to the Service Provider 

 
Phil Dunshee 
8711 Windsor Parkway – Suite 2 
Johnston, Iowa 50131 
pdunshee@enterpriseiowa.com 
(515) 491-8939 

 
Any notice or communication sent by U.S. Mail under this Agreement shall be deemed given 
upon receipt as evidenced by the U.S. Postal Service return receipt card, or if sent by overnight 
delivery service, upon receipt as evidenced by the signature attained by the carrier. 
 
From time to time, the parties may change the name and address of a party designated to receive 
notice.  Such change of the designated person shall be in writing to the other party and as 
provided herein. 
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth above and for other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt, adequacy and legal sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the parties have entered into the above Amendment to the Agreement and have 
caused their duly authorized representatives to execute this Amendment to the Agreement.   
 
The Association   Service Provider 
  
  
By:  ________________________________ By:  _____________________________ 
Name:  ___Nancy Booten__________________ Name:  ___Phil Dunshee_____________ 
Title:  ____ Chair ___________________ Title:  ____President________________ 
  
Date:  _______________________________ Date:  ___________________________ 
 

DRAFT

ESS Page 44



AMENDMENT 3 - MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

The Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") adopted on February 1, 2017, as amended on July 
1, 2019, and on November 9, 2021 by Enterprise Iowa Inc. ("EI") and the Electronic Services 
System ("ESS") is further amended as follows. EI and ESS are collectively referred to as the 
"Parties." 

BACKGROUND 
The Electronic Services System (ESS) is a 28E organization in the State of Iowa organized to 
administer the Iowa Land Records system (ILR) and other electronic services for county 
government and related organizations. Enterprise Iowa Inc. (EI) is a private consulting and 
services organization designated by ESS through a competitive selection process to provide 
project management, communications, marketing and other administrative services necessary for 
the operation of ILR and ESS. The MOU established the terms and conditions for acquiring a 
new server and related computing equipment as well as technical support services for the 
equipment and the local area network. These changes were required in order to address the 
security needs of ESS, and to clarify the rights and responsibilities of the Parties under the shared 
office arrangements as described in the MOU and the Agreement between the Parties. 

The essential Terms and Conditions described in the MOU remain unchanged. ESS remains the 
owner of the File and Print Server (including the server cabinet), Firewall, Switches, a back-up 
device, a Wireless Access Point and the computing devices assigned to ESS employees. EI and 
its affiliates co-located in the shared office arrangement continue to be authorized to utilize the 
server and other local area network equipment including the wireless access point and back up 
services while the shared office arrangement is in effect. The cost of technical support services 
for the local area network has been apportioned based on the number of devices operating on the 
network; specifically the computing devices assigned to ESS and EI employees, the server, the 
back up device, and the “site” which includes collectively the switches, firewall and wireless 
access point. 

In July, 2019, the MOU was modified to reflect changes in Internet Services, the installation of 
an updated multi-function printing device, and changes in the number of supported devices under 
a service agreement with All Covered, an affiliate of Konica Minolta. Adjustments in the 
reimbursement amounts for Internet services, printing services or technical support services have 
been addressed through the ESS budget and amendments to the ESS and Enterprise Iowa 
Agreement. This practice continued into calendar year 2022. 

To prepare for future changes the MOU was modified again in November, 2021. It was 
determined that ESS needed to be positioned to move away from a shared office environment 
with Enterprise Iowa and toward an independent office environment. The Parties agreed that 
further planning would be undertaken to prepare for the establishment of an independent location 
or work environment for the employees and any authorized contractors working in service to 
ESS. The goal of this process was to enable the continued successful delivery of information and 
services to the real estate industry and the citizens of Iowa by ESS, and to prepare for a 
relocation by January 1, 2023. 

DRAFT

ESS Page 45



The following steps will be completed by January 1, 2023. 
1. ESS will independently lease a multi-function copier/printer, and at any point ESS may 

relocate the device to a new office environment.
2. ESS will independently implement a VOIP phone system which at any point may be 

relocated to a new office environment. All that will be required is Internet service at a 
new office location.

3. ESS will have retired the local area network server and backup system, and implemented 
file management and office software system based on Microsoft Office 365, SharePoint 
and OneDrive. The system will be accessible at any new office location. All that will be 
required is Internet service. A new Office 365 “tenant” is being established in the name 
of the Electronic Services System.

4. ESS may establish an independent service agreement with All Covered or any other 
technology service provider to secure technical support for the computing devices used 
by ESS staff.

Further work is required to identify an appropriate new office location for ESS operations. The 
Parties agree to continue the current shared office arrangement with the goal of establishing an 
independent office location on January 1, 2024. 

The Parties hereto have caused this amendment to the MOU to be executed as of the date set forth 
below. 

APPROVED BY: Electronic Services System 

By:  Nancy Booten 
Date: November 10, 2022 
Title: ESS Chair 

APPROVED BY: Enterprise Iowa 

By:  Phil Dunshee 
Date: November 10, 2022 
Title: President 

DRAFT

ESS Page 46



PLACEHOLDER - 
ILR STAFF 

COMPENSATION
ADJUSTMENTS

ESS Page 47



DocuSign Envelope ID: E2F233E7-F354-4433-8226-6DF9BC150798

ESS Page 48



DocuSign Envelope ID: E2F233E7-F354-4433-8226-6DF9BC150798

ESS Page 49



ESS Page 50



ESS Page 51



ESS/ICRA MOU Update 

 

1. Recorders Manual 

The Recorders Manual is going through a review process. The aim of the review process is to produce a 
manual that is a comprehensive document that is also user-friendly, concise, and where appropriate, 
leverages knowledge from the different states.  This process involved assigning chapters to Recorders 
(and Deputy Recorders) and setting up virtual meetings to review each chapter. Before each meeting, 
the Policy Coordinator researched each subject matter including manuals from other states, PRIA 
standards and legislation.  

Each chapter had two recorders assigned and thus far, 8 chapters have gone through a first phase of 
review. Across all the chapters, the review found that most of the chapters copied the actual legislation, 
but more work is needed to summarize and explain the law. We also came across sections using 
outdated codes and some errors in the interpretation of the code. Most of the legislative text will be 
removed and replaced with the name and hyperlink of the code. In some chapters, certain sections will 
be moved to a different chapter for consistency reasons. The references to social security numbers will 
be modified to conform to current law. Recorders reported that certain fees were determined by the 
board of supervisors within the county, hence a lack of consistency when accessing records.  

 

The list of chapters and assigned persons are attached including summary of future steps. 

Name Volunteer Meeting Notes 
 1 -The Office of the 
County Recorder 

Julie Hagerty & 
Ashley Marasco 

 

2 - Management of 
Public Records 

Mary Ward & 
Miranda Bills 

11/03 

3 - Real Restate 
Conveyance 

Sue Meyer and 
Amy Assink 

Most notable edits include adding hyperlink of the 
legislation, summarize the legislation and remove the 
section on Notarial Act as that is not the correct section. 
Under plat requirements, a section will be added on 11x17 
e-submission requirements. Some of the edits require 
including the list of documents needed for “Vacation of 
plat”, a GWHS amendment and clarity on transfer taxes.  

4 - ESS ESS The proposed amendments to Ch 1,3,4,5 will be discussed 
in this meeting. 

5 - Uniform 
Commercial Code 

Kathy Jurries & 
Amie Griesse 

More work is needed to provide historic context to the 
UCC. Counties set their different fees based on the Board 
of Supervisors. The volunteer Recorders will follow up with 
the other counties.  

ESS Page 52



6 - Tax Liens Natalie Steffener & 
Ashten Wittrock 

The tax lien chapter requires edits mainly on delineating 
the responsibilities of the Recorders and the SOS. Clarity is 
also needed on the Revenue payment process. The Act 
requires that counties should bill the Revenue service but 
currently the Revenue service deposits the funds once the 
documents are recorded.  

7 - Business 
Documents 

Lisa Kent, Nancy 
Booten & Melisa 
Bahnsen 

Changes include removing verbiage, adding hyperlinks, 
and including the trade name section in this chapter. The 
chapter will consist of business documents that are filed 
with the Recorders. The sections on state Banks, housing, 
horizontal property, and timeshare will be kept. 

8 - Vital Records  Carolyn Siebrecht 
& Karen 
Benschoter 

The chapter requires some cleanup and the new fee 
structure from DHHS. Adoption records will be moved 
from chapter 9 to this chapter. Counties do not charge a 
uniform fee for services (record search and non-certified 
copies. DHHS has requested that all the Recorders remove 
the vital record application forms from their website.  
Draft Chapter sent for review. 

9 - Outdoor Pursuit Teresa Sackett & 
Lisa Grinna 

We conducted two meetings and identified several edits. 
We notice that the DNR regulations change every year and 
we will include a hyperlink for most of the sections instead 
of the Iowa Code.   

10 - Miscellany Lisa Kent, Nancy 
Booten & Mel isa 
Bahnsen 

11/02 

11 - ICRA bylaws Travis Case and 
Megan Clyman 

 

12 - ICRA 
Certification 

Tracy Marshall and 
Ann Ditsworth 

 

13 - Indexing 
Grantor/Grantee 
Names 

Lindsay S. 
Laufersweiler and 
Courtney Bender 

Possible use of the recent PRIA indexing practices paper 
has been discussed. This issue will go back to ICRA 
Executive Board. The punctuation requirement might not 
be compatible with other software (e.g Legacy) and might 
need to be reserved as is. 

14 - Attorney 
General Opinions 

Steve Brick, Brick 
Gentry 

Phil will be discussing this with Steve to explore ways this 
information can be maintained. 

15 - Legislative 
Summaries 

Stacie Herridge & 
James Cheek 

The new edits to the legislative summary include 
organizing the legislation based on issues / chapters. It will 
simplify the process of finding updates. Hyperlinks will also 
be included to simplify access to the law. The 2018 
legislation is missing from the list.  
Draft chapter sent for review. 

16 - Best practices 
and Case Studies 

NA  

17 - Forms Kim Anderson  

ESS Page 53



2. Directory and Map

During the ESS Communications subcommittee meeting, it was proposed that the directory and map will 
be updated in January after the new recorders are sworn in. Recorders will be required to send a new 
profile photo. The ICRA directory will be printed courtesy of Polk County at a cost of $6 per page. The 
subcommittee proposed that ICRA could pay for single directory per recorder’s office. Any extra copies 
will be paid for by the Recorders office. ESS plan to distribute the material during the 2023 March 
conference.  

3. Trade Name

ICRA proposed possible adjustments to the trade name legislation. The proposed adjustment is currently 
being researched with updates to follow. It is tentatively included in the ISAC legislative agenda. 

Trade Name Filing (ESS) Proposal 2 

PROBLEM: Under current law, only a sole-proprietorship or partnership is required to register for a trade 
name with the county recorder when necessary. Recorders are seeing an influx of domestic and foreign 
entities registering for trade names for various reasons, including to meet the requirements to register 
to bid at an annual tax sale. The process would be more efficient and provide more transparency if these 
entities registered with the Office of the Secretary of State when doing business in Iowa. 

SOLUTION: Amend Iowa Code §547.1 to clarify that a business organized as sole proprietor or a 
partnership should file for a Trade Name in the counties where they intend to operate, and that a 
business organized as a limited partnership, limited liability company, corporation, professional 
corporation, cooperative or cooperative association, or a nonprofit corporation should continue to 
register with the Office of the Secretary of State. 

4. District Meetings

Census and Lisa will be attending a District 1 meeting on the 15th of November 2022. The two are also 
planning to attend other District meetings including local PRIA meetings, (Heart of Iowa chapter is 
planned on the 25th of October 2022 at 1pm). 

5. Legislative Engagement

A proposal was presented to the Subcommittee members to train them on advocacy. This is aimed to 

help the Recorders leverage their knowledge and increase their credibility with their respective 

legislators. This may be a module at a future conference(s).

ESS Page 54



Purpose – to discontinue the option for a domestic entity or a foreign entity, as described in Section 

547.1, to file a trade name with a county for the purposes of determining eligibility to participate in a tax 

sale. A domestic entity or a foreign entity must register with the Iowa Secretary of State. However, a 

sole proprietor or a partnership may continue to file a Trade Name for the purposes of Chapter 547 and 

for the purposes of registering to participate in a tax sale under Section 446.16. 

1. Section 446.16, subsection 4, is amended to read as follows.

4. Only those persons as defined in section 4.1 are authorized to register to bid or to bid at the tax sale

or to own a tax sale certificate by purchase, assignment, or otherwise. To be authorized to register to

bid or to bid at a tax sale or to own a tax sale certificate, a person, other than an individual, sole

proprietor or a partnership must have a federal tax identification number and either a designation of

agent for service of process on file with the Iowa secretary of state or a verified statement meeting the

requirements of chapter 547 on file with the county recorder of the county in which the person wishes

to register to bid or to bid at tax sale or of the county where the property that is the subject of the tax

sale certificate is located. To be authorized to register to bid or to bid at a tax sale or to own a tax sale

certificate, a person that is an individual, sole proprietor or a partnership must have a federal tax

identification number and a verified statement meeting the requirements of chapter 547 on file with the

county recorder of the county in which the person wishes to register to bid or to bid at tax sale or of the

county where the property that is the subject of the tax sale certificate is located.

2. Section 547.1, is amended to read as follows.

547.1 Use of trade name — verified statement required. A person operating as a sole proprietor or a 

partnership shall not engage in or conduct a business under a trade name, or an assumed name of a 

character other than the true surname of each person owning or having an interest in the business, 

unless the person first records with the county recorder of the county in which the business is to be 

conducted a verified statement showing the name, post office address, and residence address of each 

person owning or having an interest in the business, and the address where the business is to be 

conducted. However, this provision does not apply to any person organized or incorporated in this state 

as a domestic entity or authorized to do business in this state as a foreign entity if the person is a limited 

partnership under chapter 488; a limited liability company under chapter 489; a corporation under 

chapter 490; a professional corporation under chapter 496C; a cooperative or cooperative association 

under chapter 497, 498, 499, 501, or 501A; or a nonprofit corporation under chapter 504 

DRAFT

ESS Page 55



ESS/Iowa Land Records 
8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2 

Johnston, Iowa  50131 

October 18, 2022 

To: ESS Standards Subcommittee 

From: Phil Dunshee 

Re: Linn County Registration Renewal Project 

The Linn County Recorders office in collaboration with their county IT department is in the process of 
developing an online registration renewal system. The concept is that they would obtain registration 
renewal information from the Department of Natural Resources and then invite their customers to renew 
their registrations and licenses online. In order to implement this system, when developed, it would be 
necessary for them to integrate a payment system. 

Linn County has approached us to inquire about leveraging the ESS payment system to support these 
renewal transactions. One of their requirements is that they do not wish to maintain any customer 
payment information in their system. We have examined options and have determined that our payment 
systems (and providers) have the means to support these transactions. 

Of interest to ESS is the possibility that the knowledge gained from the Linn County project could 
potentially lead to the development of a renewal system that could be used in service to any ESS  county 
(if they desired). 

Arrangements with Linn County have not been formalized, but it is expected that a written agreement 
would be developed to better define the project before any work is performed. Further, we have estimated 
that development efforts on the part of ESS (to integrate the payment methodology with the Linn County 
application) would require just a few weeks of development time. 

We have made Linn County aware that ESS has a full plate of development projects, but that we are 
interested in working with them because a) we have access to the technology that would meet their 
business needs, b) there is potential for developing an new application that would benefit many other 
counties, and c) ESS development costs could be recouped through the POS service charges. 

If we were to proceed, a written agreement would be developed later this year, and development work 
could potentially begin as early as the first quarter of 2023. 

Action Requested. We are seeking discussion and comments from the Standards Subcommittee. 

Note: Today we are seeking discussion and comments
from the ESS Coordinating Committee. 

ESS Page 56



ESS/Iowa Land Records 
8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2 

Johnston, Iowa  50131 

October 18, 2022 

To: ESS Standards Subcommittee 

From: Phil Dunshee 

Re: Back File Scanning Procurement 

Currently any back file scanning projects are left to the individual counties. While ESS and ILR support 
such projects and underwrite the cost of redaction review, we have never taken the initiative to organize 
or direct such projects. Further, the financial responsibility for any back scanning projects is with the 
individual counties. In recent years we have observed a few projects that have not been completed due to 
technical issues, or the images are not archived and indexed in a format the is compatible with the Iowa 
Land Records structure. 

We have been invited by US Imaging to explore some of the challenges they experience when performing 
back file scanning projects in Iowa.  Specifically, they have stated that “We want to ensure that the 
process works the best in [sic] can for the County’s when it comes to the data that we are putting in their 
Land records system, and how that same data will make its way into CLRIS.” 

Topics they wish to discuss include: 
Redaction, and possible re-redaction if we replace poor images 
Consistent naming conventions across Counties 

We appreciate that they have reached out to us, and we are scheduled to meet with them virtually on 
October 19. 

While we do not have plans to provide direct funding for back file scanning projects (we will continue to 
handle redaction services), we believe that ESS could provide a structure for more consistently defining 
the specifications for such projects and for administering and coordinating those projects. The object 
would be to ensure that the images are correct, properly indexed in the county systems, and properly 
mapped and transferred to the Iowa Land Records database. Here’s how. 

ESS would conduct a procurement process, probably an RFQ, to identify and select qualified imaging and 
indexing companies. It is anticipated that more than one company could be identified and selected. ESS 
would then enter master agreements with these companies, providing for the necessary specifications 
and project management procedures as well as determining the standard fees. As resources permit, 
counties could access the services through the master agreement, and ESS would assist them with the 
administration of the project. Any project might include a fee structure that would help support the delivery 
of ESS project management and coordination services. 

There are many details that would need to be worked out, but we wish to present this concept to you for 
consideration. 

Action Requested. We are seeking discussion and comments from the Standards Subcommittee. 

Note: Today we are seeking discussion and comments
from the ESS Coordinating Committee. 

ESS Page 57



BREAK

ESS Page 58



ESS/Iowa Land Records 
8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2 

Johnston, Iowa  50131 

November 10, 2022 

To: ESS Coordinating Committee 

From: Census Lo-Liyong, ESS Policy Coordinator 

Re: Standards Subcommittee Policy Recommendations 

The ESS Standards Subcommittee met on October 18, 2022 and took action to advance several policy 
recommendations to the ESS Coordinating Committee. The policies, if approved, would make the 
following changes. 

 Make further technical updates which correspond with the amendment to the 28E agreement
approved in 2021. Generally, these include artifacts referencing the ICRA Executive Board in
Sections 1.6, 3.2 and 3.6. Other editorial changes to Section 1.6 are also suggested.

 An update to Section 1.10 concerning the ESS Executive Committee. Again, these changes are
suggested to better align with the updated 28E agreement.

 An update to formatting requirements for E-Submission in Section 5.4 of the Policies and
Procedures to reflect current practices (such as the processing of color signatures.

 A correction to the Iowa Code Reference to Smart Contracts. This policy was moved to a new
section 554E.3 in recent legislation.

 A suggested modification to the user of the term “declined” in lieu of “rejected” in the E-
Submission process.

 A modification to policies concerning the mileage reimbursement rate for ESS committee and
subcommittee members and staff. Changes in the approval processes for certain travel
reimbursements are also suggested.

 A modification to Section 3.6(2) to clarify that documents classified as “Bargain and Sale Deed” or
“Bill of Sale” should be mapped to the document type “Deed” in Iowa Land Records.

Actions Requested: Consideration and approval of the policy changes recommended by the 
Standards Subcommittee. 

ESS Page 59



Chapter 1 and 3 
Policy and Procedures Technical and Editorial Updates 

 
Chapters 1 and 3 of the Electronic Services System (ESS) Policies and Procedures is 
amended to conform to the updated ESS 28E Agreement.  
 
1. Section 1.6(5) of the ESS Policies and Procedures is amended to read as follows. 

 
1.6(5) Time and Location Place of Meetings. The ESS Coordinating Committee shall 
meet quarterly at a time specified by the chair. The Committee may meet in person or 
by electronic means. Additionally, the ESS Coordinating Committee shall meet 
as necessary in joint session with Iowa County Recorders’ Association Executive 
Board at a time and location place determined by mutual agreement the Executive Board. 
Other meetings may be called by the Chair or Vice Chair of the Committee, or by the 
President of the Iowa County Recorders Association. 
 
Meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 21 of 
the Iowa Code. Items shall be placed on the agenda according to the order of 
business. The order of business for each regular meeting shall be as follows: 
 

Welcome and Introductions 
Approval of Meeting Summary 
Financial Reports 
Action and Discussion Items 
Informal Discussion and Public Comment 

 
By general consent of the Committee, items may be considered out of order. 
 
2. Section 1.10(1) of the ESS Policies and Procedures is amended to read as follows. 

 
ESS – 1.10 ESS Executive Committee. 
(Iowa Code Section 331.604, Subsection 3(a)) 

 
1.10(1) ESS Executive Committee. An ESS Executive Committee is established 
to assist with contractual, personnel, management and strategic issues of mutual 
interest including but not limited to the following. 
 

a. Assist with the review of contracts, amendments, contract extensions and 
work authorizations as necessary. 

b. Assist with the review of personnel policies and procedures relating to the 
staff for the Electronic Services System and the county land record 
information system. 
a. Assist with the oversight and management The coordination of 

activities between of the Electronic Services System and the Iowa 
County Recorders Association. 

b. Assist with The development of strategy for sustaining and 
strengthening the Electronic Services System. 

ESS Page 60



 
3. Section 3.2(2) of the ESS Policies and Procedures is amended to read as follows. 
 
3.2(2) The ICRA Executive Board and the Electronic Services System 
Coordinating Committee are is authorized to establish policies and procedures 
affecting the mission, purpose and operation of the Electronic Services System 
and the county land record information system. The authority to establish policies 
and procedures extends to County data and information standards, business 
processes and other issues when those issues affect the mission, purpose and 
operation of the Electronic Services System and the county land record 
information system. Each County shall comply with the policies and procedures 
established by the ICRA Executive Board and the ESS Coordinating Committee. 
 
 
4. Section 3.6(3) of the ESS Policies and Procedures is amended to read as follows. 
 
3.6(3) A mapping table established by each County shall be provided to the ESS 
Coordinating Committee for review. If required by the ICRA Executive Board or 
the ESS Coordinating Committee, a County shall modify the County mapping 
table to ensure that transferred records are consistent within the county land 
record information system. 
Section 3.6 amended – 11.10.16 (Monument Preservation Certificate) 
 
 

ESS Page 61



Chapter 5 
Policy and Procedures Technical Corrections 

 
Chapter 5 of the Electronic Services System (ESS) Policies and Procedures is 
amended to address technical changes to reflect current practices related to 
Document Formatting and Processing for E-Submission.  
 
1. Section 5.4 of the ESS Policies and Procedures is amended by modifying 

lettered paragraphs f, h, k, and n to read as follows. 
 

f. A document shall be submitted with a portrait orientation.  Landscape 
orientation will not be accepted except when the document type is 
SurveysAndPlats. All documents shall be submitted with an orientation to be 
read from left to right. Document images which are rotated to enable viewing 
in portrait orientation shall not be accepted through the ILR E-Submission 
service. 
h. The A document shall should not have active text areas or layers. 
k. The file size per page for a standard letter-sized document should generally 
be less than 100kb. Larger files sizes will be accepted as necessary. 
n. Images shall be black and white only.  Greyscale or color images are 
prohibited. The standard and recommended best practice for image creation is 
black and white. Greyscale images may be submitted as needed. Images with 
a significant amount of color will be programmatically returned to the 
submitter. However, images with a minor amount of color, such as images 
with color signatures, may be accepted and processed.  

 
2. Section 5.4(2) unnumbered paragraph 1 of the ESS Policies and Procedures is 

amended as follows. 
 
5.4(2) – Smart Contracts.  Smart Contracts are governed by Section 554D.103 
554E.3, subsection 14A of the Code of Iowa. While Smart Contracts may not take 
the form of a Traditional Paper Document or an Electronic Document (often in 
the form of a TIF or PDF image which resembles a paper document), it may be 
necessary to memorialize a Smart Contract transaction in the public record 
registry. 
 
3. Sections 5.5(2), 5.5(3), and 5.5(4) of the ESS Policies and Procedures are 

amended as follows. 
 
5.5(2) A County Recorder shall determine whether an electronic document is 
suitable for recording in the same manner as the determination would be made for 
a traditional paper document.  If the electronic document conforms to recording 
requirements, then it shall be approved.  If the electronic document does not 
conform to recording requirements, then it may be rejected declined and returned 
to the Submitter for correction accompanied by a message explaining why the 
electronic document was rejected declined. 

ESS Page 62



 
5.5(3) If the submission of information associated with an electronic document is 
in error, a County Recorder shall make a reasonable attempt to correct the error 
through the ILR E-Submission service rather than rejecting declining the 
document.  Examples of errors which may be corrected by a County Recorder 
include a correction in the spelling of a party name, a document type, or 
information required to calculate a recording fee such as the number of parcels or 
any additional transactions. 
 
5.5(4) A County Recorder shall review and process an electronic document 
submitted through the ILR E-Submission service within one business day.  All 
documents, including electronic documents, should be processed in a timely 
manner throughout the business day. A County may specify the operation times 
for the E-Submission service to be consistent with the normal business hours 
established by the County Recorder. The result of the review and process will 
either be the official recording of the electronic document in the County, or the 
rejection declination and return of the document to the Submitter. 
 
 

ESS Page 63



Chapter 1 
Policy and Procedures Compensation of Members 

 
Chapter 1 of the Electronic Services System (ESS) Policies and Procedures is amended to 
update policies relating to expense reimbursements.  
 
1. Section 1.6(10) of the ESS Policies and Procedures is amended to read as follows. 
 
 
1.6(10) Compensation of Members. The members of the ESS Coordinating 
Committee shall not receive compensation. However, ESS Coordinating 
Committee members, County Recorders or Deputy Recorders, or ICRA/ESS staff 
may be reimbursed for travel expenses subject to the following parameters. 
 

a. ESS Coordinating Committee members or ESS staff for participation in face-to-
face meetings of the Committee. 

b. A representative of the ESS Finance Subcommittee upon approval from the ESS 
Coordinating Committee Chair designated by the ICRA Executive Board for 
participation in face-to-face meetings of the ESS Coordinating Committee. 

c. ESS Subcommittee Members or ESS staff for participation in face-to-face 
meetings of the Subcommittee, subject to the prior approval of the ESS 
Coordinating Committee Chair. 

d. County Recorders, Deputy Recorders, or ESS staff who participate in scheduled 
meetings with legislators, legislative staff, and state administrative agencies, 
subject to the prior approval of the ESS Coordinating Committee Chair. 

e. ESS Coordinating Committee members, County Recorders, Deputy Recorders, or 
ESS staff who participate in and assist with trade shows on behalf of ESS, subject 
to the prior approval of the ESS Coordinating Committee Chair. 

f. ESS Coordinating Committee members, County Recorders, Deputy Recorders, or 
ICRA/ESS staff for participation in other special meetings or events subject to the 
approval of the ESS Coordinating Committee Chair. 

 
Mileage reimbursement rates for ESS Coordinating Committee members, County 
Recorders, Deputy Recorders or ESS staff shall be based on the current IRS optional 
standard mileage rates for deductible business expenses. 
 
Meal reimbursement rates for ESS Coordinating Committee members, County 
Recorders, Deputy Recorders or ICRA/ESS staff shall be based on the current 
State of Iowa Summary of Travel Reimbursement Guidelines. See: 
https://das.iowa.gov/state-accounting/travel-relocation 
 
Other expense reimbursement rates for ESS Coordinating Committee members, County 
Recorders, Deputy Recorders or ICRA/ESS staff shall be based on ordinary and 
necessary standards acceptable for public organizations. 
 
Persons requesting reimbursement must disclose to ESS other purposes of the 

ESS Page 64



travel and whether reimbursement for the travel may be available from other 
sources. Reimbursement may be limited in the discretion the Chair, when 
reimbursement is available from other sources regardless of the actual amount of 
reimbursement. The Chair shall consider the primary purpose of the travel and 
cooperate with other sources to provide appropriate allocation of reimbursement. 
 
In all cases reimbursement for lodging expenses is subject to the prior approval of 
the Chair. 
 

ESS Page 65



ESS/Iowa Land Records 
   8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2 

Johnston, Iowa  50131 
 
 
 
October 18, 2022 
 
 
 
 
To: ESS Standards Subcommittee 
 
From: Phil Dunshee, ILR Project Manager 
 
Re: Bill of Sale Request 
 
 
Recently the Iowa Land Records team received a query from Sac County concerning a document type 
called “Bill of Sale.” They asked if this could be enabled as a document type in the ILR system, 
specifically for E-Submission. As is our custom, we agreed to review this request and present it to the 
Standards Subcommittee. Attached are several examples of recorded Bill of Sale documents provided by 
Sac County. As we understand it, the documents transfer ownership of a cabin, but not the property on 
which it sits. 
 
The Iowa Land Records system includes an element called a BargainAndSaleDeed. This was included in 
the PRIA standard that was being followed at the time the E-Submission service was created. However, 
the governing body determined at that time that the document type was not frequently used in Iowa and 
while it remains in the technical specifications, it has never been used. Our initial thought that it might be 
possible to use this element to address the county’s request. However, after further review we now 
understand that Bill of Sale is different. It appears that while a Bill of Sale is most frequently used for the 
sale of autos, boats and personal property, it can be used in some instanced for the sale of real estate 
such as a mobile home, and in this case, a cabin located on lake front property. A Bill of Sale is not 
included in our technical specifications. 
 
The examples include documents which were electronically submitted. They apparently were processed 
as deeds and may have been converted to a Bill of Sale document type in the county system. However, 
when mapped to the Iowa Land Records database as “Other”.  
 
We think the submitter and the county acted correctly when processing the document as a deed in E-
Submission. Counties may continue to assign document to the desired local document type. Going 
forward, in the cases of either a Bill of Sale or a Bargain and Sale Deed, when accepting in E-Submission 
they should be processed as a “Deed” document type and then mapped to “Deed” for the ILR database. 
 
Action Requested. Discussion and guidance from the Standards Subcommittee is desired. If you concur 
with the conclusions above, we would request a motion that Section 3.6 of the Policies and Procedures 
be amended to reflect suggested mapping procedures. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ESS Page 66



 

ESS Page 67



 

ESS Page 68



ESS Page 69



Chapter 3 
Policy and Procedures – Mapping Table 

Chapter 3 of the Electronic Services System (ESS) Policies and Procedures is amended to 
clarify how to map document types “Bargain and Sale Deed” or “Bill of Sale”, if present 
in an individual County indexing system, should be mapped to the standard PRIA 
Document Types.  

1. Section 3.6(2) of the ESS Policies and Procedures is amended to read as follows.

3.6(2) Document types or codes implemented by individual County indexing, document 
management or image archive systems shall map or associate the local document type 
with the correct PRIA document type according to the following mapping table. 

Document Type PRIA Doc Type 
28E 28E 
Abstract of Judgment Abstract of Judgment 
Access Rights Deed Deed 
Affidavit - Non-Judicial Voluntary Foreclosure Affidavit - Transfer 
Affidavit - Transfer Document Error Correction Affidavit - Non-Transfer 
Affidavit By Tax Title Holder Affidavit - Non-Transfer 
Affidavit Explanatory of Title Affidavit - Non-Transfer 
Affidavit in Support of Forfeiture of Judgment 
Lien 

Affidavit - Non-Transfer 

Affidavit in Support of Forfeiture of Real Estate 
Contract 

Contract or Contract  Related 

Affidavit of Adverse Possession Under Tax 
Deed 

Affidavit - Non-Transfer 

Affidavit of Compliance with Section 624.23(2) Affidavit - Non-Transfer 
Affidavit of Death Terminating Life Estate Affidavit - Transfer 
Affidavit of Identity Affidavit - Non-Transfer 
Affidavit of Possession Affidavit - Non-Transfer 
Affidavit of Surviving Spouse for Change of 
Title to Real Estate 

Affidavit - Transfer 

Affidavit Regarding Non-Judicial Voluntary 
Foreclosure 

Affidavit - Non-Transfer 

Affidavit Regarding Security Assignment Affidavit - Non-Transfer 
Affidavit Regarding Surviving Joint Tenant Affidavit - Transfer 
Affidavit-Waiver Right of First Refusal Affidavit - Non-Transfer 
Assignment (General) Assignment 
Assignment of Deed of Trust Assignment of Deed of Trust 
Assignment of Easement Easement 
Assignment of Ground Lease Assignment 
Assignment of Leases and Rents Assignment 

ESS Page 70



Assignment of Mortgage Assignment of Mortgage 
Bargain and Sale Deed Deed 
Bill of Sale Deed 
Blanket Assignment Assignment 
Cemetery Deed Deed 
Change of County Auditor's Real Estate 
Taxation Record 

Affidavit - Transfer 

Condemnations Condemnations 
Condominiums Condominiums 
Contracts Contract/Contract Related 
Corner Certificates Corner Certificates 
Court Officer Deed Deed 
Court Order/Transfer Court Order/Transfer 
Declaration of Value Declaration of Value 
Deed of Trust Deed of Trust 
Deeds (General) Deed 
Easements Easements 
Estoppel Affidavit Affidavit - Non-Transfer 
Extension of Tax Lien State Tax Lien 
Federal Tax Lien Federal Tax Lien 
Groundwater Hazard Statements Groundwater Hazard Statements 
Iowa Workforce Dev. Lien State Tax Lien 
Iowa Workforce Dev. Sat. of Lien Release of State Tax Lien 
Judgment Judgment 
Lien Other 
Lot Line Fence Agreement Other 
Modification of Home Equity LOC Modification Agreement 
Modification of Mortgage Modification Agreement 
Modification of Mortgage Modification Agreement 
Modification of Mortgage and Assignment Modification Agreement 
Monument Preservation Certificate Monument Preservation Certificate 
Mortgage Mortgage 
Notice of Special Use Valuation Lien State Tax Lien 
Offer To Buy And Acceptance Contract/Contract Related 
Other Other 
Partial Satisfaction of Deed of Trust Partial Satisfaction of Lien 
Partial Satisfaction of Lien Partial Satisfaction of Lien 
Partial Satisfaction of Mortgage Partial Satisfaction of Lien 
Power of Attorney Power of Attorney 
Purchaser's Affidavit Affidavit - Non-Transfer 
Quit Claim Deed Quit Claim Deed 
Real Estate Contract Amendment Contract/Contract Related 
Real Estate Contract Assignment - Collateral 
Only 

Contract/Contract Related 

Real Estate Contract Assignment - Transfer Contract/Contract Related 

ESS Page 71



Real Estate Contract Installments Contract/Contract Related 
Real Estate Contract Modification Contract/Contract Related 
Real Estate Contract Short Form Contract/Contract Related 
Record of Entry of Foreclosure of Mortgage Affidavit - Non-Transfer 
Release of Assignment of Leases and Rents Satisfaction of Lien 
Release of Federal Tax Lien Release of Federal Tax Lien 
Release of State Tax Lien Release of State Tax Lien 
Satisfaction of Deed of Trust Satisfaction of Mortgage 
Satisfaction of Mortgage Satisfaction of Mortgage 
Sheriff's Deed Deed 
State Tax Lien State Tax Lien 
Subordinate Lien Agreement Subordinate Lien Agreement 
Surveys and Plats Surveys and Plats 
Tax Sale Deed Deed 
Trustee Warranty Deed Warranty Deed 
Trustee's Affidavit Affidavit - Non-Transfer 
UCC UCC 
Warranty Deed Warranty Deed 

 
 

ESS Page 72



���������	��
�����	����������
�		����������	�	��������
���������������������������	���������
�������
��������������	�	�������
���	�������
��	�����������
�����	���	�������������������
��������	�
���	�	������������
	��������	������������������	
��	����	��
�����	���������������������������������� !"#$%#&�'�()! #*+,-&# ./0123�456789:�01:;123�4<1=�:>/19?�@1:;�14�/=�/�A:8�B/3:C
DEF�GHHIJGKLI�FIMIKNIOPQR�ST�UVUU� W:=465/4162�:XX654=�85123�91X:�8/YZ�46�[199�\5::Z]̂]]�_4/4:;1̀:�[/4:51/9=�\</5/Y4:51a/4162�_47̀b�26;�/0/19/89:c6;/�deW�B56B6=:=�Y</23:=�46�f5672̀;/4:5�./a/5̀�d6Y7>:24/4162g15�h7/914b�B:5>14=�72̀:5�5:01:;FijkPlmknPo�ippPlkj�qlnor�snpi�qmtu�kP�Hnss�vliiu

wxyz{�|}~�}xy���{|}��~}x�y�{����}|��y��x�����{{��~���}�}��{{��{~�|�~����}�{�~�{~��~|��y�{���y{�|x�yx�xz~y}�z�~y�{�~y�x�����{�{y}�HIJGK�vEOLKvL��Jmonis��nlq�T�JOFT�mk���S��UV�S����Pl��monisRunlq���olRnP�mRrPQRd�_�[�ce�_����2Y:�=�7::a:̀�8:4;::2�4;6�4/99�:>8/2Z>:24= �[199�\5::Z�12=1̀:�6X�4<:�¡13[199�\5::Z�A19̀91X:�[/2/3:>:24�g5:/�26;�</=�566>�46�>:/2̀:5�/2̀�:¢B/2̀���/2̀�>65:=B/Y:�46�X1=<C�����������������g�Y699/865/4162�8:4;::2�4<:�c6;/�d:B/54>:24�6X�e/475/9�W:=675Y:=£�¡75:/7=�6X�¤1=<:51:=�/2̀A19̀91X: �4<:�5:=465/4162�6X�¥ ]̂ �̂X::4�6X�[199�\5::Z�/2̀�¥]�/Y5:=�6X�9/2̀�;/=�X72̀:̀�12�B/54�8b4<:�deW£=�_4/4:�¦/2̀�f5/24C�§<:�35/24�;/=�/;/5̀:̀�8b�4<:�deW�A/4:5�h7/914b�c>B560:>:24_:Y4162�;14<�X72̀=�X56>�4<:��201562>:24/9�̈564:Y4162�g3:2Yb�/2̀�_:Y4162�©¥ª�6X�4<:�\9:/2A/4:5�gY4 �;<1Y<�B5601̀:=�35/24=�X65�262B6124�=675Y:�B56«:Y4=C§<:�5:2:;:̀�=45:4Y<�6X�[199�\5::Z�12�¬/YZ=62�\6724b�1=�X5:�7:24:̀�8b�/239:5=�966Z123�X65�45674/2̀�64<:5�X1=<C�§<:�=:3>:24�1=�Y62=1̀:5:̀�/�B516514b�45674�=45:/>�/2̀�1=�4<:�=14:�6X�/8674�¥¥ ̂̂ ^45674�X1=<123�451B=�:/Y<�b:/5 �/YY65̀123�46�4<:�deW£=�¡75:/7�6X�¤1=<:51:=Ce62B6124�=675Y:�Y665̀12/465�_4:0:�.6BZ12=�;/=�B/54�6X�/�4:/>�;<6�/;/5̀:̀�4<:�35/24�46�c6;/deW�X1=<:51:=�8169631=4�d/2�158b�12�]̂¥ªC�.:�=/1̀�=12Y:�4<:�B56«:Y4�</=�8::2�Y6>B9:4:̀ �=4/XX</0:�8::2�/89:�46�̀6Y7>:24�/�=1321X1Y/24�5:̀7Y4162�12�=:̀1>:24�36123�1246�4<:�Y5::ZC®§<1=�=:3>:24�6X�[199�\5::Z�1=�=47221239b�8:/741X79 �874�91Z:�>/2b�c6;/�Y5::Z= �14�;/=:¢B:51:2Y123�=:0:5:�=45:/>8/2Z�:56=162 ̄�.6BZ12=�=/1̀C�¡:X65:�;65Z�8:3/2�12�9/4:�]̂¥ª �X1=<123�/YY:==�;/=�1>B/15:̀�8b�=4::B�8/2Z=C�§<:�;/4:5�;/=</5>:̀�8b�:¢Y:==�27451:24=�9:/Z123�1246�4<:�Y5::ZC�d7:�46�4<:�=45/13<4�/2̀�2/556;�Y</22:9 �/212Y5:/=:�12�5/12X/99�65�/�X966̀�:0:24�;679̀�5:=794�12�<13<�=45:/>�B6;:5�4</4�;679̀�4<:2�Y/7=:/YY:9:5/4:̀�:56=162�/2̀�8/2Z�=97>B123C

°±%+)&-%#�²!�±³́µ²#+�¶&!$�°²µ²#�!¶�·!*µ�̧����¹����		 ���������º���_78=Y518:°»µ&#�¼±½½#²-¾

ESS Page 73



���������	�
���������������������������
�����������������������	���
�������	�
���������������������������������
���������������������������������
���������������������������
�����
�� ��������������
��	���������������������������������������
��������
��������������������������
�������������
���������
��!���������������������	�����������"#$�
������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����������
�����������������
�	�
������������������%��������������������	���������������&�����	��������������!��
��������
�����������������������
����������

�������
�����������	��
���������&��
�����������������
�$�����$�
���������!�����'����������������
����������
����
������
������(�����������������
��������������������
����
�����������������������!�����	���
��������������)�����������������
������������������������������������*����+������

����������������
��������
���
����

�
���	��	������

������������+����� �����������
������
���������
����������������,-�	���
��������+����� ���������.���������
���������������������������
�������
�������������������������������������������������������������������
������������������������������
��������
��������
����� �������������������������������������������������������������������������������
��
�����������������������)�	������
�����������������������	�
����!���"#$�����
������
��������������������
������
���������������)���������������������)��������������������������������'��	����/0//�123245674�8324963:;�<=393>2496?326@A�12B7CA@5�3D36:3E:48FGHI�<JKLI<LM�L@N�IA749;@AO�GKPO�32�QRQSTU0SV0QW�@9�2@NX3A749;@AY7A9X6@53XZ@DX"[.�*\�#[.�]�!���̂-̂ �̂.��������*�������
�+���������(������.���	��������	�������&������	������������
��������������������������
���������������!���
���	��������������
�
���������������������������������������
������������
����������������'�
�����������
�������������������������	������������������������
�!�������"�������������#�������$�
�����
�������������������
������������.+.�[�������
���������������
���	��[���	����������	
�
�
��
����������������������������
��������
���
�����������
������������������������������
���	��������_�����
����
���	������������
����������������������������������������	����
���������̀�������������
����
�����������
a���������������'����
�����������
������������\����b-�����������������������������������
��������
����������
���������	��������������
������!����������������������������������
������
������������������������������������	����
���
������'������
��������
��������������
�����������'�
������������������������
������������	��������������

�����
��!���
���	�������
�����������"#$����
����������

���������������
��������������������	���������
�"�����
��������������������
�������������������(���������	�,c����
��������������
������
�����������������
�����

��������������������������������
����������������������������
������������������������
�������
����	�
�����������������
�����������������������
��������������
����������������������������
������������!���������
�
����������������������������	��������
���
����������������������
���������
����
������
���������������������
�������
���

��������������������
��
������
�����.�
��������*�������
�*������������������������������	�������	��������
�����
��
���������
������������������
����������	�����
���
���
��������������������������
�������������������������
������	����d��������
�������'�����������������

������������������������
������������
���������%��%�������
��
���!���̂-̂ �̂.��������*�������
�+���������(������.���	���������������
���
����������������������������
�������������������	����������H@53�GKP�e9@e@;4;�>=3AZ4;�2@�f9@BA753249g3?397�G@>BN4A2326@A8FGHI�<JKLI<LM�K@3=�h@ee4:946249O�GKPO�32�A@3=Xe@ee4:946249Y7A9X6@53XZ@DX!�������"�������������#�������$�
�����
��
������
����������
������������������
�������+��������������������������(����
��������
�����������������
���������#������
��������i��
��_����̂jcj���
�
�����������������������̂-̂ �̂�!�������
�������������
������&����������������������������������(����
���������������������������������
��������
�����������
������	���������
����
������
��������
��������"#$�����������������
������������	����������	�
ESS Page 74



��������	�
��
�	��������	��������������������������������	���������������������������������������������������������	������������������
������������
������������������������������	�����	������	��������	����������������
��
�	���
��������������������������������������������	����	��� ��������������!"�����	!���!�
���	!����	!#$%&'(&)%&"��
�	��
�*����+�	��������������������������	�
��	�������
�����	���	��������������������	��������������������������������	��������������������������������������������,��������������������
��
�	����������	������������	����������������
����'(-�����������������%��%&%%�������,����	��������.�������������	�����������������������/����
	/!!��������	���������!��	!���!���!((%'��
��"����������������������
��
�	����������	��	��
������������������%%�����$/-&�
����������	�	�����������������/�����"�

����������������
���������������������	�����	�0�������1�����2������.�������#&%�3�	��������1��������	�4����	�������#&-5'�3����/�60718�������������������������������������
��������������������������%%��%&%%������9������"��	��	������	���������������9����
��������������	������������������"�

����������������
�

��������8�������������,�������������	�����������+���������
������
��������������������"��	��	�������	�������+��������������	��������
����������������	��	����������:��	���������"�

���������
����������������������������������������������������;<=�>?@A<BC�DE=F<BG�?HIE=�=EJ<EKLMNO;�PQRS;PST�L@=H<E�UBE<HV�NRWV�@B�XYXZ[\XZ]X\X�̂=�L@=H<E_UBE<H̀ IH=_<̂K@_âJ�b̂=S<BAE�c�DE=F<BGd�̂=�eEBE=�f@C?I<GV�NRWV�@B�XYXZ\gYZhX]i�̂=�eEBE=_f@C?I<G̀ IH=_<̂K@_âJb̂=�P̂ HGB=?jB<̂H�DE=F<BG_�31�42��31�k���������,���l�������.��������	��������������������
�����	��
����������������
�����	����
�
������������	����������������:������������	�
����������	����������������
�������

��������������	�������������	����
��������	�������������������:���������:��������	��0�����������
�������������	���������
�����	��
�����������
�������������+������������������	��1���������������������	���������		�����
��������������������$/-&�
�������������	�������������������
�������������	���	�
�������������	��������������m��������
�����	�S<BAE�c�QDE=@B<Ha�eE=F<BG������n�2
��������
�����	������������������o�		������������������	��p��������	��������������n
���������������
�����������������������������	��������
��������	����
����������������������	���������o�����������	����������������:��������������	������:�����������������	��������������
���������������
���	�����		���������n�2
��������"�����	����������������������������	���p��
�����������	������������������!������o�����qEE�P̂ ?HBC�1���������������	�4�������
���%-%(�%(-��,�����p����4��	��������

�����������	�	������������
�������������r�	��������������	���������������
�������������
�������	������-��P̂ HGB=?jB<̂H�eE=F<BG�������������	������������		������	���������
�����	�������������	�������������������������������r�	�����	�����	��������
��������������
�����������������������������������:���������	���������
�����	�����������������������������������!���
�����	������2�������������3,1s�,���"��������:�����"������������������+�����"�����������������UĵBB�P̂ ?HBC��t������4������u�4������	����
���$&5�3�p�����1���������
����"��v��������%%o5#-��t������4������u�4������	����
���:��	�������������������r�	�����������	���������
�����	�����
����"45&����		���������	���
������������	���������
����������	������������������������	�������
���	������
��������������
�������	������-������ ���� ����wxyz{|}y~|�w~|�}{~z������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���¡¢£~|~¤�y¥��
ESS Page 75



ARC 6629C
NATURAL RESOURCES DEPARTMENT[561]

Notice of Intended Action

Proposing rule making related to the recording and submission of groundwater hazard
statements and providing an opportunity for public comment

The Natural Resources Department hereby proposes to amend Chapter 9, “Groundwater Hazard
Documentation,” Iowa Administrative Code.

Legal Authority for Rule Making

This rule making is proposed under the authority provided in Iowa Code section 558.69.

State or Federal Law Implemented

This rule making implements, in whole or in part, Iowa Code section 558.69.

Purpose and Summary

The purpose of this proposed rule making is to align the groundwater hazard statement rules with
recent changes in Iowa law. Minor cleanups of rule language are also proposed.

2022 Iowa Acts, House File 2343, was signed into law on April 21, 2022. This legislation has
amended Iowa Code section 558.69 in two ways relevant to this rule making. First, it removes the
requirement to record a groundwater hazard statement if no relevant conditions are present on the
property. In these circumstances, prescribed statutory language must be included on the first page of the
transferring document. Second, this legislation allows county recorders to submit groundwater hazard
statements to the Department through the use of a web browser interface provided by the county land
record information system or through other electronic means.

More specifically, the proposed amendments:
● Remove the requirement to record groundwater hazard statements in circumstances that now

conflict with the Iowa Code.
● Reference a new groundwater hazard statement form. This proposed form is made

part of this rule making as a rule-referenced document. The proposed form can be found at
www.iowadnr.gov/Portals/idnr/uploads/forms/5420960%20Proposed.pdf. The proposed form clarifies
when a condition is present or not present and provides clear instructions on when to submit the form
versus when to include the statutory language. This proposed form is intended to rescind and replace
the current form in its entirety.

● Require the Department to enter into an agreement with the custodian of the county land record
information system prior to the submission of groundwater hazard statement forms through the system’s
web browser interface. This rule will ensure efficient and transparent submissions, particularly in future
years. Additionally, to account for unforeseen circumstances, the Department proposes rules that allow
for the easy digital transmission of groundwater hazard statements in the unlikely event the county land
record information system is inoperable.

● Ensure that the Department does not receive documents that transfer property when no
conditions are present on the property.

Fiscal Impact

This rule making has no fiscal impact to the State of Iowa. A copy of the fiscal impact statement is
available from the Department upon request.

1

ESS Page 76

http://www.iowadnr.gov/Portals/idnr/uploads/forms/5420960 Proposed.pdf


Jobs Impact

After analysis and review of this rule making, no impact on jobs has been found. A copy of the jobs
impact statement is available from the Department upon request.

Waivers

Any person who believes that the application of the discretionary provisions of this rule making would
result in hardship or injustice to that person may petition the Department for a waiver of the discretionary
provisions, if any, pursuant to 561—Chapter 10.

Public Comment

Any interested person may submit written comments concerning this proposed rule making. Written
comments in response to this rule making must be received by the Department no later than 4:30 p.m.
on November 22, 2022. Comments should be directed to:

Noah Poppelreiter
Iowa Department of Natural Resources
Wallace State Office Building
502 East Ninth Street
Des Moines, Iowa 50319
Email: GWHS@dnr.iowa.gov

Public Hearing

A public hearing at which persons may present their views orally will be held via Zoom meeting.
Persons who wish to attend the Zoom public hearing should contact Noah Poppelreiter via email at
noah.poppelreiter@dnr.iowa.gov. A meeting registration link will be provided prior to the hearing.
Persons who wish to make oral comments at the public hearing must submit a request to Noah
Poppelreiter prior to the hearing to facilitate an orderly hearing. A hearing is scheduled as follows:

November 22, 2022
12 noon to 1 p.m.

Video/conference call

Persons who wish to make oral comments at the public hearing may be asked to state their names for
the record and to confine their remarks to the subject of this proposed rule making.

Any persons who intend to attend the public hearing and have special requirements, such as those
related to hearing or mobility impairments, should contact the Department and advise of specific needs.

Review by Administrative Rules Review Committee

The Administrative Rules Review Committee, a bipartisan legislative committee which oversees rule
making by executive branch agencies, may, on its own motion or on written request by any individual or
group, review this rule making at its regular monthly meeting or at a special meeting. The Committee’s
meetings are open to the public, and interested persons may be heard as provided in Iowa Code section
17A.8(6).

The following rule-making actions are proposed:
ITEM 1. Amend subrule 9.1(4) as follows:
9.1(4) When groundwater hazard statement is required. A groundwater hazard statement shall be

presented to the county recorder along with the real estate transaction documents for any real estate
transaction in which either of the following circumstances exists: only when required by Iowa Code
section 558.69 or when otherwise required by Iowa law.

a. A declaration of value is required to be submitted pursuant to Iowa Code chapter 428A.

2

ESS Page 77

mailto:GWHS@dnr.iowa.gov
mailto:noah.poppelreiter@dnr.iowa.gov
https://www.legis.iowa.gov/committees/meetings/meetingsListComm?groupID=705&ga=89
https://www.legis.iowa.gov/docs/ico/section/558.69.pdf
https://www.legis.iowa.gov/docs/ico/chapter/428A.pdf


b. A private sewage disposal system inspection is required pursuant to 2008 Iowa Acts, chapter
1033, section 1. It shall be the duty of the transferor to determine whether an inspection is required and to
include the groundwater hazard statement and certified inspector’s report when filing transfer documents
that do not require a declaration of value.

ITEM 2. Amend subrule 9.2(1) as follows:
9.2(1) The department hereby adopts by reference Form 542-0960, “Groundwater Hazard

Statement” (February 1, 2023), which may be obtained from the department or local county recorder.
a. When a groundwater hazard statement is required to be presented to a county recorder pursuant

to subrule 9.1(2), the transferor or the transferor’s agent or attorney shall complete and sign department
present Form 542-0960, “Groundwater Hazard Statement,” which may be obtained from the department
or local county recorder. An The transferor’s agent or attorney may sign the form for on behalf of the
transferor, but in doing so the agent or attorney represents that a good-faith inquiry of the transferor
has been made regarding the information contained in the form and that the information is correct. The
department hereby adopts by reference Form 542-0960, “Groundwater Hazard Statement,” as amended
through July 18, 2012.

b. For all real estate transactions where a groundwater hazard statement is required to be submitted
to a county recorder pursuant to subrule 9.1(4) and where the real estate transaction is dated July 18,
2012, or later after February 1, 2023, a county recorder shall accept only the currently adopted form.
The department authorizes the reproduction of Form 542-0960 by any person through photocopying or
electronic means so long as the general format and wording are not altered in the reproduction thereof.

ITEM 3. Amend subrule 9.2(3) as follows:
9.2(3) In all cases, the county recorder shall return the original of or present the statement to

the transferee when with the recorded instrument when the instrument is returned or presented to
the transferee or the transferee’s designee. If the statement submitted reveals that there is a well, a
disposal site, an underground storage tank, or hazardous waste on the property, a copy of the form
shall be submitted to the department within 15 days after the close of each month. If a standardized
electronic format is established by agreement between the Iowa County Recorders Association and the
department, then the department’s copy may be submitted electronically in the manner established by
the agreement. Forms on which a private burial site is the sole matter disclosed and which do not reveal
the existence of a well, disposal site, underground storage tank, or hazardous waste on the property shall
not be submitted to the department. Forms shall be retained by the department for a period of five years.

ITEM 4. Rescind subrule 9.2(4) and adopt the following new subrule in lieu thereof:
9.2(4) When a county recorder accepts a groundwater hazard statement for recording, the county

recorder shall transmit the groundwater hazard statement form to the department through one of the
following methods:

a. Upon written agreement between the department and the custodian of the county land record
information system, recorded groundwater hazard statement forms shall be presented to the department
through a browser interface provided through the county land record information system for so long as
such an agreement remains in place. Any agreement shall include, but not be limited to, a requirement
that each form be posted to the system within 15 days of recording and a requirement that each form
remain on the system for at least five years.

b. In the absence of such an agreement, or if the county land record information system is
inoperable, a county recorder shall submit to the department via email a scanned or digital copy of each
groundwater hazard statement form within 15 days of its recording. All emails shall be directed to the
department’s records division. Forms in the custody of the department shall be retained for a period
of at least five years.

ITEM 5. Adopt the following new subrule 9.2(5):
9.2(5) Nothing in these rules shall be construed as requiring any party to submit to the department

the first page of any document that transfers a property on which no conditions are present.

3

ESS Page 78



September 27 – Email to Stakeholders 
 
Good afternoon! 
 
Thanks to everyone who has provided comments and feedback concerning the policy concepts that 
were discussed in recent stakeholder meetings and through various electronic communications. Last 
week we met with representatives of Iowa Title Guaranty and the Iowa Land Title Association to discuss 
these concepts. Based on that discussion, and on all other communications we have had with other 
stakeholders; we believe that there may be sufficient consensus to move forward with two legislative 
proposals. 
 

1. A proposal to solidify the authority of ESS and Iowa Land Records to establish a Terms of Service 
for the Iowa Land Records system.  
 
Section 331.605B, Code 2022, is amended by adding the following new subsection: NEW 
SUBSECTION. 
3. The governing board of the county land record information system shall establish policies and 
procedures for the operation of the system, and may establish reasonable limitations on usage, 
requirements for the authentication of users, the prohibition of illegal or unauthorized uses, and 
the prohibition of foreign access from a location outside of the United States. 
 

2. A proposal to authorize ESS and Iowa Land Records to provide access to information through an 
API and on a batch basis in limited conditions (only between public agencies or aggregated 
anonymous data) to be defined in the Iowa Code. 
 
Section 331.603, subsection 5(a) is amended to read as follows: 
5. a. The governing board of the county land record information system shall not enter into an 
agreement to provide access to electronic documents or records on a batch basis except as 
authorized herein. 
 
The governing board of the county land record information system may enter into an agreement 
to provide access to electronic documents or records on a batch basis or through an application 
programming interface to a public agency or governmental entity as defined by Iowa law or 
administrative rule. The governing board of the county land record information system may 
collect a fee for providing access to records or information through an agreement authorized as 
provided in this paragraph. 
 
The governing board of the county land record information system may enter into an agreement 
to provide access to individual electronic documents or records through an application 
programming interface. The governing board of the county land record information system may 
collect a fee for providing access to records or information through an agreement authorized as 
provided in this paragraph. 
 
The governing board of the county land record information system may enter into an agreement 
to provide access to aggregated anonymous data through an application programming interface 
or any other method. The governing board of the county land record information system may 
collect a fee for providing access to records or information through an agreement authorized as 
provided in this paragraph. 

ESS Page 79



 
The A county recorder may collect reasonable fees for access to county electronic documents 
and records pursuant to an agreement. The fees shall not exceed the actual cost of providing 
access to the electronic documents and records. “Actual cost” means only those expenses 
directly attributable to providing access to electronic documents and records. “Actual cost” shall 
not include costs such as employment benefits, depreciation, maintenance, electricity, or 
insurance associated with the administration of the office of the county recorder or the county 
land record information system. 
 

Attached are updated background documents for your reference. 
 
Please take a few moments to review these updated materials. As mentioned above, based on the 
comments and feedback received, there appears to be no objection about either of these proposals and 
a general consensus that we can move forward. We wish to be sure.  If you have any further comments 
or questions, or if you have any concerns, please let me know. We wish to address any issues before 
submitting a formal request for legislation. Again, many thanks for your guidance and input. 
 
Best regards, 
 
Phil 
   

ESS Page 80



STAKEHOLDER STATUS UPDATE 

1. A proposal to solidify the authority of ESS and Iowa Land Records to establish a Terms of Service 
for the Iowa Land Records system.  
 
Section 331.605B, Code 2022, is amended by adding the following new subsection: NEW 
SUBSECTION. 
3. The governing board of the county land record information system shall establish policies and 
procedures for the operation of the system, and may establish reasonable limitations on usage, 
requirements for the authentication of users, the prohibition of illegal or unauthorized uses, and 
the prohibition of foreign access from a location outside of the United States. 
 

2. A proposal to authorize ESS and Iowa Land Records to provide access to information through an 
API and on a batch basis in limited conditions (only between public agencies or aggregated 
anonymous data) to be defined in the Iowa Code. 
 
Section 331.603, subsection 5(a) is amended to read as follows: 
5. a. The governing board of the county land record information system shall not enter into an 
agreement to provide access to electronic documents or records on a batch basis except as 
authorized herein. 
 
PUBLIC AGENCY 
The governing board of the county land record information system may enter into an agreement 
to provide access to electronic documents or records on a batch basis or through an application 
programming interface to a public agency or governmental entity as defined by Iowa law or 
administrative rule. The governing board of the county land record information system may 
collect a fee for providing access to records or information through an agreement authorized as 
provided in this paragraph. 
 

ALTERNATIVE 
The governing board of the county land record information system may enter into an 
agreement to provide access to electronic documents or records on a batch basis or 
through an application programming interface to a public agency or governmental 
entity as defined by Iowa law or administrative rule. Electronic documents provided 
under this authorization shall be pertinent to the role or function of the public agency. 
The governing board of the county land record information system may collect a fee for 
providing access to records or information through an agreement authorized as provided 
in this paragraph. 

The idea is to clarify that we aren’t going to send a bunch of mortgage or deed 
documents to the DNR, but clearly groundwater documents are pertinent to the role and 
function of the DNR. If we handle it in this way, then we don’t need a litany of granular 
things that can or cannot be transferred. Also, the other safeguard is that any 
agreement is going to go through our public process – and I know you and Jan will be 
watching it like a hawk!  Let us know if this adequately addresses any uneasiness. 

 
   

ESS Page 81



STAKEHOLDER STATUS UPDATE 

INDIVIDUAL RECORDS 
The governing board of the county land record information system may enter into an agreement 
to provide access to individual electronic documents or records through an application 
programming interface. The governing board of the county land record information system may 
collect a fee for providing access to records or information through an agreement authorized as 
provided in this paragraph. 
 
AGGREGATED ANONYMOUS DATA 
The governing board of the county land record information system may enter into an agreement 
to provide access to aggregated anonymous data through an application programming interface 
or any other method. The governing board of the county land record information system may 
collect a fee for providing access to records or information through an agreement authorized as 
provided in this paragraph. 
 
The A county recorder may collect reasonable fees for access to county electronic documents 
and records pursuant to an agreement. The fees shall not exceed the actual cost of providing 
access to the electronic documents and records. “Actual cost” means only those expenses 
directly attributable to providing access to electronic documents and records. “Actual cost” shall 
not include costs such as employment benefits, depreciation, maintenance, electricity, or 
insurance associated with the administration of the office of the county recorder or the county 
land record information system. 

 

ESS Page 82



Email Thread with a Stakeholder – Week of October 3 
 
Personally, I don’t have any problem with the terms of service amendment. Every online application 
pretty much needs to have them. The terms you eventually institute might be one of the few I actually 
read. Are you able to share who the bad actors are you’re dealing with now, whether specific 
organizations or general industries? 
 
Let me begin by inviting everyone to review our Current Terms of Use and Privacy Policies (see 
attached). The legislation being sought is intended to affirm and solidify our ability to adopt and 
implement these published policies. These have been adopted to prevent actors from simply scraping 
data from the system without permission for the purpose of building their own databases for 
marketing or other commercial purposes. The system wasn’t built to do that. It was intended to be a 
resource for people working in the real estate industry and for citizens who wanted to look at their 
own records without having to go to the courthouse. We have received correspondence from some 
who have claimed that we can’t do that because we are providing access to public records. We believe 
that the system should be able to set reasonable rules for its use.  
 
If you have comments or suggestions for the current Terms, please let us know and we will run them 
through our policy process for review. We have a position for a real estate attorney on our governing 
board (currently David Erickson) so that you all have a voice. 
 
I want to make sure I’m understanding the APIs and batch transfers correctly. It appears only 
governmental entities and public agencies would be allowed batch transfers of full data from documents 
in the system. Your interpretation is correct. The proposed language is intended only for the bulk data 
transfers to be with other public agencies such as DNR or Revenue. We considered whether to allow 
for certain legitimate commercial organizations to do the same – but decided not to go that far due to 
concerns from other stakeholders including ILTA. We have previously stated that some guardrails 
might be needed to take those next steps and that we needed to have a strong consensus on that to 
proceed. In our judgement that consensus doesn’t exist – so we’re NOT going there. The examples of 
possible organizations who might be interested in such a use included LexisNexis or CoreLogic – but 
we have received no requests from them. 
 
The other API applications would apply only to aggregated and anonymous data, and access to 
searches for individual records only – not bulk transfers. 
 
Aside from the fact that someone would need to be willing to spend the money to set up an API, there 
don’t appear to be restrictions on who could use one to get individual documents or aggregated 
anonymous data. Some questions about this: 
 

1. How will the requests for APIs be vetted? Do you expect internal policy restrictions on who 
CLRIS is willing to work with to create an API? Mainly I’m thinking of title insurance agencies and 
general data miners, but I’m sure there are others who might approach you for access who 
some would find undesirable. See the response above. If something was ever considered, we 
know that some guardrails would be needed, and there is much more work to do on that. To 
repeat – we are not pursuing methods for the bulk transfer of data for commercial purposes – 
public agencies only.  If anyone wants bulk data – you have to continue to go to the individual 
counties as current Iowa law allows for that. 

ESS Page 83



2. Do you plan on charging fees for setting up the API, for each batch transfer, for both? As noted 
in the draft legislation, there could be a fee structure for access to an API for individual 
records, aggregated anonymous data, or with public agencies. But that would be subject to 
mutual agreement – we don’t have a standard proposed fee structure. We would expect it to 
develop on a case‐by‐case basis. Mainly because building an API does have a cost.  BE 
ASSURED – searching for individual records through the website will continue to be “fee free” 
as required by current law. 

 
3. For those without APIs, would the 120 document per day limit remain? We completed a 

customer survey in August and received nearly 600 responses, and that was a question we 
asked. Over 90% of the respondents said that 120 per day was enough or more than enough. 
As we proceed with the redesign of the search engine – this will be reviewed. But the survey 
results give us confidence we are in the right ballpark. Note that the current Terms of Use 
does allow exceptions upon request. 

 
I hope I was able to adequately address your questions. Thanks very much for your comments. Happy 
to respond further as desired. 
 
Phil 
 
 
 
   

ESS Page 84



Will those with an API for individual records be limited to 120 per day? Or will that be case‐by‐case 
under your terms of service? Or will they be generally exempt from the limit? 
 
 

Nothing has been developed yet, so we are speculating at this point.  But with regard to APIs for 
searching for individual records, we anticipate that an intermediate party would not be searching 
but rather individuals using their services will be. Our thinking is that it would not be typical for 
any individual using a third‐party service to exceed the “limit.” We will likely put some governor in 
place to prevent that from happening, and we would not want someone to be repeatedly 
searching to acquire a large volume of documents. 
 
Here is a likely scenario. User goes to the third‐party website and finds information about an 
individual property. They decide they would like to see the deed for the property (the most recent 
one). They click on a link that initiates a search to retrieve that one deed. The ILR API allows the 
third‐party system to retrieve that document.  If the user wants another document – they search 
through the third‐party site for another property and then would repeat the same cycle.  That’s 
the concept we are thinking of. 
 
If the question is, would we support the use of an API to search for individual documents and 
allow it to be used to circumvent our policies? The answer is “no”. 
 
Hope this helps! 

 
 
 
   

ESS Page 85



Interesting. I know there are those outfits who advertise that everyone should have a copy of their deed 
and then charge people to send them a copy of something the people could easily get for free. 
Presumably that’s not what we’re talking about here? And you don’t seem to anticipate this being 
something abstractors or other real estate professionals want to do, at least for individual records? 
 
Sorry for all these questions. I appreciate you being responsive. 
 
 

We just ran into a situation like you are referencing with our veterans.  Check out this blog post on 
ILR. https://iowalandrecords.org/third‐parties‐charging‐for‐military‐records/ 
 
We are not looking to help anyone take advantage of citizens. Rather, there are some who may 
legitimately wish to use a multi‐state service to access information. For some consumers it may 
just be easier to go to a multi‐state service rather than sign up for 50 – even with a fee involved. 
This happens all the time in E‐Submission.  We offer a browser‐based submission service (with 
basically the lowest recording fees in the country), but we only serve Iowa. There are many, many 
people who use national third‐party eRecording companies because they want to reach all states 
through one system – even when paying a premium for that privilege.  This would be no different. 
 
If abstractors and other real estate professionals have some ideas on things we can do to provide 
better service, through an API or other means, then we sincerely want to hear it. For now, we will 
be focused on improving our search service – which is intended to help professionals find the 
records they need. Any ideas are welcomed for how we could leverage an API that makes sense 
for our Iowa professional groups. 
 
This “reply all” thread I’m sure has been helpful for everyone! 

 
 
   

ESS Page 86



Iowa Land Records 
DRAFT – User Terms and Conditions ‐ DRAFT 

Updated 092722 

 

Background. Iowa Land Records was created to provide business and citizen access to public records, 

enable electronic recording, and generally be a source of information and services for real estate 

professionals in the conduct of their professional responsibilities. Iowa Land Records has a large 

database of public records including land records and other legal documents. There are currently more 

than 22 million records posted for public access at https://iowalandrecords.org/. 

 In recent years there has been an increase in attempts to disregard normal usage by outside parties 

using fake identities or by attempting to circumvent security rules. Changes are being planned to 

address these concerns, and to strengthen procedures for managing access to the website and 

applications. As these steps are taken, it is important to back up these changes with state policy. The 

Electronic Services System, more commonly known as Iowa Land Records or the county land record 

information system, has established terms and conditions (see the attached current Terms of Use and 

Privacy policies) governing the use of the website https://iowalandrecords.org/terms‐of‐use‐portal/ and 

https://iowalandrecords.org/terms‐of‐use‐esubmission/. 

Website terms and conditions, also known as Terms of Service, Terms of Use or Disclaimer policies are 

widely used and accepted as a means for setting rules for the use of applications and information made 

available through the Internet. 

Here are few examples of website terms and conditions used by State of Iowa officials and agencies. 

 https://www.iowaeda.com/terms‐of‐use/ 

 https://idph.iowa.gov/Terms 

 https://www.legis.iowa.gov/law/disclaimer 

 https://www.iowa.gov/policies 

 https://sos.iowa.gov/disclaimer.html 

 https://www.auditor.iowa.gov/privacy/ 

************************* 

After review with the various ESS and Iowa Land Records stakeholders, the following legislation is 
proposed. 
 
Section 331.605B, Code 2022, is amended by adding the following new subsection: NEW SUBSECTION. 
 

 3. The governing board of the county land record information system shall establish policies and procedures 
for the operation of the system, and may establish reasonable limitations on usage, requirements for the 
authentication of users, the prohibition of illegal or unauthorized uses, and the prohibition of foreign access 
from a location outside of the United States. 

 

It should be noted this change is primarily for the purpose of affirming the current Terms of Use, and 

that it is not intended to authorize any changes in fee policy. The provisions of Section 331.605B (2) will 

remain in force “… The governing board of the county land record information system shall not collect a 

fee for viewing, accessing, or printing documents in the county land record information system unless 

specifically authorized by statute.” 

 

ESS Page 87



Updated 092722 

Iowa Land Records 
DRAFT ‐ API Transfers: Public Agencies & Aggregated Anonymous Data
Background. There are currently more than 22 million records posted for public access at 

https://iowalandrecords.org/. Thousands of people search the database every month. A web browser 

interface with a search application is perfect for individuals and companies who search for individual 

documents about specific real estate transactions. The current Iowa Land Records policy is that 

individual users should not search for and view more than 120 documents a day. A recent survey 

showed that this was acceptable to more than 90% of Iowa Land Records users. 

But if you are an organization with a business purpose that requires more than a few records, or if 

updated records are required daily, tasking a person to search for records through a browser is not very 

efficient. A little more than 8% of survey respondents indicated that 120 records a day was not enough. 

There appear to be cases where legitimate organizations may need access to a higher volume of records. 

Some of them could benefit from access to an API (application programming interface). See the attached 

Exhibit A for more information about APIs. 

Iowa Land Records suggests that consideration be given to a policy change to allow for the “batch basis” 

transfer through an Iowa Land Records API (Application Programming Interface) in specific 

circumstances. Iowa Code section 331.601A defines “batch basis” as “the delivery of an accumulation of 

electronic documents or records recorded or maintained by the county recorder.” The authorization 

would be limited to certain types of users or uses which have a legitimate regulatory need. Since any 

“batch basis” transfer is currently prohibited under Iowa law, an amendment to the Code is required to 

enable this process. Specifically, authorizations may be required in Section 331.603, subsection 5(a) of 

the Code. 

The following are a few cases where an API makes sense. 

Transferring data to other public agencies. A possible example might be groundwater hazard 

statements. These documents are recorded daily, and they provide information about wells, 

storage tanks and other features on property that are of interest. An API could be created to 

allow for regular transfer of these records to the Department of Natural Resources in service to 

an important policy goal. The current prohibition of transfers on a “batch basis” would prevent 

this from being implemented. 

Transferring anonymous aggregated data. Government and private organizations might be 

interested in aggregated market data about real estate transactions. The information could be 

aggregated and summarized for a county or region. Information about individual transactions or 

the parties to those transaction would be anonymous. Looking at public records information in 

this way could help answer questions like “How many real estate mortgages were closed in SE 

Iowa for the second quarter of 2022?” An API could be created to allow for regular access to the 

aggregated anonymous data. 

Depending on the format of the aggregated data, the current prohibition of transfers on a 

“batch basis” might prevent this from being implemented. 

ESS Page 88



Iowa Land Records 
DRAFT ‐ API Transfers: Public Agencies, Individual Records & ‐ DRAFT 
Aggregated Anonymous Data 

Updated 092722 

The following language is presented to stakeholders for discussion. This language had not yet been 

drafted as of August, 2022, when the stakeholder meetings were held. 

DRAFT LEGISLATION 

Section 331.603, subsection 5(a) is amended to read as follows: 

5. a. The governing board of the county land record information system shall not enter into an 

agreement to provide access to electronic documents or records on a batch basis except as authorized 

herein. 

The governing board of the county land record information system may enter into an agreement to 

provide access to electronic documents or records on a batch basis or through an application 

programming interface to a public agency or governmental entity as defined by Iowa law or 

administrative rule. The governing board of the county land record information system may collect a fee 

for providing access to records or information through an agreement authorized as provided in this 

paragraph. 

The governing board of the county land record information system may enter into an agreement to 

provide access to individual electronic documents or records through an application programming 

interface. The governing board of the county land record information system may collect a fee for 

providing access to records or information through an agreement authorized as provided in this 

paragraph. 

The governing board of the county land record information system may enter into an agreement to 

provide access to aggregated anonymous data through an application programming interface or any 

other method. The governing board of the county land record information system may collect a fee for 

providing access to records or information through an agreement authorized as provided in this 

paragraph. 

The A county recorder may collect reasonable fees for access to county electronic documents and 

records pursuant to an agreement. The fees shall not exceed the actual cost of providing access to the 

electronic documents and records. “Actual cost” means only those expenses directly attributable to 

providing access to electronic documents and records. “Actual cost” shall not include costs such as 

employment benefits, depreciation, maintenance, electricity, or insurance associated with the 

administration of the office of the county recorder or the county land record information system. 

 

EXPLANATION 

This amendment would authorize the Electronic Services System and Iowa Land Records to provide 

access to certain data on a batch basis through an Application Programming Interface (API). A batch 

basis transfer method would only be authorized between public agencies, or when the data was 

aggregated and anonymous. It would also for access to information about individual records (not batch 

basis) through an API. Any fees, if applicable would be subject to the mutual agreement between ESS 

ESS Page 89



Iowa Land Records 
DRAFT ‐ API Transfers: Public Agencies, Individual Records & ‐ DRAFT 
Aggregated Anonymous Data 

Updated 092722 

and the parties accessing information through an API. This legislation does NOT authorize the transfer of 

information on a batch basis to private entities except when it is aggregated and anonymous. 

Access to the Iowa Land Records website and search engine would continue to be provided at no cost to 

the user. This is required under Section 331.605B, subsection 2 of the Iowa Code which reads: “A 

recorder or the governing board of the county land record information system shall not collect a fee for 

viewing, accessing, or printing documents in the county land record information system unless 

specifically authorized by statute.” 

Individual counties would continue to be authorized to provide access to county electronic documents 

pursuant to an agreement. 

 

ESS Page 90



Iowa Land Records 

What is an API? It is sharing information through an Application Programming Interface (API). Here’s how Amazon 

defines an API. “APIs are mechanisms that enable two software components to communicate with each other 

using a set of definitions and protocols. For example, the weather bureau’s software system contains daily weather 

data. The weather app on your phone “talks” to this system via APIs and shows you daily weather updates on your 

phone.” 

You can learn more about APIs from numerous sources including Amazon (https://aws.amazon.com/what‐is/api/), 

Wikipedia (https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/API), or Google (https://www.google.com/ ‐ just type “API”) 

Iowa Land Records has a large database of public records including land records and other legal documents. There 

are currently more than 22 million records posted for public access at https://iowalandrecords.org/. Thousands of 

people search the database every month, and annually there are more the 4 million searches. This is perfect for 

individuals and companies who search for individual documents about specific real estate transactions. 

But if you are an organization with a business purpose that requires more than a few records, or if updated records 

are required daily, tasking a person to search for records through a browser is not very efficient. There is a better 

way – an API. 

Does Iowa Land Records use APIs? Yes, for specific purposes. For example, there is an API that manages 

communications between the Iowa Land Records system and the recording systems in Iowa counties. When a new 

document is recorded in a county, the indexing information, and an image of the stamped, recorded document is 

transferred to Iowa Land Records through an API. ILR then posts the records for public access on the website. 

Electronic recording is also facilitated through an API for many customers. Did you know that the Iowa Department 

of Revenue submits many tax liens and lien releases for recording in Iowa counties through an Iowa Land Records 

API? 

Can anyone access data through an Iowa Land Records API? No. Iowa law currently prohibits the county land 

record information system (Iowa Land Records) from entering into an agreement to provide access to electronic 

documents or records on a batch basis. See Section 331.603, subsection 5a of the Code of Iowa.  The term “Batch 

basis” was defined in the legislation to be “the delivery of an accumulation of electronic documents or records 

recorded or maintained by the county recorder.” See Section 331.601A of the Iowa Code. At the time of the 

legislative action in 2009, there were concerns about personally identifiable information (PII) contained in public 

records. The primary thrust of the legislation was to initiate a comprehensive redaction of PII from copies of the 

records prior to posting them for public access on the ILR website. 

For many years now, every record posted online has been inspected for PII, and if present, the PII has been 

redacted. There are also systems in place to quickly remove public access to a record if PII is discovered. 

Should anyone access data through an Iowa Land Records API? For most people, no. The ILR web site and search 

engine provide an easy and quick way to access specific records associated with a real estate transaction. Also, 

connecting to an API to retrieve data is not a trivial exercise. For most people and organizations, the costs of using 

an API would be challenging if not prohibitive. Development of APIs by Iowa Land Records also requires the 

investment of financial resources. Development of an API must make business sense for both the user and for Iowa 

Land Records. 

Updated 092722 
ESS Page 91



From: phil@clris.com  
Sent: Thursday, September 29, 2022 1:41 PM 
Subject: Iowa Land Records Stakeholders ‐ Different Topic ‐ Distributed Ledger Technology 

All, 
You may recall that one of the topics discussed in our meetings last month was the idea of setting up a 
work group to consider topics relating to blockchain and distributed ledger technology. We’ve given this 
a little thought and would like to share with you some ideas that might provide a framework for such an 
activity. Please consider this to be DRAFT. The attached document includes a rough draft of a general 
policy or “mission” statement. It also includes a series of questions and processes for exploring the 
topic.  The idea is to not just review the abstract concept of blockchain and distributed ledger 
technology – but to more closely examine the prototypes and production products that use the 
technology – particular those products that relate to business functions in the real estate industry.  

Is this an approach you would be interested in taking and would you be willing to participate in such an 
effort? Please “REPLY ALL” and share your thoughts and ideas. 

Thanks very much. We look forward to hearing from you! 

Phil 

ESS Page 92



ESS Page 93



DRAFT
State and county officials, and the public, need to know who 

has an interest in what real property. Business interests are 

working hard to apply new technologies to increase 

productivity, mitigate risk and become more efficient. 

Government interests are also working hard to use technology 

to improve services and to employ best practices to serve their 

citizens and constituents.

The Iowa Real Estate Industry supports these efforts and 

remains committed to maintaining and strengthening the public 

land registry in recording jurisdictions throughout the United 

States. We support the development of Smart Contracts and 

the use of other new technologies to increase efficiency.

However, they must be operated with a commitment to continue 

documenting and memorializing all real estate transactions in 

the public land registry. All information about real estate 

ownership, exchanges and financing must be available to the 

public. We reaffirm our commitment to the public land registry 

and caution against privatization or any efforts to restrict 

access to this information.IS THIS A PERSPECTIVE YOU
SHARE? SUGGESTED EDITS?

ESS Page 94



IF A REAL ESTATE TRANSACTION IS EXECUTED USING A 
“SMART CONTRACT” OR IS OTHERWISE FACILITATED BY 
BLOCKCHAIN | DISTRIBUTED LEDGER TECHNOLOGY …

• Will the block chain be “public” or “private”?

• If public, how will other people/organizations be able to access 

information on the block chain?

• Does the Smart Contract and related business process produce 

companion “traditional” documents that will be recorded?

• If yes, how will the traditionally recorded documents be cross 

referenced in the ledger, and vice versa? Unique codes or 

identifiers?

• If no, how will the public (and various industry partners) be 

informed of the transaction?

• Alternatively, will the Smart Contract and related business 

process produce a new kind of document to be recorded? What 

form will it take?

ESS Page 95



PRIVATE SECTOR ORGANIZATIONS ARE DEVELOPING 
BLOCKCHAIN/SMART CONTRACT PRODUCTS, AND SOME 
ARE BEING IMPLEMENTED NOW. WHAT ARE THEY AND 
HOW DO THEY WORK?

• Process for reviewing newly deployed and emerging products

• Process for documenting the workflow and artifacts resulting 

from the new products

• Process for understanding and documenting how the new 

products intersect with the public land registry

• Process for exploring/defining best practices for the industry –

especially with respect to public access to information and 

memorialization in the public land registry

• Process for exploring/defining best practices for the land records 

management systems and eRecording with respect to 

transactions facilitated with Smart Contracts

• Process for exploring/developing guidelines for how Smart 

Contracts and related processes interact with various segments 

of the title industry

ESS Page 96



Options To Consider
•Working Group?

•Interviews and Meetings with Smart

Contract and Block Chain Product

Developers

•White Paper or Best Practices Documents

•Advocacy Position

 Supporting the Public Land Registry and Private
Industry efforts to become more efficient

 Affirming the vital need to document real estate
transactions in the public land registry

 Act as a clearinghouse of information regarding
the development of services and products in the
real estate industry which leverage distributed
ledger technologies

ESS Page 97



ESS Page 98



ESS Coordinating Committee Member Terms 
 
 

Committee Basics: 
 

Term Lengths: 2 years 
Nominated By: ICRA District Members 
Appointed By: Iowa County Recorders Association Executive Board  
Term Lengths: 2 years 
Number of Terms: 
Eligibility: 

 
Stakeholders: 

Officers: 

Multiple and consecutive terms are allowed 
County Recorders and Deputy Recorders are eligible to serve on the ESS 
Coordinating Committees and Subcommittees 
While not common, stakeholders who may be represented on the ESS 
Coordinating Committee may also serve on Subcommittees 
The Subcommittee will designate members to serve as Chair, Vice-Chair and 
Secretary/Treasurer who will facilitate meetings 

 
 
ESS – 1.6 ESS Coordinating Committee. 

(Iowa Code Section 331.604, Subsection 3(a); 2005 Iowa Acts, Chapter 179, Division VII, 
Section 101, Subsection 1; Section 28E, Subsection 6, paragraph 3) 

 
1.6(1) Committee Established. An ESS Coordinating Committee is established to 
coordinate efforts to deliver services and information through the Electronic Services 
System and the county land record information system. The Committee shall consist of 
no more than 15 members, and the number of members may be adjusted as 
circumstances require. 

 
1.6(2) Qualification of Members. Members of the ESS Coordinating Committee shall 
consist of eight County Recorders who shall be representative of the Electronic Services 
System membership as follows: 

 
a. One County Recorder shall be appointed from each of the six geographic 

districts established by the Iowa County Recorders Association. 
b. One County Recorder shall be appointed from one of five counties with the 

highest population based on the most recent official U.S. census. 
c. One County Recorder who is a member of the Iowa County Recorders 

Association Executive Board. 
To the extent practicable, the County Recorders should be representative of the 
various indexing and imaging systems utilized throughout Iowa. Deputy Recorders 
shall be eligible to serve on the ESS Coordinating Committee. 

 
Members of the Coordinating Committee may include representatives of stakeholders 
and professionals who develop, originate or process official real estate documents. 
Stakeholder representatives shall comprise no more than six positions on the 
Coordinating Committee. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ESS Page 99



ESS Page 100



ESS/Iowa Land Records 
8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2 

Johnston, Iowa 50131 

November 10th, 2022 

To:  ESS Coordinating Committee 

From: Census Lo-Liyong; Lisa Long 

Re:  Communications Subcommittee Update 

The communications Subcommittee met on October 27th, 2022, part of the agenda included the ICRA 
recorders directory and a report on the Deputies Conference that was held in September, 22nd 2022.  

ICRA recorders directory updates will be made after the election. Polk county has agreed to print the 
directories. The directory will be approximately 100 pages, color ink, 1 side, GBC spiral binding and white 
24# paper = $3.99 each. It is proposed that the selling price be set at $6 to help cover shipping cost 
Recorders can start ordering them after elections to determine quantity (some counties may want more 
than 1 copy of the directory). A suggestion was made for ICRA to pay for one copy per county, we are 
waiting for feedback from the board. 

The Deputies Conference was held at the West 48 Conference Center. It was well attended by Deputy 
Recorders and a few Recorders. The agenda was focused on People, Process and Performance.  

We invited two speakers who were proposed by the Recorders, Mr. Mike Wagner was the keynote speaker 
and he focused on working as a team and giving feedback. While Brecka Putnam presented on grief at the 
counter, a very immersive presentation about attending to bereaved relatives. The Deputies were 
equipped with tools to help them succeed using E-submission and the ILR portal. The conference included 
a discussion on the new updates on the groundwater hazard statement. Included was a roundtable 
discussion and highlights on the ESS policies and procedures.  

Following the conference, the attendees completed a feedback survey that is attached. Based on the 
feedback, the conference was a success, the top selection was mainly the two speakers and the conference 
location. Most deputy recorders have proposed for Mike Wagners’ presentation at the Recorders 
conference. For in depth analysis, please find attached the feedback survey. 

Action Requested. ESS is seeking comments and a decision on the finance for the Recorders directory. 

ESS Page 101



Powered by

ILR 2022 Deputy Conference 
Evaluation Form Final
Friday, September 23, 2022

ESS Page 102



Powered by

Date Created: Friday, September 23, 2022

37
Total Responses

Complete Responses: 37

ESS Page 103



Powered by

Q1: Which presentation(s) did you find the most helpful? Please number from one 
to seven - one being the most helpful and six being the least helpful.
Answered: 36   Skipped: 1

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

You are the TEAM: How Everyone Succeeds Together

E-Submission Staples for Success

Grief at the Counter

ILR Portal - Searching for Excellence

ISBA & DNR Panel Discussion - Groundwater Hazard Process

Standards Roundtable Discussion

ILR Policies & Procedures Highlights

ESS Page 104



Powered by

Q1: Which presentation(s) did you find the most helpful? Please number from one 
to seven - one being the most helpful and six being the least helpful.
Answered: 36   Skipped: 1

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 TOTAL WEIGH
TED 

AVERA
GE

You are 
the 
TEAM: 
How 
Everyon
e 
Succeed
s 
Togethe
r

69.70%
23

6.06%
2

6.06%
2

6.06%
2

3.03%
1

3.03%
1

6.06%
2

33 6

E-
Submiss
ion 
Staples 
for 

10.71%
3

17.86%
5

21.43%
6

32.14%
9

7.14%
2

3.57%
1

7.14%
2

28 4.54

ESS Page 105



Powered by

Q2: Please rate your overall satisfaction with this conference.
Answered: 36   Skipped: 1

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

CONFERENCE CONTENT

REGISTRATION PROCESS

VENUE/LOCATION

MEALS/BREAKS

Very Satisfied Somewhat Satisfied Neutral Somewhat Dissatisfied Very Dissatisfied
ESS Page 106



Powered by

Q2: Please rate your overall satisfaction with this conference.
Answered: 36   Skipped: 1

VERY 
SATISFIE

D

SOMEW
HAT 

SATISFIE
D

NEUTRAL SOMEW
HAT 

DISSATIS
FIED

VERY 
DISSATIS

FIED

TOTAL WEIGHTE
D 

AVERAGE

CONFEREN
CE 
CONTENT

69.44%
25

25.00%
9

2.78%
1

0%
0

2.78%
1

36 1

REGISTRAT
ION 
PROCESS

86.11%
31

11.11%
4

0%
0

0%
0

2.78%
1

36 1

VENUE/LO
CATION

91.67%
33

2.78%
1

2.78%
1

0%
0

2.78%
1

36 1

MEALS/BR
EAKS

94.44%
34

2.78%
1

0%
0

0%
0

2.78%
1

36 1

ESS Page 107



Powered by

What was the most beneficial aspect of the conference?

7

Mike Wagner's presentation
Networking and peer-to-peer interactions and conversations.
Lisa Long, Mike Wager, Brecka Putnam & Census Lo-liyong
New GWH information
Getting to see the ILR staff face-to-face
Updates on practices - good snack
Leadership and team communication dialogue to create a better environment for change in 
work habits and behaviors.
Listening to all other counties daily routine.
Networking event - meeting new people - making connections for troubleshooting with 
people in the same job or position.
The networking is always my favorite part as well as the speaker. We got the best 
information.
The conversation with other counties - the friendships.
The moxer on Wednesday night was super beneficial to meet people and very informal. 
Mikes positive encouragement
The explanation of the redaction process
Meeting the staff at ILR face to face.

ESS Page 108



Powered by

What was the most beneficial aspect of the conference?

8

Leadership presenter and new ILR changes soon.
Networking 
Networking
Tips given by Mike and Brecka
The information and detail.
I thoroughly enjoyed the two guest speakers, Mike and Brecka

I like being able to learn from other counties.
Speaker
TEAM presentation
I like everything - i couldn't hear Phil very well.
Amazing venue, best conference in 10 years.
Worked together as a whole.

ESS Page 109



Powered by

What topics should be included in future ILR conferences?

9

More group sharing ideas of how to work more productive , less lecture.
Would like to see what the submitter sees
Dealing with difficult customers
We really enjoyed when you did Tips/Tricks
Submitter interface
It would be beneficial to have DNR here to speak on boat, snows, atv especially with the new law. Also i think it would be 
beneficial to have someone here to speak about customer service. Also roundtable discussion in the morning session. 
For deputies - not as much about things beyond our control - Add more about shortcuts and ILR processes we can use day to 
day.
Smat contracts, blockchain, What role Recorders have in these and what we can do to advocate for our own office.
Mike Wagner's topic on Feedback should be given to Recorder's Bosses - not just deputies.
More roundtable discussions
Topics were very well.
Roundtable group chat
Keep this venue and caterer. More like Mike Wagner

Do brief presentation showing submitter's side. We get calls on how to do something on their side. I have given help on what I 
know but otherwise refer them to Lisa. Some were simple fixes I learned from watching tutorials.

ESS Page 110



Powered by

What is one thing you learned at this conference that you will share with your 
team?

10

How important the Recorder's office is to a community.
GWH info
Everything
More info on ESS
There will be new "reasons" and "subcategories" to be used in the ILR when rejecting ILR documents - changes 
have to be made.
ILR has webinar re: restamping we can watch
DNR - new code and law for GWH, where new statement should be placed.

I will take back everything that Mike Wagner spoke about. The speakers that are sent to the conference are so 
helpful and knowledgable and very enjoyable to listen to. I also did like the Grief at the Counter.Thank you for 
hosting.
Please work together, everyone is important in the team.
Some of the proposed changes.
color signatures are fine.

ESS Page 111



Powered by

What is one thing you learned at this conference that you will share with your 
team?

11

You can restamp a document after recording within 5 days
New 2023 GWH, our own hospice info for our office.
Changes coming to the ILR portal.
Changes/ ideas

New look of E-Sub decline choices.

Process detail of recording a document.
Too many items to list.
Grief at the Counter
Grief at the counter - excellent as we deal with this weekly. Please consider giving everyone a mic when they 
speak so we can hear them.

Future improvements in e-submission.

ESS Page 112



ELECTRONIC SERVICES SYSTEM 
8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2 

Johnston, Iowa  50131 

February 11, 2022 

To: Jerry Lewallen, President 
Members of the PRIA Board of Directors 

From: Phil Dunshee, ILR Project Manager 

Re: PRIA Operating Rules 
Public Land Registry

On behalf of the Electronic Services System and Iowa Land Records, I wish to express our thanks and 
appreciation to the leadership and working group members who have toiled over the update to the 
operating rules for many, many months. Their work has been thoughtful, thorough, and generally open to 
some new ideas. The work is nearly complete and soon will be before you for approval. 

There are some specific elements that merit attention and praise. 

 Modifications to the Transparency Policy which make it clear that PRIA is committed to informing
the membership of its policies and actions.

o PRIA staff and leadership should be proactive in providing advance notice to the
members of pending policies and actions.

 The Advocacy Policy provides that the officers and board will apprise the membership of
advocacy actions.

o Any pending actions should be proactively communicated to the membership, and when
actions must be taken due to time-sensitivity, PRIA staff and leadership should timely
notify the membership and provide justification for any urgent action.

 The Communications Policy affirms PRIA’s commitment to providing a culture for inclusiveness,
transparency, and participation.

o The creation of the online forums and the posting of monthly board packets have been a
welcome contribution to this goal as are other tools that help facilitate communication
among the members.

 The Work Products Policy which may affirm PRIA’s commitment to publish draft versions of Work
Products 30 days in advance of formal adoption by the Board.

o Any pending Work Product should be subject to review by the membership prior to final
action.

 The operating policies relating to committees and committee meetings which affirm the position
that these groups are expected to conduct their work in an open and transparent manner and to
include and engage all members.

o Meeting notices, meeting summaries, and periodic working group or committee updates
should be easily accessible to the membership

We look forward to the future with PRIA, and we will work to further the principles outlined in the updated 
mission statement. 

“PRIA promotes (1) respect and open-mindedness amongst its members; (2) attentiveness to 
members and industry needs; (3) understanding of emerging business innovation; (4) aligning the 
interests of government and business; (5) collaboration by providing a culture for inclusiveness, 
transparency and participation; and (6) commitment to creating and publishing consensus-based 
results.” 

ESS Page 113



As we have stated throughout the process of reviewing and updating the operating rules, we believe that 
PRIA should proactively engage with the membership, and we also believe that the membership must 
engage with PRIA. We will continue to advocate for the interests of recorders and registrars and for the 
industry as a whole. 

POLICY REQUEST 
With this spirit we request that the PRIA Board of Directors consider the adoption of a clear policy 
statement regarding the public land registry. For several years we have been informed of various efforts 
to use technology such as blockchain or private registry systems to gain efficiencies in the property 
industry. Advocates for the use of distributed ledger technology have made no secret of the potential for 
using blockchain as a platform for immutably establishing the rights associated with property ownership in 
place of the public land registry. There have been policy discussions about establishing a national land 
registry system to replace the community and county systems for recording land record information. 
There are active efforts to override state laws governing remote notarization with federal legislation. 

It should be apparent that these advocacy efforts will continue unless the property industry, public and 
private, strongly asserts that the public land registry should continue, and should not be undermined with 
these private or federalized efforts. The members of PRIA should in turn recognize that further 
improvements to the public land registry systems must also continue to be made. Is this not what PRIA is 
all about? 

As a long-standing group of PRIA members from the state of Iowa, members who have fully embraced a 
commitment to standards and best practices, we respectfully request the PRIA Board of Directors and the 
entire membership of PRIA to develop and adopt a clear and firm policy statement to preserve and 
improve the public land registry, and to oppose efforts to privatize or nationalize these important 
functions. 

Thank you for your consideration of this request. 

[Approved by the Electronic Services Coordinating Committee, d.b.a. Iowa Land Records – February 10, 2022] 

Endorsed By: 
Nancy Booten – ESS Chair and Lee County Recorder; PRIA Member 
Julie Haggerty – ESS Vice Chair, ESS Committee member and Polk County Recorder 
Melissa Bahnsen – ESS Sec./Treas., ESS Committee member and Cedar County Recorder; PRIA Member 
Sheri Jones – President – Iowa County Recorders Association and Jones County Recorder; PRIA Member 
Denise Baker – ESS Committee member and Wright County Recorder; PRIA Member 
Jolynn Goodchild – ESS Committee member and Plymouth County Recorder; PRIA Member 
Natalie Steffener – ESS Committee member and Des Moines County Recorder; PRIA Member 
Kim Painter – Johnson County Recorder; PRIA Member 
Stacie Herridge – Story County Recorder; PRIA Member 

ESS Page 114



June 2, 2022 

Dear Phil, 

Thank you for your active involvement in PRIA.  In response to your letter dated February 11, 
2022, the PRIA Board of Directors has had multiple discussions and the PRIA officers in conjunction 
with a couple of Council of Advisors have met to specifically review your request.   As a result of 
these discussions, PRIA has decided not to create a specific policy statement at this time on the 
two items you requested.  

As you are aware from your participation, the PRIA Operating Rules are being reviewed and we are 
nearing completion on a variety of updates.   As a part of that update, there are proposed changes 
to the “values” PRIA promotes.  We believe the proposed changes provide a framework for the 
discussion and review of topics such as the improvement of the land registry and privatization.  
While there is no certainty regarding what the future holds, I am confident there will be change. 

In particular, the proposed PRIA Value item (3) addresses technology and how we can learn and 
understand the impact of emerging technology on the recording process.  Also, proposed PRIA 
Value item (4) allows for the continued discussion of the balance between the government and 
business sectors in terms of how services are provided.  The current plan is for the proposed 
Operating Rules changes to be presented to the Board at the August meeting.  We look forward to 
the Board of Directors approving the proposed changes. 

Thank you again for your commitment and dedication to PRIA.  You have provided valuable input 
over the years. 

Sincerely, 

Jerry Lewallen 
PRIA 
President 

Property Records Industry Association 
110 Horizon Drive, Suite 210 ∙ Raleigh, NC 27615 

Phone 919.459.2081  Fax 919.459.2075 
www.pria.us 

ESS Page 115



ELECTRONIC SERVICES SYSTEM 
8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2 

Johnston, Iowa  50131 

July 15, 2022 

To: Jerry Lewallen, President 
Members of the PRIA Board of Directors 

From: Phil Dunshee, ILR Project Manager 

Re: PRIA Operating Rules 
 Public Land Registry 

We have received your June 2, 2022, letter responding to a request that PRIA develop and adopt a clear 
and firm policy statement to preserve and improve the public land registry, and to oppose efforts to privatize 
or nationalize these important functions. Plainly stated, you reported that “PRIA has decided not to create 
a specific policy statement at this time …” 

No explanation was presented for this decision. As a constructive and active participant in the governance 
working group that is updating the PRIA operating rules and value statements, we are very aware of the 
pending changes in the operating policies as we highlighted in our February 11, 2022, memo. Allow us to 
point out some other provisions of the pending operating rules. The updated Transparency Policy, if 
adopted, will state that PRIA will “maintain openness and transparency in actions … and to communicate 
approved Board actions directly to the Membership. It will state that PRIA will “make information available 
about plans, decisions, policies, and operating practices.” Further, it will state that PRIA will “provide any 
member in good standing additional background and detail regarding Board decisions …” 

The decision and message communicated in the June 2 letter is anything but transparent and it would better 
be described as exercise in obfuscation. This intent is reflected in the “plan to craft a response” referenced 
in the Minutes of the May 18, 2022, meeting of the Board of Directors. 

In numerous PRIA conferences over the years presentations have been made extolling the virtues of the 
public land registration system in America, the bedrock of the economy. In subsequent years, PRIA 
meetings highlighted the coming of Blockchain. There was a lot of talk about what Blockchain is, and that 
everyone should pay attention to it. But there has never been a serious discussion in a PRIA forum about 
the implications of Blockchain, its implications for the public land registry, or solutions that would allow the 
private sector to seek efficiencies without abandoning the public land registry or the role of government, 
recorders, and registrars. 

How does the position to not “create a specific policy statement at this time” serve the goal of aligning the 
interests of government (the public interest) with the interests of business? Any serious observer knows 
that business is racing to develop and implement new technologies including distributed ledger technology. 
As we previously stated, advocates for the use of distributed ledger technology have made no secret of the 
potential for using blockchain as a platform for immutably establishing the rights associated with property 
ownership in place of the public land registry. 

We ask you plainly - does PRIA support the preservation of a public land registry? Yes, or no? 

ESS Page 116



   

 
 
 
 
If yes, what is PRIA willing to do to declare its commitment to the public land registry and the public 
interest, and to support policies that will maintain the role of local governments as the custodian of this 
vital information and the performance of these important duties? 
 
We ask again. Is this not what PRIA is all about? Is this not why PRIA exists? As stated on the PRIA 
website landing page – “The future of property records is here …”. What is that future? 
 
We look forward to your future discussion and action, and we look forward to being constructive and 
active participants. 
 

ESS Page 117



110 Horizon Drive, Suite 210, Raleigh, NC 27615 

919.459.2081 

Operating Rules 
Adopted by the PRIA Board on August 30, 2022 

http://www.pria.us

ESS Page 118

http://www.pria.us/


Operating Rules  2 

 

 

Table of Contents 
1. Mission & Values ............................................................................................................................................................. 4 

2. Board of Directors .......................................................................................................................................................... 4 

3. Meetings of the Board of Directors ........................................................................................................................ 5 

4. Officers and Executive Board .................................................................................................................................... 5 

5. Council of Advisors ......................................................................................................................................................... 6 

6. Committees, Sub-committees, and Project Teams .......................................................................................... 6 

7. Committee, Sub-committee, and Work Project Team Leadership ........................................................... 8 

8. Meetings of Committees, Sub-committees, and Work Project Teams .................................................... 9 

9. Alliances .............................................................................................................................................................................. 9 

10. Work Products ................................................................................................................................................................. 9 

11. Presentations ................................................................................................................................................................. 11 

12. Logos and Trademarks ............................................................................................................................................. 11 

PRIA Policies ................................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Advocacy Policy – Last approved:  01/20/2021 ............................................................................................ 12 

Attributions Policy – Last approved:  05/01/2019 ....................................................................................... 13 

Bereavement Policy – Last approved:  07/25/2018 ..................................................................................... 13 

Communications Policy – Last approved:  04/15/2020 ............................................................................. 14 

Document Retention Policy – Last approved:  11/16/2016...................................................................... 15 

Endorsements and Certifications Policy – Last approved:  10/28/2011 ............................................. 17 

Intellectual Property Rights (IPR) and Antitrust Policies - 08/2017 ..................................................... 18 

Antitrust Policy Purpose:   PRIA has established an Antitrust Policy to ensure compliance with 

antitrust laws, both state and federal.  Members acknowledge that: .................................................... 18 

Investment Policy – Last approved:  08/30/2022 ......................................................................................... 18 

Media Policy – Last approved:  10/14/2015 ................................................................................................... 19 

ESS Page 119



Operating Rules  3 

 

 

Payment Policy – Last approved:  12/28/2011 .............................................................................................. 20 

Pro-rated Dues Policy – Last approved:  01/23/2008 ................................................................................. 21 

Retired Membership Policy – Last approved:  05/16/2018 ...................................................................... 21 

Speaker Registration Policy – Last approved:  06/21/2017 ..................................................................... 22 

Transparency Policy – Last approved:  12/16/2020 ................................................................................... 22 

Travel, Expense, & Registration Reimbursement Policy – Last approved:  03/03/2005 ............. 23 

Website Privacy Policy and Terms of Use – Last approved:  04/22/2017 and 08/23/2010 

(respectively) ................................................................................................................................................................ 24 

Whistleblower Policy – Last approved:  11/16/2016 .................................................................................. 24 

Work Product Publication Policy – Last approved:  03/20/2019 ........................................................... 25 

Appendices ..................................................................................................................................................................... 27 

Project Checklist ........................................................................................................................................................... 27 

PRIA Copyright Notice – Completed and Approved Form .......................................................................... 27 

PRIA Copyright Notice – Draft Form .................................................................................................................... 27 

PRIA Intellectual Property Rights and Antitrust Policies ............................................................................ 27 

PRIA Investment Policy ............................................................................................................................................. 27 

PRIA and PRIA Local Logo and Use Form .......................................................................................................... 27 

PRIA Presentations ..................................................................................................................................................... 27 

PRIA Project Approval - Graphic ........................................................................................................................... 27 

PRIA Project Request Form ..................................................................................................................................... 27 

PRIA Website Privacy Policy and Terms of Use .............................................................................................. 27 

 

  

ESS Page 120



Operating Rules 4 

1. Mission & Values

The Property Records Industry Association’s (PRIA) mission is to develop and promote

national standards for the property records industry, including technology standards,

implementation guides, white papers, best practices, model legislation, and

informational resources.

PRIA promotes the following values:

(1) respect and open-mindedness among Members;

(2) attentiveness to members and broader industry needs;

(3) curiosity and a desire to understand emerging business innovations;

(4) alignment of the interests of government and business;

(5) meaningful collaboration through a culture of inclusiveness, transparency,

and participation; and,

(6) commitment to creating and publishing consensus-based results.

2. Board of Directors

Authority.  These operating rules (the “Rules”) are adopted by the Board of Directors

(the “Board”) as required under Article IV of the Bylaws of PRIA (the “Bylaws”).  The

Rules carry out the purpose and objectives of PRIA, as set forth in Article II of the

Bylaws, and are binding on and benefit all members of PRIA as identified in Article III of

the Bylaws (each, a “Member”).  Any reference to a Rule will be construed to include a

reference to all parts, if any.

Attendance of Directors.  Members of the Board are expected to possess the highest

personal and professional ethics and demonstrate a willingness to devote the required

time to the duties and responsibilities of Board membership.  To properly discharge

such responsibilities, Board directors should attend all Board meetings.  Prior to each

Board meeting, directors are expected to review provided materials, which relate to

agenda items for that meeting.

A director who cannot attend a Board meeting may be excused by notifying the PRIA

Chief Staff Officer prior to the Board meeting.  Board directors whose unexcused

absences exceed four in any 12-month period may be subject to removal, as set forth In

Article III, item 8 of the Bylaws.

It is generally PRIA’s practice for Board directors to serve no more than three

consecutive two-year terms (six consecutive years).  Exceptions can be made for

directors moving into the role of President or Vice President.

ESS Page 121

pdunshee
Highlight



Operating Rules  5 

 

 

3. Meetings of the Board of Directors  

It is PRIA’s practice to provide its Members notice of meetings of the Board and related 

supporting materials.  These practices include the following. 

• Publication via the website of the date and time of regular meetings of the 

Board.  

• When practical, Board meeting notices will be published via the website two 

weeks in advance, Board meeting agenda one week in advance, and Board 

materials three days in advance of each meeting.  

• In the event of a special meeting of the Board, notice will be published 24 hours 

in advance of the meeting.   

• Confidential information such as personnel records may be excluded from the 

published materials at the discretion of the PRIA President. 

• Summaries of meetings of the Board will be published after they are approved.  

The PRIA Staff may provide members with updates through PRIA communication 

channels. 

• Materials and information will be published in an appropriate electronic format 

in the Members-only section of the PRIA website (www.pria.us); generally, 

published meeting notices and materials will be maintained on the website for a 

minimum period of two years plus the current year and then archived by PRIA 

Staff. 

4. Officers and Executive Board 

President.  It is generally PRIA’s practice for a President to serve for two consecutive 

one-year terms.  Further, it is generally PRIA’s practice for the President and Vice 

President to represent alternately the government and business sectors.  

Vice President.  It is generally PRIA’s practice for a Vice President to move from Vice 

President to President once the sitting President has served two consecutive one-year 

terms.   

Secretary and Treasurer.  It is generally PRIA’s practice to have Board members serve a 

one-year term as Secretary or Treasurer to broaden the executive experience of Board 

members. 

 

Officers.  The President, Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer comprise the PRIA 

Officers. 

ESS Page 122

http://www.pria.us/
pdunshee
Highlight

pdunshee
Highlight



Operating Rules  6 

 

 

Executive Board. The four Officers and the Immediate Past President, if still a PRIA 

member, typically constitute PRIA’s Executive Board for discussions and action items 

that may be needed between regularly scheduled Board meetings.  The Board will be 

informed of discussion items and actions taken by the Executive Board at the next 

meeting of the Board.  

5. Council of Advisors 

Each President may name individuals to a Council of Advisors (“Council”).  The Council 

assists the President on a variety of matters to provide perspective, history of PRIA, and 

general knowledge of the broad property records industry.  The Council may be asked to 

undertake specific tasks or background information gathering for the President.  The 

Council serves as the Nominating Committee, adding additional Regular Members as 

appropriate.  Council members are invited to all meetings of the Board. 

6. Committees, Sub-committees, and Project Teams 

The Board establishes committees, sub-committees, and project teams.  The President 

appoints the co-chairs for all committees, sub-committees, and Work Project teams and 

will report these appointments to the Board.  

Function.  The function of a committee is to further the mission of PRIA, and, when 

appropriate, comment and recommend alterations to achieve its mission through the 

committee’s area of responsibility or expertise.  Each committee will keep the Board 

apprised of developments within its area of responsibility or expertise. 

Unless the motion creating the committee states otherwise, the following rules will 

govern all committees: 

Participation in a Committee, Sub-committee or Project Team.  Subject to the 

limitations in Article III of the Bylaws, a Regular, Associate, or Individual Member may 

participate in any committee, sub-committee, or project team.  Non-Member Subject 

Matter Experts (“SME(s)”) may be invited to provide a project team with intellectual 

resources on a specific topic for a limited period but will have no vote.   

Vote in Committee, Sub-committee, or Project Team.  If the need for a vote arises, and 

subject to the limitations in Article III of the Bylaws, each member organization will have 

one vote.  

ESS Page 123



Operating Rules  7 

 

 

Liaison.  Each committee will have at least one Board member liaison (“Liaison”) who 

will be appointed by the President.  The Liaison will provide guidance and assistance to 

the co-chairs.    

Committees will include, but not be limited to: 

• Communications Committee.   The Communications Committee is responsible 

for all channels PRIA uses to communicate with its Members and the public. 

• Education Committee.  The Education Committee is responsible for delivering 

PRIA work products to the membership and PRIA Local Chapters.  

• Governance Committee.  The Governance Committee is responsible for general 

administrative functions of the association.  The sub-committees of the 

Governance Committee are outlined below.  

o Budget.  The Budget Sub-committee will prepare and present an annual 

budget to the Board for consideration no later than the annual meeting.  The 

Treasurer will chair the Budget Sub-committee.  At least two Regular 

Members who are not Board members will serve. 

o Bylaws.  The Bylaws Sub-committee will review the Bylaws and the Operating 

Rules on an alternating basis, no fewer than every three years.  When 

reviewing these documents, the Bylaws Sub-committee may recommend 

changes.   Any Regular Member may at any time request in writing that the 

Bylaws Sub-committee examine a particular provision for suggested change 

or modification.  The Bylaws Sub-committee will respond to the Member’s 

request within 45 days.  The Secretary will chair the Bylaws Sub-committee. 

At least two Regular Members who are not Board members will serve.  

o Editorial Board.  The Editorial Board reviews and edits newsletters and press 

releases for content prior to distribution.  

o Financial Oversight.  The Financial Oversight Sub-committee will review the 

financial affairs of PRIA, semi-annually.  The Vice President will chair the 

Financial Oversight Sub-committee.  At least two Regular Members who are 

not Board members will serve.  The Treasurer will not be a member of the 

Financial Oversight Sub-committee but will make all records available and 

comply with any requests for information.  The Financial Oversight Sub-

committee will report to the Board when making recommendations based 

upon its findings.   

o Nominating.  The Council serves as the core membership of the Nominating 

Sub-committee, adding additional Regular Members, typically at least two, to 

ensure a broader perspective.  No member of the Nominating Sub-

ESS Page 124



Operating Rules  8 

 

 

committee may be a candidate for Board director in the upcoming election.  

The Nominating Sub-committee will call for nominations from the Regular 

Members at least 60 days before the annual meeting.  At least 45 days 

before the annual meeting, it will submit to the Secretary a slate of qualified 

candidates, based on the Candidate Nomination Form.  After receiving 

notification of the slate, the Secretary will advise the Board and the voting 

Members of the approved slate.   

o Style.  The Style Sub-committee reviews all PRIA work products for 

formatting, clarity, and consistency prior to publication. 

• Membership Committee.  The Membership Committee is responsible for 

Member retention and recruitment, while monitoring membership categories 

and the commensurate dues structure. 

• Standards & Best Practices Committee.  The Standards & Best Practices 

Committee is responsible for monitoring the progress of all PRIA Work Project 

Teams.  The functions and duties of Work Project Teams are described below. 

• Special Committee or Taskforce. The President may appoint a Special Committee 

to research topics and make recommendations to the President or the Board.  

Special Committees are ad hoc in nature with a short-term focus and purpose, 

and dissolve when completed.  

7. Committee, Sub-committee, and Work Project Team Leadership  

Co-chairs.  Each Committee, Sub-committee, or Work Project Team shall have two co-

chairs.  One co-chair will be a Government Member and the other co-chair will be a 

Business Member. 

Duties of the co-chairs include, but are not limited to: 

• Facilitate meetings. 

• Set meeting agendas. 

• Maintain a focus on the task consistent with PRIA’s mission and values. 

• Keep the discussion on topic, monitor comments, and raise issues that should be 

addressed. 

• Capture salient information during meetings, as needed.   PRIA Staff typically 

prepares these notes and maintains up-to-date lists of the members of the 

committee. 

• Report monthly to the Board, including information about the work of Sub-

committees or Work Project Teams.  

ESS Page 125

pdunshee
Highlight



Operating Rules 9 

• Prepare summaries and updates to inform PRIA Members of the groups’

activities.  Utilize newsletters and other communications channels, or post in the

Members-only section of the PRIA website.

8. Meetings of Committees, Sub-committees, and Work Project Teams

• Committee, Sub-committee, and Work Project Team meetings must be held

periodically, either face-to-face or electronically, allowing all interested parties

to participate.

• Co-chairs must give reasonable advance notice regarding the date and method

for a meeting.  Shorter notice for a meeting is allowed provided there are no

objections.

• These groups are expected to conduct their work in an open and transparent

manner to include and engage members.  This openness may be demonstrated

by any of the following:

o Notice to the membership about meetings;

o Publishing summaries of meetings and interim work products;

o Periodically publishing updates about activities in PRIA newsletters and other

communications channels.

A team working on a product may coordinate its efforts with other industry participants. 

Each presentation, proposal, work product or other deliverable submitted by any such 

other body or its representative (if such other body or representative is not a Member) 

will be deemed a PRIA intellectual property “contribution.”  Such contributions will be 

submitted in accordance with the terms of a license and release signed by any such non-

member prior to the inclusion of the contribution.  

9. Alliances

The Board may identify other groups with which it wishes to associate.  The Board will

adopt a resolution approving such an alliance and specifying mutually supportive terms.

The resolution shall be posted, along with information about the organization, on the

PRIA website.  The Board may waive annual dues and event registration fees with

comparable reciprocity.  The Board will direct a review of all alliance agreements

periodically, but no fewer than every five years.

10. Work Products

Work Products. PRIA Work Products will include but are not limited to:

ESS Page 126

pdunshee
Highlight

pdunshee
Highlight



Operating Rules  10 

 

 

• Audio-visual material.  An audio-visual presentation, delivered electronically or 

via other media, intended to inform and educate an audience.  Examples include 

recorded webinars, recorded conference sessions, podcasts, Learning 

Management System (LMS) modules, or other subject-specific content in a 

presentation or series.  An audio-visual product typically supports PRIA’s other 

published documents and resource materials. 

• Background Paper.  A document providing relevant facts and information on a 

specific standard, topic, issue, technology, legislation, statute, decision, 

development, policy, or practice that is of interest to the property records 

industry. 

• Best Practices.  A method or technique that has consistently shown results 

superior to those achieved with other means.  Best practices develop as 

experience and research evolve.  A practice is used to maintain consistency as an 

alternative to legislated or regulated standards and can be based on self-

assessment and benchmarking. 

• Model Legislation.  Text intended to serve as a guide for drafting future 

legislation which can be modified based on local circumstances.   

• Position Paper.  A formal, written statement with background and rationale, 

generally regarding a single issue, that articulates a position, viewpoint, or policy.  

• Standard.  A work product that provides rules, technical specifications, 

guidelines, or characteristics written to ensure interoperability across multiple 

systems. 

• Supplement.  Additional information based on or relating to an existing Work 

Product, such as a toolkit to assist members with implementation of standards or 

practices. 

• White Paper.  An authoritative report or guide helping readers to understand an 

issue, solve a problem or make a decision.  It may take a position, as well as 

include proposals for future Work Products. 

 
Draft Documents. 

• Work Products not yet approved by the Board are “Draft” documents. 

• “Draft” documents will have the word DRAFT watermarked on each page of the 

document.  If watermarks are not used, then each page must bear the DRAFT 

designation in either the header or footer. 

• All “Draft” documents will contain the PRIA copyright notice and evaluation 

license in Appendix B (see hyperlink on the Appendices chart). 

ESS Page 127



Operating Rules  11 

 

 

• Work Products will be posted for 30 days of public comment prior to final 
approval by the Board. 

 
Final Documents.  

 
• Work products approved by the Board are “Final” documents. 

• All “Final” documents will contain the PRIA copyright notice as found in the 

Appendices.  

• The process and checklist by which a work product is approved are set forth in 

the Appendices.   

11. Presentations 

PRIA offers presentations to educate its Members and others in the property records 

industry.  The specific rules governing all presentations at PRIA meetings, or by 

Members representing PRIA at other meetings, are contained in the appendices.  These 

rules address presentations using whatever methodology is being employed. 

12. Logos and Trademarks 

The details concerning the use of the PRIA and PRIA Local logos can be found in the 

appendices.  

  

ESS Page 128

pdunshee
Highlight



Operating Rules 12 

PRIA Policies 

Advocacy Policy – Last approved:  01/20/2021 

Purpose:  To establish a policy to guide the PRIA Officers and Board when considering 

advocacy efforts.   

PRIA has advocated on topics of importance to the industry overall.  This collaboration 

has been ongoing and benefits both PRIA and its partners.  Several examples are: 

1. PRIA developed materials to be used at the state level to educate legislators

and the industry on the Uniform Real Property Electronic Recording Act

(URPERA) and predictable recording fees.

2. PRIA has been actively involved with the Uniform Law Commission in

considering model legislation on behalf of the industry, including Uniform

Real Property Electronic Recording Act (URPERA), the Revised Uniform Law

on Notarial Acts (RULONA), and the Uniform Home Foreclosure Procedures.

3. PRIA wrote model legislation for dealing with military discharge papers and

the Social Security Number and Privacy Protection Act (SSNAPP) regarding

personally identifiable information in recordable documents.

4. PRIA Members have met with federal legislators to educate them about the

issues associated with a national database for land records.

Policy: 

• PRIA may choose to take a position on industry-related issues by educating and

sharing knowledge or research with legislators, regulators, the judiciary, and

other entities.  These advocacy efforts may come from a Member request, from

an industry partner, or be initiated by PRIA in response to proposed actions

affecting the property records industry.

• Government and business perspectives are often aligned, but also may differ.

PRIA’s advocacy efforts should not disenfranchise either Government or Business

Members.  Generally, PRIA will only engage at the state level upon a request

from a Member.

• Requests should be routed to PRIA’s Chief Staff Officer for processing.  They will

then be directed to the Officers for consideration and to the Board, as the

elected representatives of the entire membership.

• Recognizing requests for support may be time-sensitive, the Officers or Board

will determine the appropriate response.  If there are known conflicts in the

ESS Page 129



Operating Rules  13 

 

 

views of PRIA Members, generally PRIA will not take a position.  PRIA may 

respond to requests for support by referencing resource documents, directing 

the requesting party to a group currently at work on the topic or to subject 

matter experts. 

• The Officers and Board will apprise the membership of advocacy actions through 

established PRIA communication channels.  

Attributions Policy – Last approved:  05/01/2019 

Purpose:  To establish a policy for consistently applying acknowledgements of copyright 

or non-copyright data provided for use in a PRIA work product by Member 

organizations.   

 
Policy: 

• When citing work from outside sources, acknowledge the reference via a 

footnote, endnote, or appendix. 

• When citing intellectual resources provided for and aggregated by Members of a 

work group, these contributions may be identified or acknowledged.   

Bereavement Policy – Last approved:  07/25/2018  

Purpose:  To establish a policy for extending condolences for the PRIA leadership that 

will be consistently applied. 

 
Policy: 

• Flowers or a plant sent to the home with card acknowledging sympathy from the 

PRIA Board of Directors and Staff.  If family has requested a charitable donation 

in lieu of flowers, a PRIA check for $100 will be sent to the named charity with a 

request that acknowledgement be forwarded to the family.  This expression of 

condolences is intended for: 

o Current Board Members, committee or project team co-chairs and 

volunteers 

o Immediate family of current Board Members 

o Immediate family of past presidents 

• Sympathy card sent to the home or workplace on behalf of the PRIA Board of 

Directors and Staff. This expression of condolences is intended for: 

o Immediate family of committee or project team co-chairs or volunteer   

o Friends of PRIA 

• The PRIA Staff will automatically enact this policy once they are informed of a 

ESS Page 130

pdunshee
Highlight



Operating Rules 14 

death and determine relationship to the PRIA Member. 

• The PRIA Board will have the flexibility to modify this policy.

Communications Policy – Last approved:  04/15/2020 
Purpose:  To provide guidelines for communication among Members about PRIA or 

about activities of Members’ organizations, and to provide a framework for using PRIA 

communications resources. 

Policy:  PRIA seeks to provide a culture for inclusiveness, transparency, and 

participation.  Members are encouraged to be engaged and to communicate with each 

other and with PRIA Staff and leadership.  Engagement and communication may include 

participation in a Work Group, posting messages in the Community Forum on the PRIA 

website, attending a virtual or in-person meeting, or direct communications such as 

email or other messaging services.  Communications among Members through any 

communication channels should be conducted with respect and open-mindedness.  It is 

also important to observe the rules including the Community’s Code of Conduct and 

Website Privacy Policy and Information Security Practices associated with the PRIA 

website. Members should not distribute excessive or overt commercial solicitation 

messages. 

PRIA maintains information about individual Members for internal operational 

purposes, including mailing addresses, telephone numbers, and email addresses. PRIA 

does not sell any list containing Member information. 

A directory of PRIA members is located on the Members-only section of the PRIA 

website. This information is intended to facilitate communication among PRIA Members 

about PRIA activities. Members may opt out of being listed in the directory, but their 

contact data will continue to be accessible by PRIA Staff.  PRIA Members can search the 

directory for contact information about Members who have not opted out of the listing. 

PRIA distributes information to its Members in many forms including periodic electronic 

newsletters, mailings, or emails. These communications are essential to the operation of 

a Membership organization, and they are managed and directed by PRIA Staff under the 

oversight of the PRIA Board and the Communications Committee. 

A PRIA Member may submit a request to have a message distributed to the 

membership. Such requests, including the message content, will be reviewed by the 

ESS Page 131

pdunshee
Highlight



Operating Rules  15 

 

 

PRIA Staff, the Board, or the Communications Committee.  If approved, the message 

content and the form of the message will be distributed by PRIA Staff in coordination 

with the requesting member. 

 
Opt-Out Procedures 
When joining PRIA or when renewing a PRIA membership, a Member will express a 

preference with respect to receiving PRIA communications.  

  

Preference choices are included on all Membership forms, including application and 

renewal forms, both online and paper copies.  The following preference options will be 

specified. 

 
• Opt-out of Member directory 

• Opt-out of all communications from PRIA 

PRIA distributes pre- and post-conference attendee lists, which include attendee name, 

organization, city, and state.  (Note:  email addresses are not included.) 

 
Opt-In Procedures 
When registering for a PRIA conference, webinar or other meeting, a PRIA Member will 

be asked to grant permission to receive a one-time promotional message from an event 

or meeting sponsor.  The permission request shall be included on all conference or 

meeting registration forms, both online and paper copies. 

 

Language for Registration Forms:  If you wish to receive a one-time email from PRIA 

conference sponsor(s), please indicate below. 

 

• I agree to receive a one-time email from conference sponsor(s). 

Document Retention Policy – Last approved:  11/16/2016 

Purpose:  To identify the record retention responsibilities of contracted Staff and Board 

members for maintaining and documenting the storage and destruction of the 

association’s documents and records. 

 
Policy:  The association’s contracted Staff and Board members are required to adhere to 

these rules:  

• Physical or electronic documents and historical artifacts indicated under the 

terms for retention below will be maintained by the association management 

office or its equivalent.   

ESS Page 132



Operating Rules  22 

 

 

Speaker Registration Policy – Last approved:  06/21/2017 

Purpose:  To attract the most knowledgeable speakers available to deliver relevant 

content to enhance expertise in the industry. 

Policy: 

• For PRIA Members and Industry Non-members 

o For an individual speaker for a General Session or Concurrent Educational 

Session (excluding a working session), conference registration may be 

waived, based on a final decision by the President and Conference Planning 

Committee.  In general, all speakers are expected to pay for their own travel 

and accommodations for PRIA conferences.  

• For Non-industry Speakers 

o For non-industry speakers, PRIA may waive registration fees and, if 

requested, will consider providing travel, accommodations, incidentals, and a 

professional speaking fee.   

o A non-industry speaker is defined as one whose organization does not meet 

the eligibility requirements for PRIA membership. 

Transparency Policy – Last approved:  12/16/2020 

Purpose:  To maintain openness and transparency in actions to be taken by the Board 

and to communicate approved Board actions directly to the membership. 

 

Policy:  

• Post a Board binder to the Members-only section of the PRIA website before each 

monthly Board meeting for review by all Members.   The Board binder includes the 

agenda, previous meeting minutes, monthly financial reports, and other documents 

relative to the Board agenda.  

• Make information available about plans, decisions, policies, and operating practices.  

• Provide information about PRIA governance, finances, and actions taken by the 

Board.  

• Make information easy to find, relevant, accurate and, wherever possible, self- 

explanatory. 

• Provide any Member in good standing additional background and detail regarding 

Board decisions, provided disclosing additional information is not in violation of any 

legal or contractual obligations.  The Board will provide the additional information 

and meet with the Member to discuss any concerns or input the Member may have. 

ESS Page 133

pdunshee
Highlight



Operating Rules  23 

 

 

Travel, Expense, & Registration Reimbursement Policy – Last approved:  

03/03/2005 

Purpose:  To establish guidelines for certain reimbursable expenses.  
 

Policy:  

• Travel Expense and Registration Reimbursement for PRIA Meetings 

o Board members and committee co-chairs are expected to attend all PRIA 

meetings each year, at their expense.  If an unplanned or unexpected 

meeting needs to be scheduled, the Board will decide on the use of its 

resources to make attendance possible for as many Board members and 

committee co-chairs as need to attend the meeting. 

o The waiver of any registration costs and requests for travel assistance must 

be approved by a majority of the Officers. 

• Travel Expense and Registration Reimbursement for non-PRIA Meetings (such as for 

Speakers Bureau or attendance at industry-related conferences or meetings) 

o Expense Reimbursement Requests and Approval 

▪ An itemized list of estimated expenses must be approved in advance 

by a majority of the Officers.  

▪ Officers will either approve or disapprove the request and notify the 

requestor.  

o Expense Reimbursement 

▪ The requestor must submit a compilation of actual expenses, 

attaching receipts, within 30 days of the final day of the meeting or 

event.  

▪ The report and supporting receipts are to be submitted to PRIA Staff. 

Upon receipt of the supporting receipts and verification that all 

claimed expenses have been substantiated, the requestor will be 

reimbursed.  Reimbursable expenses include: 

▪ Transportation Expenses: 

▪ Reasonable ground transportation from the airport to the 

conference location and back. 

▪ Actual air travel expense (economy or equivalent). 

▪ Car rental at the standard rate for a compact class auto 

within the meeting dates from the airport or requestor’s 

home area to the conference location and back. 

▪ Personal vehicle mileage reimbursement from the 

requestor’s home area to the airport or conference 

ESS Page 134



Operating Rules  24 

 

 

location and back at the prevailing IRS mileage 

reimbursement rate. 

▪ Other modes of travel (train, boat, etc.) will be 

reimbursable based upon standard economy class 

accommodations or equivalent.  

▪ Parking or mass transit expenses. 

▪ Meal expenses commensurate with the GSA guidelines for the 

location. 

▪ Lodging expenses at the established meeting rate for a single, 

regular (non-suite) room. 

▪ Membership fees to another organization as the PRIA 

representative. 

▪ Meeting registration fees for other organizations as the PRIA 

representative.  

o Other expenses or suggestions must be pre-approved by the Officers. 

Website Privacy Policy and Terms of Use – Last approved:  04/22/2017 

and 08/23/2010 (respectively) 

Purpose:  To protect and secure information provided by visitors to the PRIA website, 

www.pria.us.   

 

Policy: 

The Privacy Policy describes how personal information is collected and used.  The Terms 

of Use provides requirements for use of the website and website content.  Use of the 

PRIA website constitutes acceptance of the Privacy Policy and Terms of Use and consent 

to the practices they describe.  The policy is reviewed periodically by the 

Communications Committee with recommended changes presented to the Board for 

approval. 

 
The policy can be found on the PRIA website. 

Whistleblower Policy – Last approved:  11/16/2016 

Purpose:  To encourage PRIA Staff and Members (1) To come forward with credible 

information on alleged illegal practices or serious violations of adopted policies of the 

association; (2) To specify that the association will protect the person from retaliation; 

and (3) To identify where such information can be reported. 

 

ESS Page 135

http://www.pria.us/
http://www.pria.us/


Operating Rules 25 

Policy: 

• Encouragement of reporting.  The association encourages complaints, reports, or

inquiries about alleged illegal practices or serious violations of the association’s

policies, including alleged illegal or improper conduct by the association itself, by its

leadership, or by others on its behalf.  Appropriate subjects to raise under this policy

would include financial improprieties, accounting or audit matters, ethical violations,

or other similar alleged illegal or improper practices or violation of PRIA policies.

Such complaints, reports, or inquiries should be reported to the PRIA Chief Staff

Officer or President.

• Protection from retaliation.  The association prohibits retaliation by or on behalf of

the association against PRIA Staff or Members for making good faith complaints,

reports, or inquiries under this policy or for participating in a review or investigation

under this policy.  This protection extends to those whose allegations are made in

good faith but prove to be mistaken.  The association reserves the right to discipline

persons who make bad faith, knowingly false, or vexatious complaints, reports, or

inquiries or who otherwise abuse this policy.

• Where to report.  Complaints, reports, or inquiries may be made under this policy on

a confidential basis.  They should describe in detail the facts demonstrating the basis

for the complaints, reports, or inquiries.  They should be directed to PRIA’s Chief

Staff Officer or President; if both of those persons are implicated in the complaint,

report, or inquiry, it should be directed to any other Officer or Board Member.  The

association will conduct a prompt, discreet, and objective review, or investigation.

Staff or Members must recognize that the association may be unable to evaluate a

vague or general complaint, report, or inquiry that is made anonymously.

Work Product Publication Policy – Last approved:  03/20/2019 

Purpose: To assure that PRIA publications remain relevant, accurate, and offer valuable 

information. 

Policy: 

• Generally, a PRIA product, once published, should be reviewed every four years.  If a

publication cannot be reviewed in a timely fashion, it may be removed from the

public Resource Library.

• The Style Committee will be responsible for product review, including both new

products and previously published products.

ESS Page 136



Operating Rules 26 

• The Style Committee may require interested SMEs to participate in the review of

existing products.  These people may be original drafters, work group members,

committee members, or simply interested individuals from the PRIA membership.

• At least once each year, PRIA Staff will identify any products available in the

Resource Library with a creation date more than four years earlier.

• The Style Committee will review the list of publications and determine which action

is appropriate:

o Restore the publication to the Resource Library with the original publication

date. PRIA Staff will update the cover page and reflect the date of Style

Committee review;

o Refer the publication to the appropriate committee, work group, or an SME

for review and submission of recommendations to the Style Committee; or

o Permanently archive the publication.

• The Style Committee will provide an annual report to the PRIA Board of Directors to

indicate the actions taken on publications moved to the archive.

• The Board may recommend at any time that publications fewer than four years old

be reviewed.

ESS Page 137



Chapter 4 
Policy and Procedures Tax Refunds 

Chapter 4 of the Electronic Services System (ESS) Policies and Procedures is 
amended to clarify procedures relating to the refund of the overpayment of real 
estate transfer taxes as provided in Section 428A of the Iowa Code and Chapter 
79 of the Iowa Administrative Rules.  

1. Chapter 4 of the ESS Policies and Procedures is amended by adding the
following new Section.

ESS – 4.7 Refund of Real Estate Transfer Taxes 
(Iowa Code Section 331.604(1) 

4.7(1) Following the recording of a conveyance document which requires the 
payment of real estate transfer taxes as provide in Section 428A of the Iowa Code, 
and when an overpayment or underpayment of the real estate transfer taxes is 
discovered, a county shall follow the procedures specified in Section 79.1(5) of 
the Iowa Administrative Code. 

4.7(2) For conveyance documents recorded through the county land record 
information system E-Submission service, when a county has received full 
payment for the recording fees and any other taxes or fees due, it is the 
responsibility of the county to resolve any underpayment or overpayment which is 
discovered. 

ESS Page 138



From: Chambers, Susan <susan.chambers@iowa.gov>  
Sent: Wednesday, September 28, 2022 11:08 AM 
To: Lisa Long <llong@clris.com> 
Subject: Appeal of Transfer Tax 

Lisa, 

I believe you left me a message asking how a taxpayer can receive a refund of transfer tax.  Following is 
my standard instruction: 

Appeals of transfer tax paid can be made to the State Appeal Board for the State portion of the transfer 
tax.  Instructions can be found at https://dom.iowa.gov/faq/what‐process‐general‐claims  a claim form 
and affidavit must be submitted.  These instructions include a link to the current form.  Appeals for the 
County portion of the transfer tax should be made to the County Board of Supervisors through the 
County Auditor. 

Susan Chambers I Executive Officer I Local Government Services | Iowa Department of Revenue 

What does your county do if…. 

 Error is discovered before funds are transferred to the county treasurer.

 Error is discovered after the funds are transferred to the county treasurer but before transferred
to Iowa Department of Revenue.

 Error is discovered after the funds are transferred to Revenue.

ESS Page 139



����������� 	
�
�
����� ��������

������	��

	����������	�����	�����������	��� �� �!��"�
��#$%#&%�������'�	
�
�
�
�(#&)
�&��*���

+,-.+/0-123456789:8;<9<8<=9>;?8=<9@A78;BC>;DED:D<FC?GCH><F=8GC=I8=;0

+/0-1-6JKLMNO�%�&P#
Q%#R
#SS�(TTS
%�TPU%#)S�#%�$R
RVP&�
R
�(#&)
�&%U#
�
�
U%#

&�
Q%TT
Q&$%�%U#
(T
S&(&
&#(�SU
#&(W(�R&�
#
Q%#R$�X(�R#
�%#&$�X%USQ�&(WQ%TT
Q&$%�S�

+/0-136YKZ[\]̂L_̀KL[NO�%�&P#
Q%#R
#SS�(TTSV)$&(#
�%#&&%&�
R
�(#&)
�&%U#
�
�
%�%#

V
U%#
&�
&
�&�R(P%U
(Q�)%�&�
�)
#(&$�X#
(T
S&(&
&#(�SU
#&(WQ%TT
Q&$%�$�U%#)(&$%�U%#&�


�#
Q
R$�X)%�&����$S#
�%#&S�(TTV
SV)$&&
R%�U%#)S�#
SQ#$V
RVP&�
R
�(#&)
�&%U#
�
�
(�R

S�(TTQ%�&($�SQ�$�U%#)(&$%�(S$SR

)
R�
Q
SS(#PVP&�
R
�(#&)
�&�

+/0-1a6bcde_Zf_Kg̀ĥM_Z[O��
#
Q%#R
#%#(&�%#$i
R
)�T%P

%U&�
#
Q%#R
#)S&
�&
#&�


&(W�(P)
�&()%�&%�&�
U(Q
%U&�
$�S&#)
�&%UQ%��
P(�Q
�#
S
�&
RU%##
Q%#R$�X�

+/0-126j_fKLedZkL_glN_eO��
Q%�&P#
Q%#R
#S�(TT#
US
&%#
Q%#R(�PR

R�$�S&#)
�&�%#

m#$&$�X#
X(#RT
SS%U(�PS&(&
)
�&VP&�
X#(�&%#�X#(�&

�%#&�
$#(X
�&S&�(&&�
&#(�S(Q&$%�$S
W
)�&

�#S(�&&%�%m(�%R
S
Q&$%�n������$U�$�&�
#
Q%#R
#oSpRX)
�&�(RR$&$%�(TU(Q&S(#
�
Q
SS(#P

&%QT(#$UP&�
&(W(VT
S&(&S%U&�
&#(�SU
#%#R
&
#)$�
&�
UTTQ%�S$R
#(&$%��($RU%#&�
�#%�
#&P�

��
Q%�&P#
Q%#R
#)(P#
q
S&U#%)&�
X#(�&%#�X#(�&

�%#&�
$#(X
�&S�(�P$�U%#)(&$%��
Q
SS(#P

&%R
&
#)$�
&�
&(W(VT
S&(&S%U&�
&#(�SU
#%#&�
UTT()%�&%UQ%�S$R
#(&$%�$��%T�
R$�&�


&#(�S(Q&$%���%�&P#
Q%#R
#S�R
#�%Q$#Q)S&(�Q
S�(TT#
Q%#R(�PR

R%#$�S&#)
�&%UQ%��
P(�Q


U%#m�$Q�&�
�#%�
#()%�&%U#
(T
S&(&
&#(�SU
#&(W�(S�%&V

�Q%TT
Q&
R���$S(��T$
S&%&�


Q%TT
Q&$%�%U&(W$�
WQ
SS%U&�
()%�&R
U%#&�
(Q&(T()%�&%UQ%�S$R
#(&$%�(Sm
TT(SS$&(&$%�S

$�m�$Q�(�$�SUrQ$
�&()%�&%U&(W�(SV

�Q%TT
Q&
R�

+/0-1s6j_glZeNKLlZe_L̀ĥM_Z[NO

hO j_glZeNO�%�&P#
Q%#R
#SS�(TT�%&#
U�R(�P%�
#�(P)
�&%U(#
(T
S&(&
&#(�SU
#&(W���


X#(�&%#%U&�
#
(T�#%�
#&PU%#m�$Q�&�
#
(T
S&(&
&#(�SU
#&(W�(SV

�%�
#�($RS�(TT�
&$&$%�&�


S&(&
(��
(TV%(#RU%#(#
U�R%U&�
%�
#�(P)
�&()%�&�($R&%&�
&#
(S#
#%US&(&
��#
U�R%U&�


#
)($�$�X�%#&$%�%U&�
%�
#�(P)
�&S�(TTV
�
&$&$%�
RU#%)&�
V%(#R%US�
#�$S%#S%U&�
Q%�&P$�

m�$Q�&�
&(Wm(S�($R�

tO uZe_L̀ĥM_Z[NO��
Q%�&P#
Q%#R
#S�(TTQ%TT
Q&(�P()%�&%U&(WU%�R&%V
R
��U&�


Q%�&P#
Q%#R
#$S�(VT
&%Q%TT
Q&&�
&(W�&�
R$#
Q&%#%U#
�
�
S�(TTQ%TT
Q&&�
&(W$�&�
S()


)(��
#(S$�Q%)
&(W
S(#
Q%TT
Q&
R(�R�(P&�
Q%�&P$&S�#%�%#&$%�(&
S�(#
�

+/0-1v6Yl][d̀]_̀hLf_]NO�U&�
#
(T
S&(&
Q%��
P(�Q
Q%�&($�S)T&$�T
�(#Q
TS(�R&�
�(#Q
TS(#


T%Q(&
R$�)%#
&�(�%�
Q%�&P�&�
&(W$S&%V
�($R&%
(Q�Q%�&P$�m�$Q�&�
�#%�
#&P�(#Q
TS(#


T%Q(&
RV(S
R%�&�
Q%�S$R
#(&$%��($RU%#
(Q��#%�
#&P�(#Q
T%#�#%�%#&$%�(&
�(#Q
TT%Q(&
R$�
(Q�

Q%�&P�

��$S#T
$S$�&
�R
R&%$)�T
)
�&�%m(�%R
Q�(�&
#n���(S()
�R
RVP�����%m(�Q&S��
�(&


�$T
����S
Q&$%����
�57w++3vx���yn�������
UU
Q&$�
z������{57w4as4x���y��������
UU
Q&$�
��'����

+,-.+/03123456|9@9E:8;<9<H;C?=89:8;<9<8<=9>;?8=;0

+/031-6J_e_Lh]Ll]_NhZeL_kl]h[dKZNO��U(Q&(TS$&(&$%�S�%&Q%�
#
RVP&�
S
#T
S(�R$��%T�$�X

&�%S
�%#&$%�S%U�%m(T(mm�$Q�(#
Q%�S$S&
�&m$&�&�
U%#)
#U
R
#(TS&(&&
S}�'"�������n*'�~&�(&

$)�%S
R(#
(T
S&(&
&#(�SU
#&(W�&�
R
�(#&)
�&%U#
�
�
(�RQ%�&P#
Q%#R
#SS�(TTU%TT%m&�
U
R
#(T

#T
S(�R#
XT(&$%�S$�(R)$�$S&
#$�X&�
�#%�$S$%�S%U�%m(�%R
Q�(�&
#n����}��'� �����'n*~

+/03136�LhZNg_LKgL_h][̂[KhfKL̀KLh[dKZKL̀hL[Z_LN\d̀O�(�$&(TS&%Q���(#&�
#S�$�S�(#
S(�RR
V&

S
Q#$&$
S#
Q
$�
R$�
WQ�(�X
U%##
(T�#%�
#&PQ%�S&$&&
SQ%�S$R
#(&$%�m�$Q�$SSVp
Q&&%&�
#
(T


S&(&
&#(�SU
#&(W���
#
&�
�(T
%U&�
Q(�$&(TS&%Q�$SR
r�$&
%#)(PV
R
r�$&
TPR
&
#)$�
R$�(

R%TT(#()%�&�&�
S�
Q$rQR%TT(#()%�&$SSVp
Q&&%&�
&(W���
#
&�
�(T
%U&�
Q(�$&(TS&%Q�$S

�%&R
r�$&
TP)
(S#(VT
$�(R%TT(#()%�&�&�
&(W$)�%S
R$S&%V
Q(TQT(&
R%�&�
U($#)(#�
&�(T


%U&�
#
(T&P&#(�SU
##
R��%#�#�%S
S%U&�$S#T
�U($#)(#�
&�(T
S�(TTV
(SR
r�
R$��%m(�%R


S
Q&$%�nn�����}���' �������'~

ESS Page 140

pdunshee
Highlight



�������� 	
�
�
����� �����������

	
��
����
������
����������
 �
��
������
��!��"���
!
������#��!"����������������
������

��#��
������
��������#��
����$����!�����
����������#��
����$����!"�#���!���
%�
����� ����


�
"����&�����������"��������������'���(������"���� �
�
��
���!"�����
����������
�����"
��

"���������")������
���������
�����
$��
"����
�����
"����������������
��������#��
������
������

��#��
����$����!�����
����������#��
����$����!"�#���!��"���"�����
���������
�������
�
����
�

���
$��
"����
����$*
"����
��
����
������
�����

+,-./0123456789364:67;4;6<	
��
����
������
����������'��

�"���'
����
��
"
���
��

����
��!��������
���
������
���$*
"�����
�
��
����
������
�����=�"�'����������
�
��
����


�����$�
�����
���$��
�����
����#��)
����
����
����
��!�
"
��
�����
����
�� 
�������
�

"�����
��������"����'$������#��
���"���������#��������
$��>����?���@�AB&C

D�������
���������
�����#��)
����
�����$
���
%�
����� ����
�
"����&&�����

+,-./E1F8GH6I4GJ6;8;K6LGM;65N;4;67O8H63GP6G;83;K67;4;689Q8R4<��!"���
!��"
��

�
��
����
����
S���
�T���
�����!�'
�"!�������#
������!��
�
��������
����
���� �����!

�'
�"!������#
������!���������"���$����������
�
�����
�
#�����#��
�
��
����
������
����

���������� ����
�
"����&���������$*
"�����
�
��
����
������
�����>��A�?���@�B��C��


�"
�������������
����!"���
!��"
����
S���
�T���
�U
����#
�����'��"���
�D��#
��V�#


��#������������ ��"�����
"�%"���!
�
#��
�$!�
�
����� >�S�T���T�W���&C�

+,-./X1F8GH6I4GJ689Y38Y63;I8G:64765:4G5<Z�
������
���$�����'������
����"��
���"��
�

���
��
��������$*
"�����
�
��
����
������
�����Z�
��"�������
�
���� ��� ���$�����'��

���
����"��
��
����� ���
������� ��"���
����
��!����"��
���
����
�
#�������!�
��

"���
!��"
���#��
�
��
����
������
�����>����?���@�[��C

+,-./\1]83;O4O65694̂:;<����
��"����������� �
�
��
������'#���'�'�����
���

������
�

"���
!��"
�����#
������
#���'�'

���������"��������
#���'�'
�
$����
������"�������$*
"�

����
�
��
����
������
�����Z�
"�����
��������� ��"���
�����"��"���
�����
���������'

������%
�#���'�'
�
$��

V� 
�
������
�"
�������������
��"���
!��"
���
������
��!����
�����
������
������
���


�����
"����
�"������
�
#�����#�
��
����
������
�����

+,-./+1F8PY:6;M8G89J8G;34J;<��

������
�"���
!��"
�����#
��'��
�����
��#
��

"�#��
����������'�
�
��
����
"�����"����$*
"�����
�
��
����
������
�����Z�
�������$


"�#��
�����
����#�������
��"���
���"
������
�����
"�����"����������
�!����
����

�������#
����!#
��#��
���������
�����"
����
�

������
�"���
!��"
�����#
�������


���'����"�����"�������'�
�������������!�������
����������%��#
�����"�"�����"����
�������

$
"�#��
����!����
���'����"�����"����"
���"�#��
��������
"�����"��

_�
�����'�
�

������
�"���
!��"
�����#
����'��
�����
��#
��"�#��
������#�����


�""
����
�
��
����
"�����"����
�����
���
���
��$
"�#��
��������$��
������
�����"���


���"
����
���
�"�"�����"��D��
��#��
�����
����
��
����
��̀ �����������#
��"�����"�������
�

`�
�����
��#
����
��!����������
��������#
��"�����"������$�
a
���!$�������̀ ������
�

��
���
��
"���
���
�
�������
����
��!��������
�

��������$�
�������"�#��
�����
���

��"���
���"
����
�����
���'����"�����"��� ��"�� �������!���̀ �����$�
�������"�#��
�

����
�����"���
���"
����
�����
�$�
a
��"�����"��� ��"�̀  �������!�

+,-./b1c77MOGP6G;789J8G;34J;<����'�#
������
��
����
"�����"��$!"�����"��
��
�����"�����"�

$!
����
����$*
"�����
�
��
����
������
�����>����?���@�A�BC

+,-./,1F83Y834;64G5Y43;G637KMY5M778:̂;M8G<�"���
!��"
���
���!$!�"������������

�����
���������a������������������������������
����
���������
���$*
"�����
�
$������


"�����������������
��������"���
!��"
�$*
"�����
�
��
����
������
�����V� 
�
������
�
��


���
$�������
"���
!��"
��#��
���
�!�����
"��"
�����������
���
#
������
"���������")��

�������������
�����
��������!�

	
��
����
������
����������
 �
��
������
��!��"���
!
����#���#��!"�����������

�����
��������#��
������
��������#��
����$����!�����
����������#��
����$����!"�#���!���
%�
���

�� ����
�
"����&��������������
����
��������
�����#
#$
����������������"���� �
�
��


���!"�����
��������"���������")������
���������
�����
$��
"����
�����
"����������������
������

��#��
������
��������#��
����$����!�����
����������#��
����$����!"�#���!���"����'��
���#�����

ESS Page 141



����������� 	
�
�
����� ��������

���
�������
����
�� �
��������
�����!
!�
����"�� "���#�
���#�����
�������
�
����
����
��

�
"�#�#
�#���$
"�����
�
� 
����
������
���%�

&'()*+,-./0123453674218/6479����

���#����!
��:#�
�
%" �#�
 ����
"�
� ������
��#�

�����$
"�����
�
� 
����
������
���%�

&'()*++-;<223<=/>377?@143?6/A/8B43?69C���#�:
�#��� �#��
%
!��#�����!��
�
� 
����


������
���%����#�
�#���D����
�
"�#��E�����F�GH��� #
��� ����
� ����
���"���
���"
�

�
�D

����!
�����
���
"#I"�  �!�����
�����#��� �#���
"�

�

&'()*+)-J<83@5>/K40<60/@@<43?6/A/8B43?69L�
��!# ��
��"��"
  ��#��
%
!��#�����!��
�
� 


����
������
���%����#�
�#���D����
�
"�#��E�����F��H��� #
��� ����
� 
����
"���
���"
�

�
�D

����������D#�
������
�����"�# ����#��
��
��
���
�D

���
�
����#
��

L�
�!�����#��
��
��
����$
"���
%
!��#�����  ���
%"

���
��#�!��M
��� 
����


����
����
#�:������
��
��

NO�CPQN������#�#��
��
����#�����
����R�������L�
���������
���
� ����
���D#�����#�

!��M
��� 
��R���������#�����
������#���"�#������
#��
��
��
���S��
� 
����
������
���%#�

�
#���#��#���#���

NO�CPQN������#�#��
��
����#�����
����R�������L�
���������
���
� ����
���D#�����#�

!��M
��� 
��RE�������#�����
������#���"�#������
#��
��
��
���	
� 
����
������
���%#��


��RG����#���#��#���#���

&'()*+T-U7718B43?6?V>/K49����������#�:�
������
����
���"���
�
�����#�������!
���

��
:����

#�������
#�" �
���"���#�
���#��#�"�!��#�:��
�!������
� 
����
������
���%�
�

NO�CPQN�P���
���D#���!���:�:
��RE�����#�������
��
����!���W�W�����RG�������

��
�������!
��
RE�����!���:�:
�L�
�
� 
����
������
���%#����
"�!��
�����
RG�����

"������!
���� ����W������!
���
!���:�:
#����#�#����!�M#�:��
"������!
�����
�
� 


����
������
���%D� ��
"�!��
���R�������F��
�!����
���!
�����!���:�:
H�

&'()*+X-;/2=/27Y0?67?@3><43?67Y<6>2/?2=<63Z<43?679����
���"
����
� 
����
�
� �#�:���!

"�������
�� #!#�
� #��# #��"�!����!
�:
���"���� #���#�������
��:��#[��#�����

%
!�����!��


�
� 
����
������
���%�L�
��  �D#�:�
I�#�#�����
#��
��
����
:
�
�� :#�
 #�
�#��
�
�!#�#�:


 #:#�# #�����
%
!��#����
���#����
"�#���

\;/2=/2]!
�����
�#�#�:���D���!��
"�������#�����"�!���#
�#�����
"�������#����

"�!����#��"�!���
�������
"�������#����"�!�����
� �#�:���!��
!
�:
��
��#��#��
%#��
�"


������������
���
�"����#�
��"�������#��F�H��"�!����F#
�HD�#"���
�
�� ��
#������
#�
%#��
�"
�

\̂?67?@3><43?6]!
�����
�#�#�:���D���!��
"�������#�����"�!���#
�#�����#�: 
�
D

"�������#����"�!������  ����
"����#�
��"�������#�����"�!���#
���
�
��"
��#�:��
%#����

�
�����

��#�#
��

\_/?2=<63Z<43?6]!
�����
������
����������#�  ��  ����
���
������
"�������#����"�!����

�������
�"�������#����"�!����D�
�
��
�
��������#�:��#��
�
��#���
� �"�������#����"�!����

!�#���#��������#�  ���
��!
#��
�
��#���
�
D"�������#����"�!�����

L�#�� 
#�#��
��
���#!� 
!
����D����
�
"�#��E��������!
��
������G��D��"���"����
�

��G������
"�#��E��������!
��
������G��D��"���"����
������

&,+̀ &'(T*X)ab-cdefghgijklmknogfpdqrdmsklmjtjfjiuknekpliuhdekhvdhmglvejiuglvekpliu

gmmdmmkhm(

&'(T*+-J?287<6>B2?0/>12/79������
"���
�����"�������"#�����
��������  �
�� �

��
�
" ����#������ 
���!�������"
��
���
�"�#�
��������#�
�����
�#�
"������
�
�
���

�
����#�:�
� 
����
������
���

&'(T*)-_/B?24?V7<@/79������
"���
�����"#�����"�������
��������  "�!� 
�
��


�������#��
����#�������
�
� 
����
������
�w�
" ����#������ 
���!���
�"��
� 
����
������
�

���D�#"���
" ����#������ 
����

�"�!� 
�
�����
��
���
  
�����:
���L�
"�!� 
�
��
� 


����
������
�w�
" ����#������ 
���!����  �
�
�#���
���#�:��
x���
� ��� 
��
�������


��!#��
�����
�
����!
�����
x#�
�����D����
�
"�#��E�����FGH�

&'(T*T-y2<678344<@?VV?2879	
� 
����
������
�w�
" ����#������ 
���!�I 
�D#����
"����

�
"���
����  �
�����!#��
����!�� �����
�
����!
���S���#�:#���#���� 
���  �
"�����
���

ESS Page 142



�������� 	
�
�
����� �����������

�
��
�
��������������������� �!����� ""
""��"#��������
���$��
�
%��
�
��""
�#��������& 

��!
"
�����"������'()*+, �!������'()*-.,

/0123456789:;<=7>7??7@8A.������
���!
�" �!���� �!����� ""
""��""� �������
�


!
�� � �����#� �
#���"�� ����! ��
&�����"�������"�""
!����
!
� ���
���B�
 ""
""
!

� �
"
��
�
!����
#���" �
���
��
C� �� �
" "�#D � ����#��
�
 ���&������
�� �"#
�

�����
!�

B��"��
�"���
�!
!������
�
����& ��!
"
������������
�EFG//HIJ���K��������
##
����
L������MEFGNHO0G���K���������
##
����
����P����

/QRS/01434HOE5GTUVWXYVUWYZ[TUZ\[W]UX̂_̀V_UẀUTẀVa1

/0143R5��!
�
������$&�
��
� $������ ��
 ����"���� "
!�� ������ ����������
!� ���
�"����

��"�� ��
��������
"�!
�� ��
�#������"
"�#�����!��$��#��� �����
%��
!#��"���� �"#
�"����& 

��!
"
��������������
!
C������"�����"��
"� �� �����

/0143H5������ ����!
C�
!�b������ ����c�
 �" !��
"�����#��
�$������� ���� �!����!
"

 ������C������� ���� �!����
� ���
"�

/014325d����
!� ���
�"���!
C�
!�bd����
!� ���
�"���c�
 �" � ���
�"��� "!
C�
!����& 

��!
"
������������'�P) �!&�����&�"���
 "
" $������ �� �!���"
�$ $
!��# ����$�

/014345B�"�!
C�
!�bB�"�c�
 �" C!�� ���
� ����"���&����
"�
��������
����"�e
����$��


�
�"����&�����
����
����"�
�!��
%�� ��
!��
"��!
 �&�����
����
���#����
�
�
C��# ����
�

�
�"���&���� ��"
" " �
"���# � ��#
"� �����# ����
���������
 �
������"�����!
" �
$ �


��������!��$����
��� " ��"�

� $
���
"���& $
��� �����
�f��f# ��� �!�� ��"���� �� � �����

B�"�!�
"�������!
 �
�"�� ����$�� C!�� ��� � ���� " �
g
����� !����"�� �����
�"�� �

�
��
"
�� ���
�$ �!� �����"
�� ������
�
��
��

/0143N5���
�!
C�
!�b���
�c�
 �" �
�"���������#��
h���
!i� �
" �!�� �� ��j
!�!
�

��
���"������� �!� &"�#��
h���
!i� �
"�'k@;l;@m.k;;@no���p�q����������& ��P����

'����)�)

/0143I5p���
"�!
�� ��
�!
C�
!�bp���
"�!
�� ��
�c�
 �" � ��
� "!
C�
!��"���
����'L)

&���"��� �
"�!
���#��
"� �
�#��& �

B��"��
�"���
�!
!������
�
����& ��!
"
������������
�EFG//HIJ���K��������
##
����
L�������

/QRS/01N34HOE5r\Us \̂st̀TVX\YWYuv̀XY]UTw_XUTsTYVZ1

/01N3R5x;+:;A<+<;<@+>A?;@yz;{:+@+<=7>7?m+:l;?7@8.��
 �
"� �
�� �"#
�|!
�� � �����#� �


#����"��
�����
�
!#�� ��!

!������ �����"���
����&�����$�� �$� ��"� ""�$�"��� �"#
�"��

���
�&�"
����
�"�
 �����
����
g�
�����"
"�
��C� ���
g
���
!��� &��#��
!���
����
"
��
!

#���
���!��$��
 ���"� �
"����"# �
�� ����" !���
��
g
���#�����
�
������$�
%��
�
��" "


��
� �
!����& ��!
"
������������"�"
�����"�����$�L������$��P� �!�(����$����

��"�"
�����(�
g�
������
� "
�# #
!
� � $
�������"���
�� ��������# �� �"#
��"��
�
"���#

 �%�"������#����
���#�����������"
"����$�
���
��!�� ������" !

!$��
���#�C���
���# 

��
���"���
���!
!�
 �
"� �
����� �����
 �
"� �
�� �"#
�|!
�� � �����#� �
#����"����
%��
!

#�� ���� �" ������� �!�
"���$� ��� ""�$���� �"#
�������
��
 �����
����

/01N3H5x;+:;A<+<;<@+>A?;@yz;{:+@+<=7>7?m+:l;}x;+:;A<+<;<@+>A?;@<+~.	
%��
�
��"#��

�����
���$�
 �
"� �
�� �"#
�f!
�� � �����#� �
#���"��
g�
�����"#���C���$��
#���""� �����

�
���"��
!�� ��
���
�� ������#����
�
 �
"� �
�� �"#
�� g����
 �����#"��� g "�����!
!��

��& ��!
�� ��
������

/01N325��;><z;�>;z.�""
!����& ��!
"
������������ � $
���"!
C�
! " ���
�"��

!
"�$� �
!�� �����
!����
��
���"
��
��� �����
� �#�#��
��
���"
��
�����
�
 �
"� �


�� �"#
��� �" ������

/01N345�7m;@>8;><+�;>{n�:=>�@;�l=@;8;><A.B�
�
 �
"� �
�� �"#
�f!
�� � �����#� �
#���

!�
"���� �
���
�����
�
!#�� ���
 �
"� �
�� �"#
�!���
����&������
"� �
�#��& �� ��

 $
������"���
�� ������������� �"�!���"�����
�
�#�"��
$� ����� ""�$������ �"#
���������
���

��#�� ���� �"#
���&������
"� �
�#��& �� �� $
������"���
�� ������������� �"�!���"���

��
�
�#�"��
$� ��

�� ""�$�

&�
�
��
�
�"�����"�!
� �������&
�
�� ���� �"#
���&���� ��

ESS Page 143



����������� 	
�
�
����� ��������

��������
���
������
�����

��������

 �
�
��
�
��!����"
���������#$
!�����
�
�%
����


������
�&"
!%�����������%
'%����
(��
�
���)����*���+���,��"��-������
��� ��!���
.���
"

/���
�����-��
�!-��������
���%��-��
�
���������-����
������
����#$
!�����
�
�%
����


������
�&"
!%�����������%
'%����
(��
�
������
0!
������������#�%
��!���
-��!
�����#%�!

�����
��!!�������������

0
�!��
����
�� 
���
���
��"������

1234546	
!��"����
��
"�7�
!���-�
!��"
����%%�
��
���
!��"��-"�!�
����� ��!���
�%


����
������
�&"
!%�����������%
���
(��
"����
���������!���%
�
"�!!���
%-��"!���%
�
%-

#-��
#-
����
%%
�����
��
����
���
��7�
"
!%�����������%
���%%��!%"
��
��!��%�
!���-

��#
����
"
��%�"
���'!�������#
�����
#-
���"�
%%
���"�%%���
�������������
(��
"#-��


"��
!������
�
�
)89:;<==9>?;@?9A9BCD;E@9F=D@;EGHG89:;IDJ;F@KDA@9BCDHDALDM�N��&��O���

P�%Q����-R�����!������S
#���-O����T,�U� 
�
������������"
���"�����
��������
�
����

���
����V���
��!���%
������
"
!%�����������%
����#%
���#������
��!��%�
!���-���
"
��%

�"
���'!�������#
�����
���
�����-����
������!����"
����!����#
-��"��
!�����%����
�
����

���
����V���
��������
"��'"�����������������

����� ����"
��"��
�
����� �-��
��#
�

!�%"���#
�#����
"���%%#
�#����
" �����
��!���%
�
"
!%�����������%
�7�
"
!%���������

��%
 �������!�
"��'"�������%%#
!����"
�
"��'!�
��!���%���!
 ����� ���"
�
!����O�����

��"��
��'"�������%%#
!����"
�
"���������
"
!%�����������%
�#$
!�����
�������������� �

��"
�
!����O�������

12345W6XLE@?JEDJ;F>DE=G/
�����
"
!%������������%
��
��#
�#����
"��
�!�!���-�
!��"
�

����
�
�%
����
!���
-
"!������������!
%�%�!��
"�����
������
!���-�7�
!����"
���������"

���
�!�����
��-���#
�
�����
%-����
"����
"
!%�����������%
����
�
!��"
����%%�
��
��

�
!��"��
������
����!���
-��!
�

7����%
�����
�"
"�����%
�
���� ���"
�
!�����O�������"O��������"�
!����O����O��

��
�"
"#-������ ��!���/
���
S�%
�����
!�����Y�
�Z[\]̂4]_���̀ ��������
��
!���
��Y����

1abc123W5de]Z6fghijklkkmnnopqmkilrlojpsnptuligm3R
!%������������%
��
�#%�!�
!��"���"

���#
��"
����%�#%
����#%�!����
!�������!!��"��!
 ����� ���"
!����
����U� 
�
����

��
"
!%�����������%
!���������
��!��%�
!���-��#
����
"
��%��0�"
���'!�������#
�����


#-
����
%%
����
��!��%�
!���-��#
�����
�
"
��%��0�"
���'!�������#
����#
�
"�!�
"#-

��
���
���
����'!��%������
���������
"
!%�����������%
��������������#
����
%
��
"����


�#%�!�

7����%
�����
�"
"�����%
�
���� ���"
�
!����O���������
�"
"#-������ ��!���U��


S�%
O����
!������
�Z[\11eW_���̀ O�������
��
!���
�������vZ[\]̂4]_���̀ ��������
��
!���
��Y����

�S�%
"��������w���!
�������x�#%���
"�������
��
!���
��������
�

�

�S�%
"���������w���!
��������x�#%���
"����O����
��
!���
��������

�S�%
"�������w���!
���Y���x�#%���
"��������
��
!���
��������

�S�%
"��������w���!
��O���x�#%���
"��������
��
!���
���T����

�S�%
"������T�w���!
������Tx�#%���
"���O��T�
��
!���
�������T�

�S�%
"��T�����w���!
O��O���x�#%���
"Y�������
��
!���
���O����

�S�%
"
�
��
�!-����O��Yx�#%���
"�������Y�
��
!���
����O��Y�

�S�%
"��������w���!
�������x�#%���
"��������
��
!���
���������

�S�%
"���������w���!
�������x�#%���
"���������
��
!���
���������

�S�%
"T��T����w���!
������x�#%���
"O������
��
!���
��Y����

�S�%
"���T����w���!
�������x�#%���
"����O����
��
!���
���������

�S�%
"���Y����w���!
��T����x�#%���
"���������
��
!���
���������

�S�%
"�������Y�w���!
������Yx�#%���
"���O��Y�
��
!���
�������

�S�%
"�������w���!
�������x�#%���
"���Y����
��
!���
T������

�S�%
"���������w���!
������x�#%���
"���T�����
��
!���
��������

�S�%
"���T�����w���!
�������x�#%���
"������Y�
��
!���
������Y�

�S�%
"�	����Ỳ )w���!
�	�����̀���̀ �������,���̀ O�������
��
!���
��������

ESS Page 144



�������� 	
�
�
����� �����������

����
��	�������� !�"
�	����#������������$������������
%%
"!��
�������

����
��	�������� !�"
�	����#������������$�������������
%%
"!��
���������

� &%%
"!��
�'!
 %()*�
�����#$+'(�
�',
�),!�
��-���(!*'!��
	�
(	
��
+� --�!!

���',('���
�',+'(��%!
� �

� �
-)
*�#������

ESS Page 145



ESS/Iowa Land Records 
8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2 

Johnston, Iowa  50131 

October 18, 2022 

To: ESS Standards Subcommittee 

From: Phil Dunshee 

Re: Security Policy Updates 

On April 16, 2019, we reported to you that the ILR/ESS team had been working with the Iowa Department 
of Revenue and the Internal Revenue Service on issues relating to our system security. The Department 
was requiring us to follow IRS 1075 security standards. These standards applied to our primary 
applications (search, submission, payment) and infrastructure at our data center, and to our office local 
area network and devices. Several changes have been made since then including the development of the 
updated E-Submission application. This was an important area, because E-Submission is the application 
where state tax liens, considered to be confidential taxpayer information prior to recording, were 
processed. You may recall that one of the major areas of concern was that the E-Submission was 
operating on a platform built in 2006, and part of that open-source platform was no longer being 
supported and updated. The new application, coupled with increased encryption of internal system 
communications resolved most of those concerns. 

However, much work remained in our other applications. In the past year we have updated a new 
payment API, and soon we will begin updating the search application. A major step forward in our system 
security will be the implementation of a modern central authentication service. In addition to providing 
increased security, this system will enable single sign on privileges for E-Submission customers – 
providing them with access to the search application without requiring a separate user ID and password. 

This system will likely include the following features and requirements. 

 Expiration/deactivation of accounts (ADMIN2, and submission and portal users) if no activity
within 120 days

 Reactivation upon request by PM for ADMIN2, or customer service admins for other users
 Incompatible duties –ESS Admins can view but not act as submitters or searchers; ESS Admins

can view but not act as recorders or deputies; see also the matrix of roles and functions
 Limited number of attempts (3) before lockout for policy and time delay for retry -15 minutes.
 The system will log the following activities:

o All successful login and logoff attempts.
o All unsuccessful login and authorization attempts.
o All identification and authentication attempts.
o All actions, connections and requests performed by privileged users. This auditing

requirement also applies to data tables or databases embedded in or residing outside of
the application.

o All actions, connections and requests performed by privileged functions.
o All changes to logical access control authorities (e.g., rights, permissions).
o System changes with the potential to compromise the integrity of audit policy

configurations, security policy configurations and audit record generation services.
o Creation, modification and deletion of objects (e.g. files, directories and user accounts)
o Creation, modification and deletion of user accounts and group accounts
o Creation, modification and deletion of user account and group account privileges.
o System startup and shutdown functions.
o Enabling or disabling of audit report generation services.
o Command line changes, batch file changes and queries made to the system (e.g.,

operating system, application, database).

ESS Page 146



 All user accounts must be unique and associated with a unique email address. There may be no
duplicates

 All users must have passwords – there can be no blank passwords. ILR password policy is.
(passphrase) at least 14 char, 1 upper, 1 lower, 1 number and 1 special char from this list:
$@$!%*?&

 Maximum password age of 90 days for privileged users. Password history for the previous 24
passwords. Users are forced to change their initial password during their first logon

 ADMIN2 and E-Submission will require multi-factor authentication. Baseline will be email to send
a code. SMS delivery desired. User could specify a preference. reCAPTCHA may continue for the
search application.

 Blot password characters (use same method as in current E-Submission)
 Session termination after 30 minutes of inactivity
 An annual test to demonstrate that system initialization, shutdown, and aborts keep the system in

a secure state.

In addition to providing necessary additional security for ILR/ESS systems, the implementation of a 
central authentication service will move us closer to ending the use of legacy applications which are 
based on platforms which are no longer supported. 

Some of these security policies will likely be reflected in a new Section to Chapter 1 of the policies and 
procedures (1.14). These policies will be brought forward for consideration by the Standards 
Subcommittee and the ESS Coordinating Committee in 2023. 

Action Requested. We are seeking discussion and comments from the Standards Subcommittee. 

Note: Today we are seeking discussion and comments
from the ESS Coordinating Committee.

ESS Page 147



Chapter 3 
Policy and Procedures Stamp Area 

Chapter 3 of the Electronic Services System (ESS) Policies and Procedures is 
amended to allow an alternative method of providing sufficient space for a 
recording stamp on the first page of a document.  

1. Chapter 3 of the ESS Policies and Procedures is amended by adding the
following new Subsection.

ESS – 3.3 Document Formatting 
(Iowa Code Section 331.604(1) 

3.3(13) Recording Stamp Area. Notwithstanding the requirements specified in 
Section 3.3(7) relating to the top margin of the first page of each document or 
instrument, a document which provides sufficient space for an official recording 
stamp or label to be affixed by the systems used by a County Recorder for 
reviewing, recording and indexing documents shall be accepted for recording. The 
space to be provided for an official recording stamp shall be blank or white with 
dimensions of not less than 3.75 inches of width and 2.5 inches of height. The 
space to be provided for an official recording stamp shall be located in the top 
margin of the first page. 

DRAFT 

FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N

ESS Page 148



Chapters 3 and 5 
Policy and Procedures Standard Index Legend 

Chapters 3 and 5 of the Electronic Services System (ESS) Policies and Procedures 
is amended to allow an alternative method of providing the information required 
on the first page of a document (Section 3.3(9)).  

1. Section 3.1 of the ESS Policies and Procedures is amended by adding the
following new Definition.

Standard Index Legend – A rectangular area displayed on the first page of an 
electronic document which includes information which would otherwise be 
required on the first page of a document or on a Cover Page. 

2. Section 3.3(11) of the ESS Policies and Procedures is amended to read as
follows:

3.3(11) If insufficient space exists on the first page for all of the information 
described herein, the document may include a Cover Page or a Standard Index 
Legend which includes the required information.  An approved template 
Approved templates and best practices for a Cover Page or a Standard Index 
Legend is are published at iowalandrecords.org. 

3. Section 5.1 of the ESS Policies and Procedures is amended by adding the
following new Definition.

Standard Index Legend – A rectangular area displayed on the first page of an 
electronic document which includes information which would otherwise be 
required on the first page of a document or on a Cover Page. 

4. Section 5.4(1), lettered paragraph c, of the ESS Policies and Procedures is
amended read asl follows:

c. Documents which are exempt from the format requirements as specified in
Section 331.606B, subsection 4 of the Iowa Code and Section 3.3(12) of the ESS
policies and procedures, shall not be accepted through the ILR E-Submission
service except when accompanied by an approved Cover Page or when a Standard
Index Legend is displayed on the first page.

DRAFT 

FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N

ESS Page 149



Index Legend Concept – Based on Current Content Requirements 
10 pt. type (Arial) 

Index Legend - A 
Document Title: Statement of Escrow Agent 
Grantors: Dennis Kellenberg, Kay Kellenberg 
Grantees: Melissa Merritt, Rocky Merritt 
Legal Description Reference: Page 2 
Associated References: 2018-0471 
Preparer: David L. Jungmann, PO Box 329 

Greenfield, Iowa 50849; (641) 743-6195 
Taxpayer: Melissa and Rocky Merritt, 410 NW Hayes St., 

Greenfield, IA 50849 (Conveyance Only) 
Return To: David L. Jungmann, PO Box 329, 

Greenfield, Iowa 50849 

Index Legend - B 
Document Title: Statement of Escrow Agent 
Grantors: Dennis Kellenberg, Kay Kellenberg 
Grantees: Melissa Merritt, Rocky Merritt 
Legal Description Reference: Page 2 
Associated References: BK2018 Page 0471 
Preparer: David L. Jungmann, PO Box 329 

Greenfield, Iowa 50849; (641) 743-6195 
Taxpayer: Melissa and Rocky Merritt, 410 NW Hayes St., 

Greenfield, IA 50849 (Conveyance Only) 
Return To: David L. Jungmann, PO Box 329, 

Greenfield, Iowa 50849 

Index Legend - C 
Document Title: Statement of Escrow Agent 
Grantors: Dennis Kellenberg, Kay Kellenberg 
Grantees: Melissa Merritt, Rocky Merritt 
Legal Description Reference: Page 2 
Preparer: David L. Jungmann, PO Box 329 

Greenfield, Iowa 50849; (641) 743-6195 
Taxpayer: Melissa and Rocky Merritt, 410 NW Hayes St., 

Greenfield, IA 50849 (Conveyance Only) 
Return To: David L. Jungmann, PO Box 329, 

Greenfield, Iowa 50849 

DRAFT 

FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N

ESS Page 150



Index Legend Concept – Possible E-Submission Requirements 
10 pt. type (Arial) [Prepared By/Return To Not Required] 

Index Legend - A 
Document Title: Statement of Escrow Agent 
Grantors: Dennis Kellenberg, Kay Kellenberg 
Grantees: Melissa Merritt, Rocky Merritt 
Legal Description Reference: Page 2 
Associated References: 2018-0471 
Taxpayer: Melissa and Rocky Merritt, 410 NW Hayes St., 

Greenfield, IA 50849 (Conveyance Only) 

Index Legend - B 
Document Title: Statement of Escrow Agent 
Grantors: Dennis Kellenberg, Kay Kellenberg 
Grantees: Melissa Merritt, Rocky Merritt 
Legal Description Reference: Page 2 
Associated References: BK2018 Page 0471 
Taxpayer: Melissa and Rocky Merritt, 410 NW Hayes St., 

Greenfield, IA 50849 (Conveyance Only) 

Index Legend - C 
Document Title: Statement of Escrow Agent 
Grantors: Dennis Kellenberg, Kay Kellenberg 
Grantees: Melissa Merritt, Rocky Merritt 
Legal Description Reference: Page 2 
Taxpayer: Melissa and Rocky Merritt, 410 NW Hayes St., 

Greenfield, IA 50849 (Conveyance Only) 

Index Legend Concept – Possible E-Submission Requirements 
10 pt. type (Arial) [Prepared By/Return To Not Required – and Not A Conveyance 

Index Legend - A 
Document Title: Statement of Escrow Agent 
Grantors: Dennis Kellenberg, Kay Kellenberg 
Grantees: Melissa Merritt, Rocky Merritt 
Legal Description Reference: Page 2 
Associated References: 2018-0471 

DRAFT 

FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N

ESS Page 151



Chapter 5 
Policy and Procedures Preparer and Return Information 

Chapters 5 of the Electronic Services System (ESS) Policies and Procedures 
modifies certain formatting requirements for electronic documents submitted for 
recording. Specifically, requirements for preparer information and return address 
information would be modified..  

1. Section 5.4(1), is amended by adding the follow lettered paragraph “t.”

t. Notwithstanding Section 3.3(9) of the Policies and Procedures, the
requirements relating to the submission of information about the name, address, 
and telephone number of the individual who prepared the document shall be 
included in the data or metadata accompanying the submission of an electronic 
document. If permitted under Iowa law, a Submitter is not required to directly 
incorporate preparer information or a return address in an electronic document 
submitted for recording. 

DRAFT 

FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N

ESS Page 152



Chapter 3 
Policy and Procedures 

Cover Pages 

Chapter 3 of the Electronic Services System (ESS) Policies and Procedures is 
amended to the requirements for the use of a Cover Page when filing a document 
for recording. 

1. Section 3.1 of the ESS Policies and Procedures is amended by adding the
following new definition.

ESS – 3.1 Definitions. 
(Iowa Code Section 331.604, 3(a)) 

As used in this Chapter: 

Attestation Statement – A statement made by a party to a transaction such as an 
exemption to requirements that a Declaration of Value or Groundwater Hazard 
Statement be submitted for recording. 

2. Chapter 3 of the ESS Policies and Procedures is amended by adding the
following new Section.

3.  
ESS – 3.15 Cover Pages 
(Iowa Code Section 331.604(1) 

“3.15(1) A Cover Page or sheet may be used to accompany a document being 
submitted to a county recorder for recording. The purpose of a cover page or 
cover sheet is to provide a means to comply with the requirement that certain 
information be included on the “first page below the three-inch margin” and it is  
This information is enumerated in Section 331.606B, subsection 2, Code of Iowa, 
and it includes the following: 

a. The name, address, and telephone number of the individual who prepared
the document.

Generally, the “prepared by” or “preparer information” should be the
person representing the submitter who can best answer questions and
resolve issues relating to the document – particularly as it pertains to
information regarding the recording process. It answers the question,
“Who should the recorder contact if there is an issue or question?”

b. For any instrument of conveyance, the name of the taxpayer and a
complete mailing address.

If the document submitted for recording has conveyed the title of a
property from one party to another, then the taxpayer, i.e., the seller who

DRAFT 

FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N

ESS Page 153



must pay the real estate transfer tax, should be named with a current and 
correct mailing address. 

c. A return address.

When documents are submitted are submitted in paper form to the
recorder, the final recorded and stamped document is traditionally returned
to the submitter. This information may be preceded by a phrase such as
“Return Document To” or “Return To”. When electronic documents are
submitted for recording, the recorded document with the recording stamp
is presented to the submitter electronically. In this case a physical
document is not returned and therefore the return address has not practical
utility.

d. The title of the document or instrument.

It is common for legal documents to include a title such as “Warranty
Deed” or “Affidavit of Surviving Spouse For Change of Title to Real
Estate”. A part of the recorder’s index is the “document type”. The
document title is represented on the first page of the instrument, and it is
also required on the Cover Page if one is used.

e. All grantors’ names.

An essential element of the recorder’s index are the parties to a transaction
or legal action. Generally, a grantor is the party in a transaction who
conveys ownership of an asset. During a real estate transaction, the grantor
sells the property rights to the grantee. A listing of grantors on a Cover
Sheet or in a Standard Index Legend aids the county recorder with their
indexing function.

f. All grantees’ names.

An essential element of the recorder’s index are the parties to a transaction
or legal action. Generally, a grantee is the party in a transaction who
receives something – aka the buyer. In terms of a real estate transaction,
the grantee receives ownership of the property after the closing process
ends. A listing of grantees on a Cover Sheet or in a Standard Index Legend
aids the county recorder with their indexing function.

g. Any address required by statute.

This element is not typically used, and if present, would not be represented
in the recorder’s index. However, it is included here in the event that an
address is “required by statute.

DRAFT 

FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N

ESS Page 154



h. The legal description of the property and parcel identification number, if
required.

A legal description included in some documents can sometimes be
lengthy, and therefore it is often given a page reference, as permitted by
Iowa Code Section 331.606B, subsection 3. Inclusion of the legal
description or reference on page 1, on the Cover Page, or in a Standard
Index Legend can assist the county recorder with their indexing function.

i. A document or instrument number for statutory requirements, if
applicable.

Generally, the document or instrument number referenced here may be
preceded by one of the following phrases: “Document or instrument
number of associated documents previously recorded” or “Document or
instrument number if applicable.” This element represents an “associated
reference.” For example, if the document being recorded is a Satisfaction
of Mortgage, it may refer to the previously recorded mortgage. Other
examples include reference numbers to State Tax Liens, or previous deeds
for the same property. Including the associated reference number on page
1, on the Cover Page, or in a Standard Index Legend can assist the county
recorder with their indexing function.

“3.15(2) A Cover Page may not be a part of the legal instrument, because it is 
explicitly related to the recording process and does not have a function directly 
related to a transaction, and because a Cover Page may not be present when the 
parties execute a transaction or document. 

For these reasons, as a best practice the parties to a transaction and document 
preparers are encouraged to ensure that any attestation of fact is included in the 
legal instrument itself and not be included as an element of a Cover Page. 
Attestation statements, such as real estate transfer tax exemptions or groundwater 
hazard statement exemptions are not referenced in Iowa Code Section 331.606B, 
subsection 2, and therefore for should not be included on a Cover Page. 

In the event that an instrument is submitted with a Cover Page that includes an 
Attestation statement, the best practices for county recorders is to accept it for 
recording if the document fulfills all other recording requirements.” 

New Section 3.15 adopted – [date] 

DRAFT 

FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N

ESS Page 155



SAMPLE TITLE 
Recorder’s Cover Sheet 

Preparer Information:  

Taxpayer Information: 

Return Document To: 

Grantors:   

Grantees:   

Legal Description:   

Document or instrument number if applicable:   

DRAFT 

FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N

ESS Page 156



[Document Title] 

Recorder’s Cover Sheet 

Preparer Information: (Individual’s name, address and phone number) 

Taxpayer Information: (Taxpayer’s name and full mailing address) 

Return Document To: (Name and full mailing address) 

Grantors: Grantees:

Parcel Identification Number: (If required or applicable) 

Legal Description: 

Document or instrument number of associated documents previously recorded: 

DRAFT 

FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N

ESS Page 157



ESS – 3.9 Associated Document References. 
(Iowa Code Section 331.604, 3(a)) 

3.9(1) The purpose of establishing standards, policies and procedures for 
Associated Document References is to ensure that the information is accurate, 
complete, consistent and accessible through the county land record information 
system, and to ensure that information about associated documents including 
index information and document images can be retrieved.  In some cases, the 
retrieval of associated document information will be implemented through a 
search link using the document reference information for the associated document 
or documents.  Therefore, the format of associated document reference 
information must be maintained in a format which is identical to the original 
document reference number for the associated document. 

3.9(2) Each County indexing system shall provide for archiving associated 
document reference information.  Each County shall archive associated document 
reference information for all associated and electronically indexed documents.  
Associated document references include but are not limited to the following. 

Page 46 of 95 

CURRENT POLICY

ESS Page 158



a. Index references between conveyance documents, e.g., deeds, contracts or
bills of sale, and Declaration of Value documents.

b. Index references between mortgage and satisfaction of mortgage
documents.

c. Index references between state and federal tax liens and releases of federal
and state tax liens.

d. Index references between other associated documents such as
Groundwater Hazard statements, re-recorded documents, etc..

3.9(3) The associated reference information shall be as follows: 

a. The Unique Code Value for each document

3.9(4) Each associated document reference shall be transferred to the county land 
record information system when the reference is created in the County indexing 
system as specified in Chapter 4. 

Page 47 of 95 ESS Page 159



Chapter 3 
Policy and Procedures Associated References 

Chapter 3 of the Electronic Services System (ESS) Policies and Procedures is 
amended to clarify indexing requirements for associated references between 
recorded documents.  

1. Section 3.9 of the ESS Policies and Procedures is amended by striking the
Section and inserting in lieu thereof the following.

ESS – 3.9 Associated Document References. 
(Iowa Code Section 331.604, 3(a)) 

3.9(1) The purpose of establishing standards, policies and procedures for 
Associated Document References is to ensure that the information is accurate, 
complete, consistent and accessible through the county land record information 
system, and to ensure that information about associated documents including 
index information and document images can be retrieved.  In some cases, the 
retrieval of associated document information will be implemented through a 
search link using the document reference information for the associated document 
or documents.  Therefore, the format of associated document reference 
information must be maintained in a format which is identical to the original 
document reference number for the associated document. 

3.9(2) Each County indexing system shall provide for the bilateral archiving of 
associated document index reference information. Associated Document 
References are bilateral when an Associated Document Reference is included in 
the electronic index for both a newly recorded document and an associated and 
previously recorded document, if the previously recorded document is 
electronically indexed and the image is archived.  Each County shall bilaterally 
archive Associated Document Reference information for associated and 
electronically indexed documents when an Associated Document Reference is 
included or represented in a newly recorded document and as specified herein.  
Required Associated Document References include. 

a. Index references between conveyance documents, e.g., deeds, contracts or
bills of sale, and a recorded companion document such as a Groundwater
Hazard Statement document (if a Groundwater Hazard Statement is
required).

b. Index references between a satisfaction of mortgage or partial satisfaction
of mortgage and the parent mortgage document.

c. Index references between a lien release or partial lean release and a parent
lien such as state or federal tax liens and full or partial state or federal tax
lien releases.

d. Index references between re-recorded documents or corrected documents
and an associated parent document.

UPDATED D
RAFT 

FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N

ESS Page 160



e. Index references between successive conveyance documents, e.g., deeds,
contracts or bills of sale. A newly recorded conveyance document shall
include an Associated Document Reference only with the most recent and
previous conveyance document for a property, if electronically indexed.

Other Associated Document References may be indexed at the discretion of 
the County, if an Associated Document Reference is included or represented 
in a newly recorded document. 

3.9(3) It is the responsibility of the document preparer or submitter to ensure that 
any index reference to an associated and previously recorded document is 
accurately included or represented and clearly visible in a document submitted for 
recording. 

3.9(4) The associated reference information shall be as follows: 

a. The Unique Code Value for each document as provided by the County and
the County’s land records management system and vendor as required in
Sections 3.1 and 3.7(4).

3.9(4) Each associated document reference shall be transferred to the county land 
record information system when the reference is created in the County indexing 
system as specified in Sections 4.3(1) and 4.3(2). 

UPDATED D
RAFT 

FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N

ESS Page 161



Explanation (not a part of the official policy – for information purposes only) 

A newly recorded conveyance document should include an Associated Document 
Reference with any recorded and required companion document such as a 
Groundwater Hazard Statement, and the recorded and required companion 
document such as a Groundwater Hazard Statement should include an associated 
reference to the associated and recorded conveyance document. 

A newly recorded lien release or partial lean release document should include an 
Associated Document Reference with the parent lien, and the parent lien 
document should include an associated reference to any newly recorded lien 
release or partial lien release(s). 

A newly recorded corrected document or re-recording should include an 
Associated Document Reference with a parent document, and the parent 
document should include an associated reference to any newly recorded corrected 
document(s) or re-recording(s). 

A newly recorded satisfaction of mortgage or partial satisfaction of mortgage 
document should include an Associated Document Reference with the parent 
mortgage, and the parent mortgage document should include an Associated 
Document Reference to any newly recorded satisfaction of mortgage or partial 
satisfaction of mortgage document(s). 

A newly recorded conveyance document should include an Associated Document 
Reference with the previous conveyance document for a property, and the 
previous conveyance document, if electronically indexed, should include an 
Associated Document Reference to the newly recorded conveyance document. UPDATED D

RAFT 

FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N

ESS Page 162



From: phil@clris.com  
Sent: Thursday, October 20, 2022 1:44 PM 
To: Standards Subcommittee 
Subject: Standards Subcommittee Meeting Follow up 

All, 
Thanks for the great discussion at the meeting earlier this week. We covered a lot of ground … and I 
learned new things too! 

I listened to your comments on the Associated references topic – and went back to the drafting board to 
address some of those questions.  Attached is a revised draft of an updated (proposed) Section 3.9, and 
also attached is the CURRENT policy. 

Here are a few notable things in the update. 

I added in a statement in 3.9(2) that provides that the associated reference will be indexed “when an 
Associated Document Reference is included or represented in a newly recorded document”. In other 
words, the idea that associated references can be indexed if they are included in the document. This is 
also addressed with the new Section 3.9(3) which would state “3.9(3) It is the responsibility of the 
document preparer or submitter to ensure that any index reference to an associated and previously 
recorded document is accurately included or represented and clearly visible in a document submitted 
for recording” 

I still believe it would be beneficial to include an associated reference to a previous conveyance 
document – when three conditions are “true”. 1. The submitter/preparer includes it in the new 
conveyance. 2. Only the most recent previous conveyance is required (not all of history). 3. The previous 
conveyance is electronically indexed. This is represented in 3.9(2)e. .” To me this is also a “day forward 
only” thing. 

There seemed to be consensus on associated references for conveyances/groundwater, mortgages and 
satisfactions, liens and lien releases, and re‐recorded or corrected documents and the original “parent” 
document” Correct? 

A paragraph has been added that states. “Other Associated Document References may be indexed at 
the discretion of the County, if an Associated Document Reference is included or represented in a newly 
recorded document.” This simply affirms that while there “could” be other associated references – they 
aren’t required, and they certainly shouldn’t be expected – especially if the submitter/preparer doesn’t 
include the reference in a newly recorded document. 

So … take a look. Let me know if we are closer to the mark. 

********************************************** 

ESS Page 163



From: Janelle Schneider <recorder@adaircountyiowa.org>  
Sent: Thursday, October 20, 2022 2:51 PM 
To: phil@clris.com 
Subject: RE: Standards Subcommittee Meeting Follow up 

Ok, I have some questions, bear with me. 

3.9(2) a. I see you took out reference to DOV’s because they are not viewed by the public. I get that, it is 
fine. 

e. At the meeting we talked about deeds only having the legal on them and very rarely do they mention
a related or associated reference to another deed. Unless of course there is a survey. Surviving spouse
change of titles do have a reference of when the real estate was conveyed originally, and I think most of
us reference that associated document.
Still on e I ….Are you still wanting a reference to the previous deed for every conveyance, I feel like that 
is what you are trying to add? I am trying to clarify what you are wanting, I thought we said it would be 
very hard to get the preparer to conform to that.. 

************************************** 

No problem Janelle! 

If DOV documents ever change and become recorded – then that would be a companion document that 
could be added. But until the law changes … 

Regarding “e” – I think my question is – if we worked with preparers and submitters and said – “hey, we 
won’t do your research for you but we’ll add the most recent associated reference in our index IF you all 
agree to include it on every conveyance document from this day forward – as you currently do for 
affidavit of surviving spouse” – would they do it. Some said they wanted it, so, here’s the quid pro quo. 

I sense that there is value in doing this – but I heard you all loud and clear – it has to be right on the 
document. I totally agree that it is not on your task list to do their research.  But if they do it and we put 
some boundaries on it – is it worth considering or having the conversation with the stakeholders? 

So, yes, I think this is worth talking about some more. But I wanted to take a shot at also addressing your 
(the committee’s) primary concerns. 

Everyone, think about it over the weekend and then “reply all” next week. 

Have a great weekend! 

Phil 

ESS Page 164



Chapter 3 
County Data and Information Standards 

ESS – 3.1 Definitions. 
(Iowa Code Section 331.604, 3(a)) 

As used in this Chapter: 

Additional Transaction – Any supplemental transaction represented in an 
instrument for which an additional fee may be charged under Section 331.604 of 
the Iowa Code. 

Associated Document Reference – The Unique Code Values assigned to related 
documents, such as a mortgage and a satisfaction of mortgage.  The Unique Code 
Values are used to quickly retrieve information about related or associated 
documents.   

Business Day – A business day generally represents a period of time which 
includes eight or more consecutive business hours.  For example, a business with 
office hours from 8:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M. is considered one business day.  
Alternatively, a business day could be considered as the consecutive business 
hours within one twenty-four hour period.  For example, one business day could 
be represented as the office hours between 2:00 P.M. on day 1, and 2:00 P.M. on 
day 2.  In either representation, a business day is intended to help define a 
minimum time frame in which a service should be reasonably performed. 

Capacity or Role – The description given to a person who performs a function 
when a party to a transaction such as Executor or Trustee. 

Complete – The status of a document after it has been recorded, represented by 
the inclusion of all pertinent information about the document in a database or 
index including but not limited to the parsed names of the parties, the date of the 
instrument, document type, associated references, and the parsed legal description 
if applicable.  A status of complete also implies that a permanent unaltered image 
of the instrument has been archived. 

Cover Page – A page submitted with a document for recording which includes 
required information and which conforms to requirements for recording such as 
the appropriate top margin on the first page.  A cover page facilitates the 
recording of a non-standard or non-conforming document. 

Document Reference Number – A unique reference number assigned to a 
document in a County indexing system which ensures that the document will not 
be mistaken for another document.   

ESS Page 165



Document Type Mapping – A one-to-one relationship between a document type 
in a County indexing system and the appropriate ILR PRIA document type used 
by the county land record information system. 

Electronic Document - A document or instrument that is received, processed, 
disseminated, or maintained in an electronic format.  The submission of an 
electronic document through the county land record information system electronic 
submission service shall be equivalent to delivery of a document through the 
United States postal service or by personal delivery at designated offices in each 
county. 

Grantor and Grantee – The names of the transferor and transferee in the 
transaction used to create the recording index.  Grantor is any party that grants an 
interest in real property and includes affiants. Grantee is any party that is 
receiving an interest in property or put on notice by a grantor.  The Grantee title is 
typically assigned to the purchaser of property.  The Grantor title is typically 
assigned to the seller of property. 

Human Name – A parsed name of an individual, including last name, middle 
name, first name, suffix, and Capacity or Role. 

Image Archiving System – Any system which provides for an archive or 
permanent storage of electronic documents recorded by a County Recorder. 

Index Legend – A rectangular area displayed on the first page of a plat or survey 
or a drawing related to a plat or survey which includes information required by a 
County Recorder to record and index a document. 

Indexed and Filed – The process whether by manual, mechanical, electronic, 
optical, magnetic, microfilm, or other methods of storage, after filing or 
submission, to incorporate a document or instrument into an archival system for a 
business purpose or for transfer to another party. 

Instrument Date – The date on which a real estate or other document is signed and 
executed by the parties specified in the document. 

Legal Description - A detailed written description of real property that discloses 
the location of the real property with reference to the United States government 
land survey or land subdivision made in accordance with chapters 354 and 355 of 
the Code of Iowa.  This may include an unparsed text description of metes and 
bounds or subdivision references; a parsed legal description of platted land such 
as lot, block and section; or a parsed legal description of unplatted land such as 
section, township, range. 

Lineage/Suffix – An indicator of an individual’s lineage such as Sr, Jr, Second or 
Third. 

ESS Page 166



Monument Preservation Certificate – For the purposes of this section, a 
monument preservation certificate is a document created through the process of 
identifying and perpetuating the position of an existing monument as described in 
Section 355.6A of the Iowa Code. 

Non-Human Name - A name of a company, organization or association. 

Owner – The owner of a property which is referenced in a plat or survey or a 
drawing related to a plat or survey (Surveys and Plats). 

Parcel Identification Number – A unique alphanumeric identifier assigned to a 
parcel of property by a County Official at the time the property is conveyed. 

Parsed or Parsing – The separation of names or identifiers into distinct elements 
for an index or database such as the separation of names into first, middle and 
last, or the separation of legal description identifiers such as lot, block, unit.  
Parsing names or identifiers enables more granular retrieval and analysis of 
information. 

Personally Identifiable Information - One or more of the following specific 
unique identifiers when combined with an individual’s name: 
(1) Social security number.
(2) Checking, savings, or share account number, credit, debit, or charge card
number.

“Proprietor” means a person who has a recorded interest in land, including a 
person selling or buying land pursuant to a contract, but excluding persons 
holding a mortgage, easement, or lien interest. (See Iowa Code Section 354.2) 

Public – The term used to reference the citizens of a County in the land record 
index by a County Recorder with respect to the document type Corner Certficates. 

Record – The process whether by manual, mechanical, electronic, optical, 
magnetic, microfilm, or other methods of storage, after filing or submission, to 
incorporate a document or instrument into the public record. 

Requestor – The person who requests that a Surveyor or Surveyor Company 
prepare a plat or survey or a drawing related to a plat or survey (Surveys and 
Plats). 

Retracement Plat of Survey – For the purposes of this section, a retracement plat 
of survey is a document which includes a graphical representation of the 
subdivision of land as defined in Section 355.1, Subsection 9B of the Iowa Code. 

Surveyor – A person who is licensed under Section 193C of the Iowa 
Administrative Code to conduct a land survey and who prepares a Corner 

ESS Page 167



Certificate, plat or survey or a drawing related to a plat or survey (Surveys and 
Plats). 

Surveyor Company – An organization or company engaged in the activity of 
conducting land surveys as a professional service. 

Township – A defined geographic area within a County (based on the U.S. public 
land survey system). 

Traditional Paper Document – A real estate or other document presented for 
recording in a letter or legal sized paper format which may include ink signatures, 
embossed seals, stamps or other features associated with the processing of paper 
instruments. 

Transaction – A specific legal action represented in a document or instrument 
including an electronic document. A distinct legal action or operation which is 
described in a document or instrument. A transaction must be associated with a 
legal action as demonstrated by the recording of a legal document including but 
not limited to mortgages, easements, deeds, quit claim deeds, or warranty deeds. 

Unaltered – A representation of an original document when presented for 
recording; archived as either a paper document, electronic document, or other 
media, which does not include any mark, stamp, redaction or other modification 
which would obscure or alter the content or meaning of the original document. 

Unique Code Value – A reference value assigned to a document by a County, 
County Recorder or information technology service provider which uniquely 
identifies each document within a County and which associates indexed document 
information with an archived image of the document or instrument. 

Section 3.1 amended – 8.9.16 
Section 3.1 amended – 2.13.18 

ESS – 3.10 Parcel Identification Numbers. 
(Iowa Code Section 331.604, 3(a)) 

3.10(1) The purpose of establishing standards, policies and procedures for Parcel 
Identification Numbers is to ensure that the information is accurate, complete, 
consistent and accessible through the county land record information system, and 
to ensure that information about Parcel Identification Numbers can be used as a 
search criteria when searching for information in the county land record 
information system.  In some cases, the retrieval of document or property 
information will be implemented through a search link using the parcel 
identification number.  Therefore, the format of Parcel Identification Number 
information must be maintained in a format which is identical to the format used 

ESS Page 168



in other County systems which maintain Parcel Identification Number 
information. 

3.10(2) When practicable, each County indexing system shall provide for 
archiving parcel identification numbers as specified herein.  All parcel 
identification numbers associated with a property which is described in a recorded 
conveyance document shall be archived.  The parcel identification number shall 
be the number assigned by the County or City Assessor to the property at the time 
of recording. 

3.10(3) Parcel identification numbers shall be archived in exactly the same format 
as the parcel identification numbers archived in the applicable County or City 
Assessor database. 

3.10(4) In the event that parcel identification numbers associated with a property 
are subsequently changed by a County or City Assessor, the County shall not 
modify the parcel identification number associated with the recording of a 
document.  The indexed parcel identification number is intended to be a historical 
reference concerning the property at the time of recording. 

3.10(5) This section shall be effective January 1, 2016. 

Section 3.10(5) amended 12.11.13.
Section 3.10(2) amended 8.12.15.

ESS Page 169



ESS/Iowa Land Records 
8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2 

Johnston, Iowa  50131 

October 18, 2022 

To: ESS Standards Subcommittee 

From: Phil Dunshee, ILR Project Manager 

Re: Easement Images 

In the spring of 2022 the Iowa Land Records system implemented new procedures for processing 
images. The purpose of the change was to improve the clarity of recorded and stamped images through 
the E-Submission service. The new procedures have generally improved image quality by reducing 
pixelation, darkening text and increasing the clarify of signatures. The procedures have also enabled the 
processing of documents with some amount of color (such as blue signatures) while programmatically 
rejecting documents with a high color content. One indicator of improvement is that number of requests to 
“reset” documents due to image quality concerns has been substantially reduced. 

Notwithstanding these improvements, there are some documents which by there nature may include 
attachments which are reproductions of black and white photographs. Easements, for example, often 
include photographs intended to illustrate the location of the easement. In the recording and image 
archiving process – whether though the ILR E-Submission service or through the document scanning 
process in the recorder’s office – the result can be an image which details are difficult to see or read. 

Attached are a few illustrations of this effect. [Note: these are excerpts of documents and all pages are 
not included for each document.] 

We do not currently have a solution to this condition, as our primary focus for improving image quality was 
improving the legibility of text and signatures. There are also many other competing development 
priorities. Going forward we expect our initial approach to be the development of some recommendations 
and best practices for preparers and submitters which may result in more consistent and higher quality 
results when submitting image attachments to documents. 

Action Requested. Because this is a condition which affects all documents with images, whether 
submitted traditionally or electronically, we are seeking discussion and comments from the Standards 
Subcommittee. 

Note: Today we are seeking discussion and comments
from the ESS Coordinating Committee.

ESS Page 170



ESS Page 171



ESS Page 172



ESS Page 173



ESS Page 174



ESS Page 175



ESS Page 176



Chapter 6 
Policy and Procedures 

Image Restrictions Pending Court Order 

Chapters 6 of the Electronic Services System (ESS) Policies and Procedures are 
modified to provide for the temporary restriction of image access to a document 
while a request for a court order is pending.  

1. Chapter 6 of the ESS Policies and Procedures is amended by adding the
following new Section.

ESS – 6.9 Temporary Restriction of Image Access Pending Court Action 
(Iowa Code Section 331.604(1) 

6.9(1) Request For Image Restriction. An individual may request that public 
access to certain document images be temporarily restricted. ESS personnel may 
consider the request when all of the following conditions are true: 

a. The person requesting the restriction is a named party in the document
documents or is an attorney acting as the representative of a named party, 
and 
b. The request is made in writing and documents the conditions a formal
request before an Iowa judicial officer to remove the document from the 
public record 

6.9(2) Form of Image Restriction Request. An individual or attorney 
representative requesting the temporary restriction of document images shall 
provide all of the following information for each document. 

a. The name of the party reference in the document including contact
information (name, mailing address, phone number, and e-mail address). 
b. The name of the County in which the document has been recorded.
c. The document reference number assigned to the document by the
County. There are various formats used by different counties. In some 
cases the reference number is a book and page number. 
d. The date on which the document was recorded.
e. The reason for requesting the restriction of public access to the
document. 
f. The identity of the court officer or office which is actively considering a
request to remove a document(s) from the public record. 

Requests to temporarily restrict documents without the required specific 
document information will not be considered. All requests must be submitted in 
writing. Written requests may be delivered to the primary office of the Electronic 
Services System at 8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2, Johnston, IA, 50131. Written 
requests may also be submitted via e-mail to support@clris.com with the subject 
“Temporary Document Restriction Request”. 

6.9(3) Disposition Of Image Restriction Requests. An individual who has made a 

DRAFT 

FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N

ESS Page 177



request that public access to certain document images be temporarily restricted 
will be notified of the disposition of the request. If a request is denied, the 
individual will be informed of the reason for the denial. 
 
6.9(4) No Restriction Of Index Information. Information about documents which 
is used to index and reference information filed with the Office of the County 
Recorder shall not be restricted. 
 
6.9(5) Removal Image Restriction. ESS will remove restrictions on access to 
document images when any of the following conditions exist. 

a. The individual or attorney representative requesting the restriction of 
document images rescinds the request in writing. 
b. The court officer or office formally denies the request to remove the 
document from the public record 
 

  
6.9(6) If a court officer or office formally approves the request to remove the 
document from the public record, ESS will continue to restrict access to the 
document(s), and will take action to permanently remove the documents from 
ESS systems subject to the provisions of section 6.6. 
 
 

DRAFT 

FOR D
ISCUSSIO

N

ESS Page 178



ESS Page 179



2

2. As the Trust Section of the Bar, do we think this is something that can and should be addressed with the 
legislature? IMHO, I think there should be an explicit statute authorizing removal of a trust from the public 
records, as privacy is one of the hallmarks of trusts. Privacy in my situation was obliterated. Now my client’s 
estate planning is out there for the world to see, and there is no direct/clear path for redress. I understand the 
client could revoke the trust and start anew, but the “cat is out of the bag” and their estate plan has been laid 
bare for all to see. (It is a client with a large amount of farm assets with very specific provisions….not your 
standard estate plan.) 

  
Thank you to everyone and anyone with input to provide. I consider this to be a very important issue. 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 

 
 

  
    

  

 

ESS Page 180



ESS/Iowa Land Records 
   8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2 

Johnston, Iowa  50131 
 
 
 
October 18, 2022 
 
 
 
 
To: ESS Standards Subcommittee 
 
From: Phil Dunshee 
 
Re: Clayton County Cover Page Discussion 
 
 
In addition to the discussions about the recording “Cover Page” and/or a “Standard Index Legend” there 
is another type of “first page” to be reviewed.  Specifically, Clayton County has advanced to concept of 
providing a standard “first page” for every document in the county image archive. 
 
As we understand it, the purpose of this first page would not be associated with the process of recording 
or indexing. Rather, the purpose would be to provide the reader with an “abstract” or “summary” of the 
document. This “first” page would be generated after the document is recorded and indexed.  It would be 
added to the document image for archiving, and it would be a part of the public record. 
 
Attached is an illustration of a “first page” from a county in the State of Michigan. The information in the 
document includes the following: 
 
A stamp (not the official recording stamp) which notes the county name (appearing 4 times), the state 
(appearing 4 times), the date of recording (appearing 2 times), the reference number (appearing 3 times), 
a title that the document has been received and recorded, information about the real estate transfer tax, 
the name of the recorder (Register of Deeds – appearing 2 times), the document type, the number of 
pages, the “received date and time”, the time of recording, a certification statement, the recorder’s 
signature, an image of the county seal, and a statement indicating that it is “Page 1” of the document. 
There is also a TTX # (appearing 2 times), which we’re not sure of its meaning. 
 
This “first page” is generated by the land records management system service provider (Fidlar). 
 
Some questions being advanced include: 
 

 Reaction if Clayton County (or other counties served by Fidlar) were to begin using this “first 
page” practice 

 Would this practice be of interest to any (or all) other counties, and if so, how would it be 
implemented 

 Is this something you would like to do for all records and is this something you would want ILR to 
assist with? 
 

I can confidently state that if any county who added a “first page” like this and transferred it to ILR in the 
ordinary course of business, we could handle it. A possible issue is that it would add one more page to 
each document for a review of PII. 
 
Action Requested. We are seeking discussion and comments from the Standards Subcommittee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ESS Page 181



ESS Page 182



ESS Page 183


	ESS Coordinating-Standards Discussion 103122.pdf
	Binder4-Standards Subcommittee Update for discussion.pdf
	Chapter4-Transfer Tax Refund Policy
	Revenue-701-79.1(5)
	Pages from Standards Subcommittee Preliminary Meeting Packet - 101822.pdf
	Chapters 3-StampArea-101822
	Chapters 3 and 5-Standard Index Legend-101822
	Chapter 3-coverpage-101822
	Chapter 5-Preparer MetaData-101822

	Chapters 3-StampArea-101822
	Chapters 3 and 5-Standard Index Legend-101822
	Chapter 5-Preparer MetaData-101822
	Chapter 3-coverpage-101822
	Current Associated Reference Policy.pdf
	Chapters 3-Associated References-102022.pdf
	Chapter 3-ParcelIDs
	Easement Image Discussion Memo
	EasementImageExamples.pdf
	Cedar 1532-117.pdf
	Cedar 1548-292.pdf
	Cedar 1594-40.pdf
	Cedar 1639-167.pdf
	Cedar 1648-160.pdf
	Easement Jones 2022-2625 Submitted..pdf
	Easement Jones 2022-2625 Recorded.pdf
	Easement Allamakee 2022-2443 submitted.pdf
	Easement Allamakee2022-2443 Recorded.pdf
	Easement CG 2022-5737.pdf


	Tempoary Restriction Memo_Redacted
	Clayton Cover Page Memo
	Clayton County Example
	Binder1-s1s2s3.pdf
	ESS Coordinating Committee Agenda111022-DRAFT2-pd
	ESS Coordinating Committee_080922-Final.pdf
	ESS Master Meeting Calendar 2023-DRAFT Revised.pdf

	Marketing Director Posting - Final102422.pdf
	Compensation
	Application Submission
	Individuals who are interested in the position should submit a cover letter and resume to Phil Dunshee at Electronic Services System, 8711 Windsor Parkway, Suite 2, Johnston, IA  50131.  Applicants may also submit information via email to phil@clris.c...

	LT work authorizations.pdf
	DocuSign_LT-ESS_Work_Authorization2.1-final.pdf
	LT-ESS Work Authorization2-2signed-counter.pdf

	Binder-Policies and Procedures.pdf
	P & P - Technical Updates-102722
	Chapters 1 and 3 -Technical & Editorial Changes-101822.pdf
	Chapters 5-technical corrections-101822.pdf

	P & P -Compensation of Members-102722
	P & P - Bill of Sale-102722
	Bill of Sale Mapping Policy (002).pdf
	Chapter 3 Amendment - Bill of Sale-102622.pdf


	Terms of use; API.pdf
	StakeholderCommunications-September 27.pdf
	Iowa Land Records - User Terms and Conditions - 092722.pdf
	Iowa Land Records - API Authorization - 092722.pdf

	Smart Ledger LegislativeUpdate2.pdf
	Smart Contract Memo.pdf
	Iowa Distributed Ledger Technology-Stakeholder Discussions.pdf

	ADPB1D1.tmp
	Committee Basics:
	Number of Terms: Eligibility:
	ESS – 1.6 ESS Coordinating Committee.

	ESS Communications Update_110322.pdf
	ESS Coordinating Comms Update 110322.pdf
	Communications Subcommittee Update.pdf
	Deputies review


	ESS Finance Section - November-DRAFT-111022.pdf
	11-November BOA Finance Packet (1).pdf
	CLRIS Invoice
	Intuit
	BOA-Oasis-3967308-100722
	BOA-Oasis-3981611-102122

	BOA Bank Statement_Redacted
	BT Bank Statement_Redacted
	BOA Drawdown Rec
	BOA Rec
	BT Rec
	BOA P & L
	BOA P & L Budgeted by Qtr
	BOA P & L Budgeted YTD.QTR
	BOA Balance Sheet
	BOA CC statement- Redacted
	BOA CC Rec

	11- November Fund 255 Finance Packet (1).pdf
	Fund 0255 September
	FR008B

	Fund 255 Bank Rec
	Fund 255 P & L
	Fund 255 P & L Qtr
	Fund 255 Balance Sheet


	Blank Page
	cola.pdf
	Pages from SolutionsAgreement-final070119.pdf
	Solutions-FY2023MaintenanceAmendment2-070122-signed-counter.pdf

	Blank Page
	ESS Nomination 10-31-2022.pdf
	Committee Basics:
	Number of Terms: Eligibility:
	ESS – 1.6 ESS Coordinating Committee.

	ESS Communications Update_110322.pdf
	ESS Coordinating Comms Update 110322.pdf
	Communications Subcommittee Update.pdf
	Deputies review





